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Key Information for Shareholders

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2024
Financial year end
31 March 2024

Announcement of 2023/24 results
18 June 2024

Last day to register for the entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2023/24 annual general meeting

23 August 2024

2023/24 annual general meeting
30 August 2024

Last day to register for 2023/24 final dividends
4 September 2024
Expected payment date of 2023/24 final dividend

24 September 2024
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MEELA
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CECCZE /CNEEEE&EAMAMN
“E-WEFESNA+TNAHB

EESHE_ZE-_=F /"NEERR
BFEAERREZREETHB
“E-MFENA-+=H

TECZCZF /CHOFERRBFRE
“E-MFENA=1H

TECZF CNFERAPRERER
2B
—E-NEAANA

BAa—2-=F —HFEERHERE
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—E-mFAA=TEA

SHARE CAPITAL & 2=
As at
BZE
31 March 2024 30 June 2024
—EBE-mE —EF
=HB=+—H NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) EEGETT) 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued (HK$) BETOET) 5,053,648 5,053,648
MARKET CAPITALISATION mE

As at 31 March 2024
(Closing Price: HK$0.80)
HK$404,291,840

As at 30 June 2024
(Closing Price: HK$0.68)
HK$343,648,064

BE-—ZE-_NEF=A=+—H
(W& :0.8078 JT)
404,291,840 7T

BE-—Z-_WEAXA=1H
(W& : 0.688 T)
343,648,064 JT
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Key Information for Shareholders

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)

Main Board

2421

BOARD LOT
2,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”)

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Hong
Kong share registrar of KRP Development Holdings Limited
(the “Company”):

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-16, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For enquiries, please contact:

Block C, 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2956 7580
Email: ir@krpd.com.hk
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Financial Highlights
MBBE

Revenue
Yz
RMB million

AR¥EETR
776

701
591
482

227

FY2019/2020 FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022 FY2022/2023 FY2023/2024
20194 20204 20214 20224 20235
20204 20214 20224 20234 20245
BRFE  MBREE  BERFE MBREE BB

Total Assets
EEHE
RMB million
ARBEET

2201

1,975
1,721
1,512
|| |I 1%8

FY2019/2020 FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022 FY2022/2023 FY2023/2024
20196 20204 20214F 20224 2023
2020F 20214 20224F 2023 20244

BITREFE BIERF R BITREFE BIERF R BAEREFEE

Net Profit
% A
RMB million

AR®EET
244

181

161
129
I }

FY2019/2020 FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022 FY2022/2023 FY2023/2024
20194 20204 20214 20224 20235
20204 20214 20224 2023 20245
BRFE  MBEE BERFE MBREFE BIBEE

Total Shareholders’ Fund
BRERESHEE

RMB million
ARBEET

829 849
749
430
323 II

FY2019/2020 FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022 FY2022/2023 FY2023/2024
20195 20205 20214F 20224F 2023%F
20204F 202157 2020%F 20235 2024%F
MRFEE  HMBREFE  MBEEE  MREE MBFE
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Financial Highlights

M E

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BLEE
2024 2023
“EmE T =
RMB million RMB million
ARBAEEBRT ARBEETR
Revenue W = 227 701
Net profit 7 7 A 40 181
RMB cents AR5
Basic earnings per share BRELFER 7.9 35.8
Net asset value per Share BREEFE 16.8 16.4
HK Cents Rl
Dividend per share BERKRE
Final proposed dividend REI B 2.0 4.0
2024 2023 % Changes
Financial Ratios BY 5 b = —EZMEF —T_=F 2HHEHE
Gross profit margin (%) F F K (%) 64.2 73.8 -13%
Net profit margin (%) 7 A 2 (%) 17.7 25.8 31%
Current ratio B L & 2.2 2.0 +10%
Quick ratio HEH X 0.4 0.4 ==
Gearing ratio (%) B &L E (%) 0.0 0.2 -100%
Interest coverage MERE = 309.0 71.9 +330%
Non-current assets to SEMBNE E
total equity (%) @ 48 8 Lb % (%) 27.0 21.4 +26%
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRE

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group principally

engaged in:

A boutique residential property developer which mainly
engaged in the development and sales of residential
properties in the developing residential markets in

Dongguan, Huizhou and Foshan in the PRC.

(1) BUSINESS REVIEW
I. Results

(a)

v e

VS |

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the
revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB226,877,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2023: RMB700,751,000), which decreased by
approximately 68% when compared with the
corresponding period last year. Profit
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) amounted to
RMB40,069,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2023: RMB180,846,000), which decreased by
approximately 78% when compared with the
corresponding period last year. Such significant
decrease in profit was attributable to: (i) the
drop in property sales revenue due to external
factors such as the slowdown in economic
growth and sluggish real estate market
environment; and (ii) the provision for
impairment loss on inventories. The Company
also published a profit warning in relation to its
annual results for the year ended 31 March
2024 on 24 May 2024 in accordance with the
rules of the Stock Exchange, so as to raise the
information transparency of the Company.

In accordance with the current market
conditions and the Group’s consistent
prudent principles, the Group made a
provision for the impairment loss on
inventories of RMB11,999,000 for the year

ended 31 March 2024.

FTEEBREE
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group had land
bank of approximately 242,494 square
meters (“sq.m.”) (as at 31 March 2023:
253,594 sq.m.), which mainly included the
land parcel located at Hecheng Sub-district,
Gaoming District, Foshan (the “Foshan
Project”), Phases 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas,
Dongguan and Louvre Mansion, Huizhou,
in the PRC.

A Three-Old Renewal residential project,
Phase 3 of Castfast Villas, Dongguan
recorded and recognized revenue of
RMB9,519,000 during the year. A total of 4
units were delivered during the year, with a
total area of approximately 440 sq.m. and
an average selling price of approximately
RMB23,600 per sg.m..

Phase 4 of Castfast Villas, Dongguan
delivered 38 units and recorded revenue of
RMB95,109,000 during the year, with a total
area of approximately 3,936 sq.m. and an
average selling price of approximately
RMB26,300 per sq.m..

Phase 5 of Castfast Villas, Dongguan
delivered 29 units and recorded revenue of
RMB116,964,000 during the year, with a
total area of approximately 4,545 sq.m. and
an average selling price of approximately
RMB28,000 per sq.m..

YIS

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRE

Meanwhile, Louvre Mansion, Huizhou, has
been completed, with a total saleable
residential area of approximately 30,300
sg.m. and a total of 8 units were delivered
during the year. Revenue of RMB5,285,000
was recorded, with a total area of
approximately 782 sq.m. and an average
selling price of approximately RMB7,400 per
sq.m..

The Foshan Project is in the stage of project
planning and design, which is proceeding
under a sound and diverse strategy. We are
now preparing the construction design and
drawing and negotiating with the relevant
departments of the government.

In the past financial year, international
geopolitical conflicts persisted. The global
economy remained in a high interest rate
environment. Demand in the Mainland
economy was weak, and the property
sector was still undergoing market
adjustment. However, national and local
policies have sent out positive signals, with
the overall keynote of policies becoming
more accommodative. The PRC
Government has adopted a series of
measures to optimize real estate policies,
such as recognizing households with
mortgage records but no local property
ownership as first-time residential property
purchasers, easing of purchase restrictions,

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E # E#ZE R AR A 7
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publishing of the Mainland Real Estate
White List and lowering the proportion and
interest rate of down payment, which
stimulated the market demand and
strengthened the confidence of residential
property purchasers. Nevertheless, it will
take time for the market to recover, and the
property sector is still facing a number of
operational challenges in the process.

While facing various challenges, the
Company proactively implemented
initiatives like “focus on resources, improve
operations, optimize quality, and make a
fresh start” and pursued projects
pragmatically to raise our efficiency.
Through accurate marketing strategies and
flexible operation approach, we manage our
finances prudently and minimize risks.
During the year, the Company was
committed to maintaining its profitability. By
ensuring profits and distributions, we strove
to maximize shareholders’ value despite the
sluggish market.

First of all, we focused on the development
of property resources in the Greater Bay
Area, completing both Three-Old Renewal
residential project and Louvre Mansion,
Huizhou. Meanwhile, the Group was
committed to generating cash flow and
eliminating inventory, with sufficient
operating cash flow, healthy balance sheet
and no significant borrowings or
outstanding loans, ensuring a strong
financial position. We will continue to
adhere to the principle of operating within
our means to achieve sustainable
development.

Chairman’s Statement

BEm TS E B
g e
B R NE Y S S
kB -

REME B - AAFD
BiIRESHBEER - 12
AEE - BlLtRE E
MHEEIEREIE B
FHRIER - o8 o
i B RS 2 ) & BH IR B AN
BEMKETH  BM
EIEBEH BREER -
KEEBORBFERF -
[FHRRK] E¥EmHF
A% REE & AL -

B BRMEIRNKRE
EMENERER =8
BEEEIHE MEMNE
FRAEETEEBEEHER
T R NEEBHIR
B 7 IR & AN ZEET_
KEMBEERTE
?Eﬁ%%& &ﬁ@%
WEERRFEER
BRMBEMRARIT - 3
MEEBERE ARL
B R B - BIRAI R
E o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 £ $§ 11



Chairman’s Statement

12

Furthermore, the Group maintained a lean
structure and further strengthened its
operating capabilities. During the vyear, its
administrative expenses decreased by
approximately 33% (equivalent to
approximately RMB15,000,000) as
compared to the year ended 31 March
2023. While improving its greening and
improving outdoor facilities, the Group also
maintained its strict quality control to
establish its unique competitive advantages.
During this difficult period of the real estate
industry, the Group demonstrated an
operational posture of maintaining stability
and order and further improving quality.

The Group adhered to the concept of
sustainable development and fulfilled its
corporate social responsibility by
incorporating low-carbon and green
building concepts into its design to provide
a harmonious and beautiful residential area.
We are committed to sustainable
development in the areas of environmental
protection, community, operations, waste
reduction, energy use, customers,
employees and suppliers. For more details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report has been published
in this year.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E # E#ZE R AR A 7
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(m) On 14 May 2024, the Company
conditionally sold the entire issued equity
interest of Dongguan City Jiaxuntong

E ==l

Computer Products Limited* (3R 52 ™ %2 &l &
ERERMARLQA)
wholly-owned subsidiary, at a consideration
of RMB19,800,000 (the “Disposal”). The
Disposal could streamline the organization

) (“Jiaxuntong”), a

structure and thereby minimizing the
administrative costs of the Group, and
recover cash for the development of future
projects. The Disposal had been approved
by the independent shareholders of the
Company by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting on 24 June
2024. For further details, please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company
dated 14 May 2024 and 5 June 2024,
respectively.

Conclusion

During the year, the overall real estate market was still
in a transitional period, experiencing inevitable great
volatility and adjustment. Residential property
purchasers were more cautious and there was a
strong wait-and-see sentiment, with contracted sales
value and area in the real estate industry falling
sharply throughout the year. The real estate industry is
in a period of consolidating its foundation and
integration, with significant fragmentation in the land
market. Despite the aforesaid predicament for the
entire industry, the core region of the Greater Bay
Area, where the Group focuses on its development,
has demonstrated greater resilience and stronger
recovery. The Group has striven for progress and
excellence amidst stability, proactively responded to
changes in the market and prepared for a fresh start in
order to repay its shareholders for their support and
trust.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

(2)

(3)

Dividend Policy

Any distribution of dividends is subject to various
factors, including but not limited to operating
results, capital demands, cash flows, future
business development requirements of the Group
and any other factors which the Directors may
consider relevant. The Directors will, at their
discretion and based on actual circumstances,
cautiously evaluate such distributions to ensure
that they are in the interest of the Company and
shareholders.

After due consideration of the above factors and
maintaining annual dividend distribution, the
Board proposes to distribute a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share to all shareholders whose
names appear on the Company’s registers of
members as at 6 September 2024.

Prospects

Looking forward, the high profit era of the real
estate industry has come to an end, and the road
of recovery is still long. With the overall
accommodative policies, there are signs that
sales will continue to pick up. The Group will
continue to uphold the philosophy of “focus on
resources, improve operations, optimize quality,
and make a fresh start” and its strategy of
seeking improvement while maintaining stability,
pursuing business development at reasonable
profit. The Group will maintain a lean structure
and efficient management team to strengthen its
operational capabilities and competitiveness,
with a focus on projects in the Greater Bay Area,
while also utilize flexible and tailored marketing
strategies and reasonable pricing to eliminate its
inventory and accelerate capital recovery, in
order to maintain a healthy net cash position and
reduce financial risks. It is believed that upon the
completion of the Disposal, our operational
efficiency and cash flow will be further
strengthened.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E # E#ZE R AR A 7
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The Group will constantly implement its strategy
of diversified business model, actively respond to
the government’s rural revitalization policy, and
explore a diversified product business model
integrating the “culture, tourism, commercial and

I//

residential” elements. With a solid financial
foundation and a flexible market response
strategy, the Group will continue to propel
towards higher-quality development in a timely
and strategic manner by investing in various
investment products, in order to achieve a
balanced asset allocation and diverse source of
cash flow. We will create value for shareholders

to reward them for their unfailing support.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy
in managing the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure
that the Group is well-placed to capture future growth
opportunities.

Net Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, net gearing ratio
(calculated based on total bank borrowing and lease
liabilities less cash and bank deposits and pledged deposits
divided by total equity at the end of the year multiplied by
100%) was not applicable as we were at a net cash
position.

Resources Available

Currently, the Group is confident that with the cash in
hand and bank deposits of approximately RMB175,162,000,
it is able to meet its current operational and committed
capital expenditure requirements and to make strategic
investments when opportunities arise.

Chairman’s Statement
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Exchange Rate Exposure

The Group operates primarily in the PRC and most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB. Currency risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. Management
considers that the Group is mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk with respect to United States Dollars and
HK$. Management will continue to monitor foreign
exchange exposure and will take measures to minimise the
currency translation risk. The conversion rate of RMB to
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

Contingent Liabilities/Financial Guarantees

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has provided guarantees
to banks to secure the mortgage arrangements of certain
property purchasers. As at 31 March 2024, the outstanding
guarantees to the banks amounted to RMB347,753,000
(2023: RMB515,657,000) which will be released upon the
completion of the transfer procedures with the property
purchasers in respect of the legal title of the properties.

The Directors are of the view that the Group would not
sustain a loss under these guarantees as the bank has the
rights to sell the property and recovers the outstanding
loan balance from the sale proceeds if the property
purchasers are in default on payment. The Group has not
recognised any deferred income in respect of these
guarantees as the fair value of these guarantees is
considered to be insignificant.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no
future other plans for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 March 2024.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 May 2024, the Company entered into a disposal
agreement on conditionally sold the entire issued equity
interest of Dongguan City Jiaxuntong Computer products
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a
consideration of RMB19,800,000 (the “Disposal”) to Kar
Info Property Limited, which is a wholly-owned company
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai. The Disposal had been approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company by way of
poll at the extraordinary general meeting on 24 June 2024.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 60 employees on average
during the year. The Group enter into individual
employment contracts with our employees to cover matters
such as wages, salaries, benefits and terms for termination.
We generally formulate our employees’ remuneration
package to include a salary and bonus. We determine
salary levels based on each employee’s qualification,
position, seniority and periodic performance reviews. In
our performance reviews, we mainly assess the value that
the employee has created for our Group during the
performance period and any other meaningful
contributions that the employee has made to our Group.
As required by the relevant PRC regulations, we make
contributions to mandatory social security funds for the
benefit of our PRC employees that provide for pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
personal injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident funds.

The Group has provided continuous training courses to its
employees. Please see the section “Cohesive Talent” in its
ESG Report for details.

In addition, to cope with domestic development in the PRC
and the actual need for talent retention, the Group
establishes a “Cooperative Home” to encourage and
finance potential high calibre of the Group who have
settled down locally in buying a flat as a means to retain
talents in light of the competitive labour market in the
PRC.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

Performance Based Incentives

The Group has also adopted performance based bonus
system and objective performance assessment. Employees
with outstanding performance will receive more bonus.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share (2022/23 final dividend: HK4.0
cents per share), to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 6 September
2024. Together with the interim dividend, total dividend
paid/payable for this year amounted to HK2.0 cents per
share (2022/23: HK4.0 cents per share). The final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) of the Company to be held on 30 August 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee currently
comprising three independent non-executive Directors whose
duties include resolving issues in relation to audit such as
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting
process and internal control systems. The audit committee
and the management have reviewed the accounting principles
and major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting in the
current year with the external auditors. The audit committee
has reviewed the consolidated annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2024.

APPRECIATION

We would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.

REBK
AEERARBEHINRSH LERE
BMRRFAE AEERANETIAE
BERLAERZNEE -

iR 5
EEeC 2R RERYREEMR2.08
W(ZBZZ /Z=FEREIKRE - FK

408 M) FTHRBER-ZZE-ZMNFNAH
EHRZIRARBIRELMANIRE -
ERPEKE  2FREIRE EMHK
EFR20BW(ZE == /Z=FF:
FH4.081L) - REIR B BFARA K
RR-_E-_WNFENA=1THETZERE
BERBEFRS((RRBFASE]) LA
B FAEE o

ERZER
RARRIEKIBZEE® %RZ8
B BYIERNTEST -BERZELES
EEREEXHEEANSEE BIEE
B EBEARRA B RREF KA
B - BEREZESRERECEMNAS
B et BRI R ETEHRXK - WE
INEBRZ BB A FE 2Bt - AEPE
EMEREETRAN c BREEEE
EHNAEEEE-_T-_NF=A=1+—
HIEMGEFEER -

il
I g

b @

R 3
HMPEA-—BERIXHEENMER
P fErs - RITK RERAEAELR
FARRAXZFEBUAROHMN - thHNE
BRA—BEREEFELBEEERMZES
HERETH-

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E # E#ZE R AR A 7



Corporate Governance Report

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

For the years ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”) the Group
has applied the principles of the recently promulgated
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and complied with the code provision
(the “Code Provisions”) of the CG Code.

The Company will continue to review its practices
from time to time to achieve high standard of corporate
governance.

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2024.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2024, the Board consisted
of eight Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Man
Chung (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Ho
Wai Hon, Brian, Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung and Mr.
Zhu Nianhua as executive Directors; Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman of the Board) as a
non-executive Director and Mr. Choi Wai
Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong and Dr. Lo Yung Fong
as the independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has the collective responsibility
for the leadership and promotion of the
success of the Group’s business by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs.
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1.2 The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products
and services. The Board is collectively
responsible for formulating the overall
objective and strategy of the Group;
monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance and reviews
the standard of corporate governance of
the Group. It also makes decisions on
matters such as approving the annual
results, interim and quarterly results,
connected transactions, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors, declaring
dividends and adopting accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the
management.

1.3 The Board shall conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met four times for the Year and
considered, reviewed and approved the Group'’s
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023,
quarterly and interim results of the Group for the
Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

UT—RAFEEFE A MK
RAGH M E AL

The attendance record of the Board meetings and
general meetings held during the Year are set out
below:

Attendance of individual Directors
at Board meetings and general
meetings during the Year

rAFEEEERBRAE
SRENESHHER
No. of board  No. of general
meetings meetings
attended/ attended/
held held
g BEXE
HERE, HERE,
=8 BEXRH
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Ho Man Chung A 3 AR S & 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian AT & 4/4 1/1
Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung sk AR/NE 4/4 11
Mr. Zhu Nianhua METE 4/4 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fa] Y& ¥ 5% A= 4/4 11
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Choi Wai Hin BBEEE 4/4 11
Mr. Ho Lai Hong CI)=Y- % 4/4 1/1
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BEFEL 4/4 0/1

EEZREREACRBHKT
BNARA R AT

A list of Directors and their role and function was
posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

1.4 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board 1.4 BRSEFTTUENAK

and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee, a
nomination committee and a remuneration
committee. Detailed descriptions of each
of these committees are set out below.
All of these committees adopt, as far as
practicable, the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Board in relation to
the scheduling and proceeding of meetings,
notice of meetings and inclusion of agenda
items, records and availability of minutes.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms
of reference setting out its duties, responsibilities,
powers and functions which include the
following:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations
to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

e reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

e developing reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report in its Annual Report.

2. Board Composition

2.1 As at 31 March 2024, the Board comprised
eight Directors: four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, is the father of Mr.
Ho Wai Hon, Brian, an executive Director
of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

2.2 The attributes, skills and expertise among
the existing Directors are considered
appropriate so as to effectively lead,
supervise and manage the Group, taking
into account the scope and nature of the
operations. The Directors have a mix of core
competencies in areas such as accounting
and finance, business and management,
property industry knowledge and marketing
strategies. Details of the experience and
qualifications of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section
headed “Senior Management Profile” in this
annual report.

Board Diversity

Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity criteria, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year, nomination committee and
the Board reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and was of the opinion
that the Board composition is well balanced and
diversified, and with the appropriate structure,
size and necessary skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives required for the
business of the Group. The Board also reviewed
and evaluated the board diversity policy and its
implementation, and considered it to be effective
during the Year.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises 2 female Directors and 6 male
Directors. The Board considers that the gender
diversity in respect of the Board is satisfactory
and will continue to maintain a diverse Board.

The Board considers will engage human
resources agencies and/or through open selection
process to identify potential successors for the
Board as and when appropriate and enhance
gender diversity in the coming years and will
emphasize gender as a factor to be taken into
consideration for achieving the Board diversity.
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As at 31 March 2024, the ratio of female to
male in the workforce (excluding Directors)
was approximately 42:58. For details of gender
distribution, please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Board adopted a separate nomination policy,
which provides the key selection criteria and
principles of the Board in making decisions in the
appointment and reappointment of directors and
succession planning of directors, to emphasise
our commitment on transparent nomination
process.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

4.1 At each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.

A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
ascertain the number of directors to retire
by rotation) any Director who wishes to
retire and not to offer himself for reelection.
Any further Directors so to retire shall
be those of the other Directors subject
to retirement by rotation who have been
longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment and so that as between
persons who became or were last re-elected
Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot.
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Corporate Governance Report

4.2 As at 31 March 2024, the non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai)
including the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not
exceeding three years and all non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirements
of retirement by rotation and re-election
by Shareholders at the AGM in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”).

4.3 The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for
election or re-election at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the circular to
Shareholders to assist Shareholders in
making an informed decision on their
elections.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
arising from the group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an
annual basis.

Directors’ Continuous Professional
Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given
an induction. As part of the ongoing process
of directors’ training, the Company Secretary
continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements.
All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant
topics which may count towards continuous
professional development training.
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For the Year, all Directors participated in
appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses,
seminars, conferences and forums or by reading
materials relevant to the Group’s business and
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Each
of them has provided a record of training
they received for the Year to the Company. A
directors’ training course was held on 5 March
2024 concerning the relevant updates of the
Listing Rules relating to notifiable transactions,
connected transactions, continuing obligations.
The training received by each Director for the
Year is summarized as below:

AEE 2REETHEAN
FEIRE -HiTE @
N BHBERAEE XK
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FR2EAE  EXERE
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R BEXS BEEEZ
HEEN AXFESEEFEX
Bz ENT:

Attending
training
courses,

seminars,

Reading conferences and
materials forums
i E AR
Mg
MERBER EE 1R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ho Man Chung X BEE v v
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian ETEE v 4
Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung tk A B/ E v v
Mr. Zhu Nianhua NELTE v v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai e B L& v v
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYFHTES
Mr. Choi Wai Hin REFLL v v
Mr. Ho Lai Hong MBRTE v v
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BryEL v v

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive adequate, clear, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner.
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The Chairman should:

e ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in
a timely manner;

e ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;

e encourage Directors with different views
to voice their concerns, allow sufficient
time for discussion of issues and ensure
that board decisions fairly reflect board
consensus;

e ensure that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole; and

e promote a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of
non-executive directors in particular and
ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive Directors.

The chief executive officer of the Company
should be responsible for managing the Group’s
business including the implementation of strategy
and initiatives with the support of executive
Directors and senior management and within
those authorities delegated by the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors and one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the number of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and having reviewed
the independence of each of the independent
non-executive Directors against the independent
criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, the Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

If any re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the board for more than
nine vyears, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders.

Independent View Mechanism

The Board should comprise at least three
independent non-executive Directors. All of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company has served less than 9 years on
the Board. At least one of the independent
non-executive Directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The
Company must appoint independent non-
executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company shall
appoint a sufficient number of independent
non-executive Directors to meet the minimum
number required above within three months after
failing to meet the requirement(s).

All committees of Board comprise a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.
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Directors should disclose to the Company at
the time of their appointments, and in a timely
manner for any changes, the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments.
The identity of the public companies or
organisations should also be disclosed.

When selecting independent non-executive
Directors, the candidates’ availability should
be considered as sitting on a Board involves
a significant time commitment. Independent
non-executive Directors must dedicate time
to reading materials prior to Board meetings
in order to make the hours spent in meetings
effective. They also have to learn to understand
the Company’s complex business and operational
details, market forces and future perspectives.

The Nomination Committee should be aware of
the factors which may affect an individual’s time
commitment to the Company.

Upon reasonable request, Directors may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All
Directors should have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary to ensure that
Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules
and regulations, are followed.

Having reviewed the existing independent
view mechanism, the Board was satisfied with
the implementation and effectiveness of the
independent view mechanism for the year ended
31 March 2024.

EERNEBEZERLER
EHRMFRANRAKER
RARABHEBPETD
BBBHEMMEUALEME
ZAE - EFNARAREE
BERARARSABNS

,T/'\ °

HRMAZEEFEFRRAK
ERME RNEEBIIFERT
EXR - BEREEATRA
MEHE BIFRTES Y
AREEE SR ZAEEH
BIEME  AERMAAE
BEE - RETASZSTHA
NEEFENRG R EEE -
MHERMRKRAER °

REZBERTEAREREE
ABRBARRARHENEE -

EREMERT  EXFEE
ERATNSKBIEXRER -
EMBARRIALE - IBES
BrRIESRRAWEZE R R
R - NEREZSEFLAA
BERER  RAKRHYG
EEST -

FTEHBYLERKH®E =

SHBYERBANEE
—E-_NMFE=ZA=+—HIHF
EHRTBRAEKRBME -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 % ¥§ 29



Corporate Governance Report

HERREE

i

B.

% ﬁz 30

) p

BOARD COMMITTEE
1.  Remuneration Committee (the “RC”)

1.1

1.2

The RC is chaired by Dr. Lo Yung Fong and
comprises three other members, namely
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian, Mr. Choi Wai Hin
and Mr. Ho Lai Hong. All RC members,
with the exception of Mr. Ho Wai Hon,
Brian (executive Director), are independent
non-executive Directors. The quorum
necessary for the transaction of business
by the RC is two. The terms of reference of
the RC shall be updated from time to time
to comply with the new requirements set
out in the CG Code and are published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the RC are
as follows:

e to formulate remuneration policy
of the Group, review and make
recommendations to the Board in
respect of the remuneration policy;

e to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

e to conform to any requirement,
direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the
Board or contained in the constitution
of the Company or imposed by the
Listing Rules or any applicable law;

e to determine the remuneration packages
and equity-based remuneration of the
executive Directors and the senior
management;

. to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors; and

B. EEZE®
1. FMZEES(FMZEZ))

1.1

1.2
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TERERRESE

e to review and/or approve matters e T|HIRHHE L

relating to share schemes under MARBEI7EFH
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. RO EIEE -

1.3 The RC met once during the Year and 13 FMEEEREAFED
reviewed its terms of reference, the BIT—RGEDE MU
remuneration policy of the Group and the EHNHBESRE K&
remuneration packages of Directors and EOFMBEREESM
senior management staff. It also assessed the SREREBZHBM TR
performance of the Directors and evaluated SHEBEENRAR
the remuneration policy. The attendance FEHMEE - HFME
record of the meeting of the RC during the BEegRAFEgRZ 24
Year is set out below: JERR s

No. of meetings
attended/held

HERE
BN
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BESEL
(chairman of RC) (W ZE B = F &) 1/1
Mr. Choi Wai Hin EIEE LA 11
Mr. Ho Lai Hong MEESLE 1/1
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian EEESa e 1/1
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EERSNEE ABEEH
MANAGEMENT

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the 1R F A BIMEED2E TR EEHE
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed FME&RhAEHZmHMES ¥ —F
pursuant to Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in  FHBHRAFRAE 256 P K HEK
note 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements in  Fff 7910 °

this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the #BELEEETEZTEIEXELS K
remuneration of the members of the senior management by & ' IBEHFMAFE H 2 aREEAS

band for the Year is set out below: HME Y T b ®
|| .
Number of & 4 I
Remuneration bands (RMB) persons !
FMARNARY) A"
1 to 1,000,000 121,000,000 2

1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001% 2,000,000 1T B

A
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2. Audit Committee (the “AC”) 2. EREEE(EKRZEEE)

2.1 The AC’s membership comprised the 21 BHE-_FT_-_NMNF=H
independent non-executive Directors as at =t—H ERZE®
31 March 2024: BRBIYIFATESMH

[
Mr. Choi Wai Hin REHEE
(chairman of the AC) (BERZLESLE)

Mr. Ho Lai Hong ol BB B St &
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BEFSEL
The Board is of the opinion that members EExgR R BERZE

eNEHRE TN E T KB
BEEHEMBRER
INBITHRE B -

of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.

2.2 The terms of reference had been adopted for 22 BEBEEHRRABIER
the operations of the AC. The updated terms BEERZEG - BR

ZEgZBESECD T
RARF MRz BA
N-EZZRBEGZXZ

of reference of the Audit Committee were
posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The main duties of the

AC include: BEBRE:

e to review the risk management e NE2FEEHE
and internal control systems, the o F A AM}E
effectiveness of the Company’s A& T B B B
internal audit function at regular Board o

meetings during the Year;

standards;

e to review and supervise the Group’s e M KEEAEE
financial reporting process including ZHBHRERF
the review of quarterly, interim and BREBEHNASEN
annual results of the Group; FE -HHEFE

e to review the external auditors’ o mESMNEAZEET Y
appointment, remuneration and any EE BEWNEME-
matters relating to resignation or BE & H OB N A A
termination; EHEEFIXRER

ZIEREE:
to review and monitor the external s HMERMZEERE
auditor’s independence and objectivity Ko BS B2 HNEE A% B AD
and the effectiveness of the audit EEBUREIZ
process in accordance with applicable FREFEEAY:
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e to examine the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control which involves
regular review in various corporate
structures and business process;

e to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such reviews
includes finance, operations, regulatory
compliance, internal control systems
and risk management; and

e to discuss the risk management
and internal control systems
with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties
to have effective systems.

s BMHNAEEANIE
BE2AERE - B
EHmANSEAHA
TEREBHIE
7

s HEERINETRR
Mg KRBT N
WERATEBR PR
B 1% & 5K BE LA 4R
REBEXBEER
WMo ZERMABRE
M EE EE
iR B3 <F K m B
EREHE: &

e HEBRENREAER
RRNEEEERA
BREEEERETT
ﬁﬁ@fﬁW%%

<
S

2.3 The AC met two times during the Year and 23 BERZEENAFERT
reviewed the interim results of the Group ﬁﬁ//\guﬁc WEHNTEE
for the six months ended 30 September BE_T_="FNAA=T
2023 and the annual results of the Group EF,HE&%Z —B=F
for the year ended 31 March 2023. ZA=t—HILFENZ
The AC had also reviewed the Group’s i%i - ERZZBEN
financial reporting system, internal control EHNTAEENMBE R
system, external auditor’s independence, i%'Jr B+ S5 E
remuneration and effectiveness of the 9|\HEE ZEE R B
audit process, risk management system FMEZERERF 2B M
and associated procedures to ensure their Lﬂi [2 B & 32 X %t A0 A
adequacy and effectiveness, and its other AR UERHE R
duties under the Corporate Governance DA M RET(E
Code. The company secretary of the EERTADMIIEME
Company (the “Company Secretary”) of the T-BREEGZHR
Company keeps all minutes of the AC. The SRR BEALRRFNAT
attendance record of the meeting of the AC WE(RAWE)FE -
during the Year is set out below: ERZEERNAFES

E ARk U
No. of meetings
attended/held
2978 4
% -
Mr. Choi Wai Hin (chairman of
the AC) BRROAEFLZRELRE) 2/2
Mr. Ho Lai Hong ABESLE 2/2
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BAFEL 2/2
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Nomination Committee (the “NC”)

3.1

3.2

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E # E#ZE R AR A 7

The nomination committee was established
with terms of reference, which comprises
three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong
and Dr. Lo Yung Fong and one executive
Director Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian. Mr. Ho
Lai Hong, the independent non-executive
Director was appointed as the chairman
of nomination committee. The Company
adopted the Director’s nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”). The nomination
process of Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, is included in the
Nomination Policy.

The duties of the nomination committee are
as follows:

e to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy;

e to identify, and assess the suitability
and qualification of, candidates to
become Board members and select or
make recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

e to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors;
and

e to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning

in particular, the

chairman of the Board and the chief
executive of the Company.

for Directors,

3.
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The Board has adopted the Nomination
Policy, which set out the selection criteria
in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate as Director. Such criteria include
but are not limited to:

e reputation for integrity;

e accomplishment, experience and
reputation in the relevant industries/
sectors;

e commitment in respect of sufficient
time, interest and attention to the
Company’s business;

e diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age,
cultural/educational and professional
background, skills, knowledge and
experience;

e ability to assist and support
management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s
success;

e compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.10A and 3.13 of the Listing Rules
for the appointment of an independent
non-executive Director; and

e any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Board from time to
time.

TRERBES
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3.4 The nomination procedures are as follows:

e The chairman of the Board shall
nominate suitable candidates to the
Board and therefore shall convene a
meeting, and invite Board members,
for consideration by the Board.
The Board members may also
nominate candidates for the Board’s
consideration.

e In the context of appointment of any
candidate to the Board, the Board shall
undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make
approval.

e In the context of re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Board shall consider for the candidates
to stand for re-election at a general
meeting.

e Please refer to the “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director”, which is
available on the Company’s website,
for procedures for Shareholders’
nomination of any proposed candidate
for election as a Director.

e The Board shall have the final decision
on all matters relating to candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

3.5 The nomination committee will review the
board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and
discuss may revisions that may be required
and recommended any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.
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3.6 The nomination committee meets at
least once a year. The quorum necessary
for the transaction of business by the
nomination committee is two. During the
Year, the nomination committee met once.
The attendance record of the meeting of
nomination committee during the year is set

out below:

Corporate Governance Report
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36 BFEEL—RXEAHRESR

ZEg -REZBER
BEBIZEEABLM

A AREE RBHEZEE
BIIT—XEg&E - BERZ
BEgRAFEEE N
JBROER AT

No. of meetings
attended/held

HERE
BRERE
Mr. Ho Lai Hong
(chairman of the NC) MEBREE(EEZESERE) 11
Mr. Choi Wai Hin BHEHLE 1/1
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BERFEL 1/1
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian T E 11
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS C. ESETESFRE
1.1 The Company has adopted a Code for Securities 1.1 ARRERMAEEE=HE
Transactions by Directors of the Group (the TRAFXZGNZESTA(AF

1.2

“Company’s Model Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out
in Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors,
the Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in both the
Company’s Model Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2024.

1.2
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT D.
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Financial Reporting

1.1 The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable.

1.2 The management of the Company provides
explanation and information to the Board
as to enable the Board to make informed
assessments of the financial and other
information put before the Board for
approval.

1.3 The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage of
such information to include annual, interim
and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports
to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system
of risk management and internal controls
and is committed to managing business risks
and maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets.
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During the Year, the internal audit department
of the Group (the “Internal Audit Department”)
under the supervision of the Board and the AC,
has reviewed and reported on the adequacy of
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions annually. Based on the results
of the review, the Board considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate during the
Year.

The Board adopted the risk management
policy and internal risk management audit
plan, including structure and system of risk
management of the Group. The Internal Audit
Department together with the Audit Committee
will review the adequacy of the effectiveness of
the risk management at least once a year.

The Board’s had reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and considered all these to be adequacy
during the Year.

The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage instead of eliminating risks of failure
in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.
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The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the
AC. The responsible department heads will be
notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification. For the Year, the Internal Audit
Department mainly conducted operational
management audit over process of project
tendering and bidding, budgeting, on-site
certification, testing and acceptance materials
and equipment etc and other items with higher
risk index. The audit results have been presented
to the senior management, the AC and the Board.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating
inside information pursuant to Rules 13.09
and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Group has taken various procedures and
measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information
within the Group, signing of confidentiality
agreement, sending blackout period and
securities dealing restrictions notifications to
the Directors and relevant employees regularly,
disseminating information to specified persons
on a need-to-know basis and observing the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
in June 2012 stringently.

Risk Management

I.  Risk Management
Risks can be viewed as the combination of
the probability of an event and the impact
of its consequences. Events with a negative
impact represent risk that can prevent value
creation or erode existing value. In order to
deliver value to our shareholders and reduce
loss of the Company, the risk management
must understand the types of risks faced
by our corporation and address them
appropriately.
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Generally, risks to the Group’s success can

be grouped into four categories: (1) strategic,

(2) operational, (3) compliance and (4)

financial & reporting. Specific examples of
each type of risks are included in the table

below.

Strategic

Operational

Compliance

Financial &
Reporting

Reduction in business vitality
(due to change in business
strategy, customer spending
pattens, product discovery

& development, technology,
etc.)

Loss of intellectual property &
trade secrets

Competition for talent
Negative impact to reputation

Inefficient use of resources/
increase cost of materials

Physical property/damage/
disruption

Violation of laws or governing
areas such as

Environmental

Employee health & safety

Protection of personal data
Local tax and statutory laws
Currency exchange, funding

and cash flow, credit risk

Financial misstatement
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Il. Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”)

ERM is a common framework applied by
business management and other personnel
to identify potential events that may affect
the enterprise, manage the associated risks
and opportunities and provide reasonable
assurance that our Company’s objectives
will be achieved.

Through this approach of risk management,
we can:

e ensure prompt resolution of internally
identified risk to compliance with
laws and regulations to maintain
the provision of quality products,
protect stakeholder safety and
ensure appropriate relationships with
customers and suppliers;

e support “simplification” strategies
to ensure effective use of resources,
enable an optimized approach to
auditing and identification/remediation
of compliance issues and promote
reporting and monitoring across
compliance functions;

e enable improved decision making,
planning and prioritization through
a structured understanding of
opportunities and threats;

e support value creation by enabling
management to deal effectively with
future events that create uncertainty,
pose a significant risk or opportunity
and to respond in a prompt, efficient
and effective manner; and

ac:. :‘{?
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e support our growth drivers of creating
value through innovation, extending
our global reach with local focus,
executing with excellence and leading
with purpose.

ERM shall provide the Company and
the Group with both the structures and
mechanism to effectively manage existing
and emerging risks as well as enhance
its ability to take on additional risks
accompanying new growth opportunities.

e ERM shall provide a leading-edge,
strategic business process and function
that will ensure that all business risks
are identified, measured and managed
effectively and continuously within
a structured, robust, integrated, and
proactive framework.

e This risk management framework
is intended to enhance the Group’s
shareholder value by sustaining its
competitive advantage, optimizing risk
management costs, and enabling it to
pursue strategic growth opportunities
with efficiencies that surpass industry
standards.
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I1l.  ERM Process

The ERM process is scheduled to be
performed at least annually and definitely
in event of significant changes in internal
or external business environment or
whenever strategic/non-routine activities are
undertaken by the Group. The following are
key sub-processes in the ERM process.

1.  Risk identification, evaluation and
reporting:

A Identification of risk events
across Line of Business (LoB)
through risk assessment. Risk
identification shall identify
source of risk, areas of impacts,
events and their causes, and
their potential consequences.
The aim of this process is to
generate a comprehensive list of
risks based on those events that
might enhance, prevent, degrade,
or delay the achievement of the
objectives. It is also important to
identify the risks associated with
not pursuing an opportunity.

For each risk identified, the
risk identification process shall
include:

e Event: the event or circumstances
which may have a material
impact on the business objectives
(e.g. high staff turnover);
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e  Causes: the cause or source
of the risk (e.g. staff job
dissatisfaction); and

e Impacts: the nature of that
impact (i.e. inability to
achieve strategic objectives).

Analysing and evaluating risk

Risk analysis involves the assessment
of their positive and negative
consequences and the likelihood
that those consequences can
occur after taking into account
the causes and sources of risk and
the presence (or absence) and
effectiveness of existing controls.
The likelihood and consequences
are then combined to determine
the level of risk.

For each risk identified, the risk
analysis process shall include the
following:

e Existing control: the
adequacy of existing risk
controls.
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Risks shall be ranked by assigning
scores (i.e., an alphabet ranging
from A to E for likelihood and
a number ranging from 1 to 6
for consequence) to the two
dimensions of each risk category
based on the judgemental view of
Risk Owners.

Level of risks shall subsequently
be assessed in the most suitable
terms for that type of risk and in
the form that aids risk evaluation.
In some instance, a risk can
be expressed as a likelihood
distribution over a range of
consequences. It shall then be
mapped against the risk criteria to
determine the significance of the
level and type of risk.

Risk evaluation shall involve
comparing estimated levels of risk
with the established risk criteria
when the context was established
to determine the significance of
the level and type of risk.
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Factors affecting decision may

TERENA

include but not limited to, =0 RER
whether a risk needs treatment, Tl@b’/\ﬂ %@ =
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D  Reporting
Reporting risk events collated
and prioritized to the Risk
management organization
structure, including LoB/function
heads and the Board.

IV. Risk Monitoring and Assurance

A.

Reporting to the Board on the
risk profile and effectiveness of
implementation of mitigation plans.

Annual Risk Management Reporting
Scheme

There shall be annual, bottom-up risk
assessments by LoB and the corporate
functions. The annual risk register shall
be submitted by all LoBs concomitantly
with the submission of the business
plan and budget for the ensuing
years. The presentation of an updated
to key risk profile shall be formally
included into the annual business plan
presentation by all LoBs.

The completed risks registers are then
consolidated at the Group level to
develop a Group risk profile so as to
provide an overview and an ongoing
monitoring tool to assist the Board in
forming an opinion as to whether there
is a systematic process for identifying
and addressing the Group’s key risks.
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B. Monitoring the ERM process activities
to ensure their timely and appropriate
execution. Risks and control measures
shall be monitored and reviewed on a
regular basis to verify that:

e assumptions about risks remain
valid;

e assumptions on which risk the
assessment is based, in particular,
the external and internal context,
remain valid;

e expected results are being
achieved;

e results of risk assessment are in
line with actual experience;

e risk assessment techniques are
being properly applied; and

o risk treatments are effective.
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TEERABRES

Risk Management Objectives
Rz EIE B 1Z

Risk Identification, evaluation and reporting

EE SN

Risk mitigation

R R

Risk monitoring and assurance

R B R M AR FE

b @ o

@ b

STRUCTURE
e

Risk Management Policy Roles and responsibilities
BB B BR ABREE

4.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy
(the “Whistleblowing Policy”) since June 2022.
The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is
to commit to the highest possible standards of
openness, probity and accountability. It provides
the employees of the Group with protection,
support, reporting channels and guidance on
whistleblowing. The nature, status and the
results of the complaints received under the
Whistleblowing Policy are reported to designated
officers and the Audit Committee. No incident
of fraud or misconduct that have material effect
on the Group’s financial statements or overall
operations for the year ended 31 March 2024
was discovered. The Whistleblowing Policy is
reviewed annually by the Audit Committee to
ensure its effectiveness.

Monitoring activities
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Anti-corruption

The Group has developed and implemented
anti-corruption and anti-bribery systems.
Under the authorisation of the management,
the Internal Audit Department implements
daily anti-corruption and anti-fraud measures,
including handling complaints, ensuring the
protection of whistleblowers, conducting internal
investigations, and reporting to the Board. For
any discovered corrupt or fraudulent behavior,
the Group takes remedial measures and
preventive methods to avoid similar incidents in
future.

The Group regularly provides anti-corruption
compliance training to senior management and
employees, enhancing their understanding of
relevant laws and regulations. Relevant policies
and explicit provisions prohibiting violations have
incorporated in the Employee Handbook and
the Employee Code of Ethics. During the Year,
all new employees have received anti-corruption
compliance training; all Board members have
received director responsibility training, including
supervising the Group’s anti-corruption and anti-
bribery matters.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to KPMG, the
Group’s external auditor RMB1,131,000 for
audit services and for non-audit related services
approximately RMB626,000, representing mainly
taxation services and other non-audit service
fees.
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey pertinent
information to Shareholders in a clear, detailed,
timely manner and on a regular basis and to take
into consideration their views and inputs, and to
address the Shareholders’ concerned. Their views
are communicated to the Board comprehensively.

The Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Shareholders’
Communication Policy”) and reviews it on
an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The purpose of this policy is to ensure the
Shareholders are provided with prompt and
equal access to information about the Company
(including but not limited to its financial
performance, corporate goals and strategies,
significant developments, corporate governance
and risk exposure), in order to enable the
Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall
performance, exercise their rights in an informed
manner and engage actively with the Company.

The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, circulars,
results announcements and news releases.
All communications to Shareholders are
also available on the Company’s website at
www.krpd.com.hk.

We had provided sufficient notice for
Shareholders at all general meetings. The AGM
provides a useful platform for Shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The chairman
of the Board and the Board members will make
an effort to attend to answer Shareholders’
questions. External auditor is also available at the
annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries about the conduct of the audit.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors.
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All votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll according to the Listing
Rules. The chairman of the meeting will therefore
demand a poll for every resolution put to the
vote of the AGM pursuant to Article 66 of the
Articles of Association.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

Results announcement

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new
investors.

Annual reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed periods stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. The Company can still
provide the Shareholders and investors with an
adequate degree of transparency and information
of the financial position of the Company.

Communication of media, analysts and
investors

The Group endeavours to enhance the
transparency. We have close communication
with media, analysts and both institutional and
individual investors after the release of the
interim and final results by way of presentation,
luncheons, meetings or telephone conferences
etc. according to circumstances from time to
time in order to share the performances of the
Group during the relevant period results and
to report the new development and strategy
of the Group’s business. There is also ample
opportunity for all parties to ask questions and to
communicate with each other. Furthermore, the
Group shall reply and handle rapidly, as we have
received enquiries from media and individual
Shareholders.
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Website

The Group regularly releases corporate
information, such as awards received, and the
latest news of the Group’s developments on its
Company’s website. The public are welcome to
give their comments and make their enquiries
through the Company’s website, the management
will give their prompt response.

Shareholder Communication Policy

The Board has reviewed the Shareholders
Communication Policy and its implementation
effectiveness for the year ended 31 March
2024. The Company has provided appropriate
communication channels to the Shareholders
in accordance with the Shareholders
Communication Policy and therefore the
existing Shareholders Communication Policy in
appropriate to the Company and considered that
the Shareholders’” Communication Policy was
effective during the Year.

G. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles,
extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the written requisition of one or
more members deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Block C, 9/F,,
Southeast Industrial Building, 611-619 Castle
Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong
Kong specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such
requisitionist(s) hold, as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company.

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing at the
Company’s head office and principal place of
business or the Company’s website.
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3. Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting
There are no provisions in the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Companies Act
for Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings. The Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. As regards proposing a person for
election as a director of the Company, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director” of
the Company which is posted on the Company’s
website.

(@) to give to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them
any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

Any enquires or suggestions by Shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at our head office and principal place
of business (Block C, 9/F., Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong) or email
(ir@krpd.com.hk) to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group’s affairs and assists the Board in functionary
effectively. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. During
the Year, the Company Secretary has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, there had been no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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Senior Management Profile

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Man Chung, aged 67, was appointed as our
Director on 2 September 2020 and is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of our Company. He is
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Ho Man Chung joined our Group on 1 April 2017. He is
responsible for overall management and daily operation of
our Group.

Mr. Ho Man Chung has over 20 years of experience in
management and the property development industry. He
was a general manager of Castfast Properties Development
Company Limited from January 2002 to June 2010 and
a general manager of Yangshuo Resort Hotel ([5¥/E &
B JE) from January 2011 to March 2011. Mr. Ho Man
Chung was a general manager (Properties Development)
of Karrie Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of
Karrie International, from June 2011 to March 2017. He
then became a general manager of Karrie Properties
Management Limited, a member of our Group, since
April 2017. Mr. Ho Man Chung graduated from St. Luke’s
Co-educational College, Hong Kong in June 1975.

Mr. HO Wai Hon, Brian, aged 34, was appointed as
our Director on 2 September 2020 and is an executive
Director of our Company. He is also the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian
joined our Group on 1 September 2020. He is responsible
for overall corporate strategies and planning, business
development and corporate relation functions of our
Group. Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian is a member of the RC and
NC.
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Senior Management Profile

Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian graduated with a Bachelor of
Science with Honours in Economics from University
of York, United Kingdom in July 2011 and obtained a
Master of Science (MSc) in Investment Analysis in Aston
Business School, United Kingdom in March 2013. Mr.
Ho Wai Hon, Brian has over ten years of experience
in finance, management and the property industry. He
started his career as an assistant to the general manager of
Karrie Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of Karrie
International, from November 2012 to June 2014. He has
been an assistant to the chairman of Karrie Industrial
Company Limited since July 2014 and head of finance
and accounting department of the same company since
November 2017. Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian is son of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, our non-executive Director and chairman of the
Board.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 59, was appointed as our
Director on 8 March 2022 and is an executive Director
of our Company. She is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Yiu joined our Group on 1
September 2020. She is responsible for overall operation of
human resources and administration of our Group.

Ms. Yiu has over 23 years of experience in managing the
production process of manufacturing industries and 9
years of experience in overall personnel and administration
management. Ms. Yiu joined Karrie Industrial Company
Limited, a subsidiary of Karrie International, in August 1984
as a team leader of production line. She was promoted to
the director of central production management department
and the assistant general manager of central production
management department in March 1999 and August 2000,
respectively. She has become general manager of human
resources and administration department (PRC) since
September 2012. Ms. Yiu graduated from The Y.W.C.A.
Hioe Tjo Yoeng College, Hong Kong in July 1983.

Mr. ZHU Nianhua, aged 56, was appointed as our Director
on 8 March 2022 and is an executive Director of our
Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined our Group on 10 November
1996. He is responsible for overall operation of accounting,
compliance, risk management and service management of
our Group.
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Senior Management Profile

Mr. Zhu graduated from Anhui University of Finance and
Economics (% B B & K 2) (formerly known as Anhui
Finance and Trade Vocational College (% & 8 & £ ft))
in Accounting in June 1994 and obtained a Bachelor in
Accounting from South China Normal University (% g
F & K2 ) in July 2006 through online education. Mr.
Zhu obtained a Qualification Certificate of Specialty
and Technology in Accountancy (Corporate) issued by
the Ministry of Personnel, PRC in May 1996. In August
2005, he obtained the qualification of a Certified Public
Accountant issued by The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Zhu is a non-practising member of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 2020. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience
in accounting and finance. Mr. Zhu was a general ledger
accountant in Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited, a
subsidiary of our Company, from November 1996 to March
2000. He has become an Assistant Financial Controller of
Dongguan City Jiaxuntong (REM R AMBERER AR A
a]) from December 2002 to July 2020.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 78, was appointed as our Director
on 8 March 2022 and is a non-executive Director of
our Company and chairman of the Board. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai joined our Group on 8 March 2022. He is responsible
for developing corporate strategies of our Group.

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai has over 40 years of experience in
business management. He founded Karrie International
Group in the 1980s and has been a chairman, executive
director and chief executive officer since the shares of
Karrie International have been listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 16 December 1996. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Karrie International
and is responsible for its overall corporate strategies and
objectives.

MEER—NNEESREERTRY
KRB (FIBLTRNEER)GHER -
WYRZZEZERFLAZRABLHUEE
SEHMBARAEBSHEE LB )
EER—NAARNERARAESFEAEZE
BENGFB(ER) XXM TR
BRBE NRZETRFNR KERS
PRSI HETERORES
ME® BT_TFNLAR HMELE
APEFMEMBENIERNESE -
MAERSFHRVBETEEESA T
BE - MEER—NARNFET—HAHEZ
TZETF= ARAKRRINHE AR EH
REBRIECRERARETARS
e BRZTEEF+_AEZT=F
FLtAREREMRABEREREBR
NAE(EB) IR B T 4B EL o

FHTES

MEgEEE £t + N\ A2
“AN\BEZERES  BARAMIE
WITESREZSIF - BTALEE
HETHBARIZES - AlEELEERS
T _F=ZANBMAXREER - FEE
HIFT RSB A b E KR o

e ENEKERTMEE AN+
FRB BN — ﬂﬂfiﬂi z ) B
BEE ZAEER—AASNFET=ZA
+AEF%”%£WLm H—EEE
FHE WITESRITRAE - AR
FMERETHBRARMNES  AEEE
RBEERBERERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 % ¥§ 59
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Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai was appointed a member of the 10th
Guangdong Provincial Committee of Political Consultative
Conference (EXEFETEHHZEE) in December 2007
and was reappointed as a member of the 11th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan
City, Guangdong Province (ER& R 5 %+ — EHIK %
Z B) in December 2006. He was also awarded as the
Honorable Citizen of Dongguan City ( %%ﬁéﬁéﬁmﬁ
and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City (EH M & &M E) in
October 1996 and October 2008, respectively. The solid
business knowledge and working experience gained by Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai throughout the years are recognised by the
industries. He was awarded the Honorary Fellowship of the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in
December 2021. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is father of Mr. Ho Wai
Hon, Brian, our executive Director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Wai Hin, aged 44, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2023.
He is responsible for providing independent opinion and
judgement to our Board. He is also the chairman of the AC
and a member of the RC and the NC.

Mr. Choi graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy in
November 2002. Mr. Choi has over 20 years of experience
in financial management, accounting and auditing. He
joined KPMG, a multinational accounting organisation, in
March 2004, and became a senior manager in October
2009 until August 2014. Mr. Choi then served as the chief
financial officer at Karrie International from August 2014
to December 2019, and the chief financial officer of Weiye
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1570), from December
2019 to November 2022. He is the chief financial officer of
Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited, the issued
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2298), since November 2022. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Sterling
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1825), from July
2022 to January 2024. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2015.
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Mr. HO Lai Hong, aged 66, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2023, responsible for providing independent opinion and
judgement to our Board. He is also the chairman of the NC
and a member of the AC and RC.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong graduated with a Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 1993. Mr. Ho Lai Hong has over
35 years of banking, corporate finance and management
experiences. He joined the Hong Kong Branch, Mizuho
Bank Limited from July 1987 to March 2018, with his last
positions as the General Manager in Hong Kong Corporate
Banking Department, and the Alternative Chief Executive
of the branch. During which, he was also a Securities and
Futures Commission licensed representative of Mizuho
Securities Asia Limited, a company principally engaging
in investment banking business, from August 2013 to June
2015. Mr. Ho Lai Hong was an independent non-executive
director of Foshan Water and Environmental Protection
Co., Ltd., a company principally engaging in water supply
services, from October 2018 to August 2020. He was an
independent non-executive director of Leo Paper Group
(Hong Kong) Ltd from April 2019 to March 2023. He has
been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code:
551) since May 2019, and has also been an independent
non-executive director of Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 321) since August 2022 and was re-designated
as an executive director and Chief Executive Officer of
Texwinca Holdings Limited in November 2023 and January
2024, respectively.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong is a fellow of The Chartered Governance
Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute since September 2019. He is also a fellow and
council member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
since February 2020 and July 2020, respectively, and
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute since September 2021.

Dr. LO Yung Fong, aged 70, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2023.
She is responsible for providing independent opinion and
judgement to our Board. She is the chairman of the RC and
a member of the AC and NC.
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Dr. Lo graduated with a Bachelor of Arts in General
Sociology from the University of Waterloo in May 1976
and a Bachelor of Commerce in Honours Business
Administration from University of Windsor in October
1977. She then obtained a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration from Brunel University in May 1998. She
was awarded a Doctor of Business Administration from
University of South Australia in December 2001.

Dr. Lo has over 38 years of experience in education.
She started her career at Hong Kong Baptist University
as an assistant lecturer at the Secretarial Management
Department in September 1983 to August 2018, with
her last position as the director of Community Relations,
Department of Management. During which, she was an
associate director of Institute for Enterprise Development
and Management Research in September 2006 and
promoted to a director in September 2007 to June 2008.
She was then an associate director of Institute of Enterprise
Development and Wing Lung International Institute for
Business Development from July 2008 to June 2009. She
has been a manager of English Wise Learning Centre, a
school principally engaging in English education programs,
since May 2020.

Dr. Lo obtained a Certificate in Personnel in Industrial
Relations issued by the Council of Canadian Personnel
Association in September 1977. She published “Business
Succession: 11 outstanding Enterprise Leaders Concerning
Management & Succession” (FrXEE+—AEEEE
EM A E 12 B {E ) through Hong Kong Economic Times
Limited in January 2019.

MANAGEMENT

Mr. WONG Ho Kwan, aged 48,
officer and company secretary of our Company and is
primarily responsible for the overall management of the

is the chief financial

finance and accounting, taxation and treasury of our
Group.

#ELR ﬂf/\iﬂﬂ%%ﬁ/\\/ ﬁz
EXRE EE—MBUEEEXELTE[

ﬁﬁﬁé*ﬂﬁkiﬂ”ﬂ%%ﬁ@mﬁk%’
EEINERLENEELTEM - K
EER—NWNANFRAESHEARK
BTHEEBELEMN BR-ZZEZE—F
TAEERERAZEINE ﬁ%i%

fiz

BRELTRNHETEAEEBR=T/\FHK
B MR —HWN=ZFALAZEZZE-NF
NAEEZEBREAENEEERER
BIRER RERBURKEERLRH
REE - ERHEBE  BRZZEZTRFN
ARECXEREATEHARMAIME -
R-ZEZ+FNAZE_ZTZNFRAE
HUFEEAR - BREHERZFTNF
Tt RAE_ZETNFNARELRERR
TT P Re ok B 4R 17 B R P B R FU PR Il PR
Ko KB _ZT_TF 0 ARLEFEnglish
Wise Learning Centre (—El X Z{E F &
BHERENBER)HLIRE -

BELIR-NEtEtFNLAEBSMEX

A%% BESHEENLEBEREASE
Z -FR_ZE-NF-AEFBLEH
ﬁﬁ@ RIBRIHFAEET—A: D
CEBHATIEEEA] -

EEAB

BEEBRE WA\ ARRWNEE
MHBERARME  TEREAKEN
ERMBhes BEAREHKEE -

62 KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E#i EE R E R 2 A



Senior Management Profile

Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Accountancy from The City University of Hong Kong
in November 1998 and obtained a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing University, PRC in
March 2012. Mr. Wong obtained the qualification of a
Certified Public Accountant issued by Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in January 2002 and
Certified Internal Auditor issued by the Institute of internal
Auditors in May 2004.

Mr. Wong has over 21 years of experience in accountancy
and finance. He started his career in September 1998
acting key positions in accounting and finance aspects. His
recent main positions were a vice president of Treasury
in ECO Environmental Investment Limited (5 S &R %
BEERRA
Gas Company Limited, an energy supplier in Hong Kong

), a subsidiary of The Hong Kong and China

and the PRC whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3), in September 2012 to
April 2020. He was a director and general manager of ECO
Zhuoxin (Shanghai) Financial Leasing Company Limited (5
mEMLEEBRERERARAR)
engaging in professional leasing service, from August 2019
to April 2020. He joined Karrie International and our Group
as the chief financial officer in April 2020 and September
2020, respectively.

, a company principally

Ms. YANG Xiuchun, aged 37, is the manager of human
resources and administration of our Group and is
responsible for the overall management of human resources
and administration of our Group. Ms. Yang graduated with
a Bachelor Degree in Modern Corporate Management
from South China Normal University (¥ A0 & K2 in
January 2015. She obtained an Occupational Qualification
Certificate of a First Level Senior Technician in corporate
human resource management issued by Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security, PRC in February 2020.
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Ms. Yang has over ten years of experience in human
resources and administration. Ms. Yang started her career
as an Administration and human resources manager in
Shenzhen Runtong Financial Guarantee Company Limited
(RYITHBREERARALQR), a company engages in
financial guarantee services, from May 2010 to June 2013.
Prior to joining our Group in March 2017 as a Manager
of Human resource and administration, she worked as a
manager of the Comprehensive administration department
in Shenzhen Huanuo Planning Research Institute Company
Limited (R Y| ZE 55 32 2| B B B BR 2 7)), a building design
company, from June 2013 to February 2017.

Mr. GUO Laifu, aged 48, is the assistant internal audit
director of our Group and is responsible for the overall
internal control and risk management of our Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from Hubei College of Finance and
Economics (LB & & F HE R 2 ) in Foreign accounting
(% 9 & ) in July 1997 and Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics ( B 4k Bf #&£ X £ ) in Finance
Management through distance learning in January 2008.
Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of a Certified Internal
Auditor issued by The Institute of Internal Auditors in
November 2011 and the Qualification of Real Estate
Agent Professional issued by China Institute of Real Estate

Appraisers and Agents in October 2018.

Mr. Guo has over 18 years of experience in audit. He was
an internal auditor of Dongguan Fenggang Jiahui Plastic
Hardware Company Limited (RZEBEEZ B 2B A EH
fR 2 7A]), a subsidiary of Karrie International, in February
2004 and promoted to the assistant internal audit director
in March 2021.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in

— A boutique residential property developer which
mainly engaged in development and sales of
residential properties in the developing residential
markets in Dongguan, Huizhou and Foshan in the
PRC.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on pages
8 to 18, in Report of the Directors in pages 65 to 90 and
Financial Highlights on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group is contained in Corporate Governance Report on
pages 19 to 56 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share (2022/23 final dividend: HK4.0 cents
per share), to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 6 September 2024.
Together with the interim dividend, total dividend paid/
payable for this year amounted to HK2.0 cents per share
(2022/23: HK4.0 cents per share). The final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") of
the Company to be held on 30 August 2024.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 143 to 144
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves
of approximately RMB306,300,000 were available for
distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to RMB5,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has recognised the importance of good
utilization of resources long time ago and not to exploit the
rights of using resources for the next generation. The Group
adheres to the vision of the chairman of the Company. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, that is with heartfelt dedication in all details,
and saves resources for the next generation. As such, the
Group’s production adheres to the concept of reducing
energy or material consumption from the sources with the
adoption of various environmental friendly measures and
addition of energy-saving equipment. With the concept of
green and cleaner production implemented in practice, the
Group continues to formulate policies for green production
and energy-saving policies, while introducing different
kinds of environmentally friendly equipment to attain
the objectives of cleaner production and environmental
protection and to comply with relevant environmental
regulations. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group
and its Stakeholders including Shareholders, partners,
employees, suppliers, regulators and the public in coming
up with benchmarks and regarding key issues.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report Guide contained in
Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules, the sustainability report
contains in this annual report from page 91 to 132.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance
with such requirements. The Group has been implementing
system and allocating staff resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China
while the Company itself was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our establishment and
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, Cayman Islands and the
PRC. The Group had complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in all material respects.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated
and it regularly reviews and improves its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training, occupational health
and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers.
A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive, analyse and study complaints and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-up
approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories
and indicators of risks. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group:

1. we are susceptible to adverse movements in the
PRC and real estate market, particularly in regions
and cities where property development projects are
located;

2. we generated all of our revenue from business in
Dongguan and Huizhou and any significant decline
in economic conditions of the property markets of
this area could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition and business
prospects;

3. our operations are subject to extensive government
policies and regulations, and in particular, we are
susceptible to adverse changes in policies relating to
our PRC property sector and in local policies in the
regions in where we operate; and
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the timing of our property sales and progress of our
property development projects may cause our results
and operations to fluctuate from period to period,
making it difficult to predict our future financial
performance.

To mitigate the risk of the new business, the Group has
adopted the following initiatives in response:

to better handle the opportunities and challenges
posed by policy changes, the Group has established
a professional team to maintain close communication
with the relevant authorities and thoroughly study
policy trends so as to adopt a more flexible approach
to sales in response to such changes;

to reduce costs, deliver quality properties at lower
costs and compete effectively in the market, the
professional management team closely monitors
the quality, progress, safety and materials of the
development projects; and

the Group will focus on the sales of Phases 4 and 5 of
Castfast Villas, Dongguan and development in Greater
Bay Area. We always seek financial stability and firmly
believe in our prudent financial management and
cost-reduction oriented operation principles, adopting
our usual balanced policies to achieve stable and
substantial investment return. Furthermore, we will
put effort into optimizing our internal organization
structure to reduce operating cost and secure positive
cash flow. We believe that a strong financial base is
essential for us to face new challenges and explore
new opportunities.
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SHARE SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme which was adopted on 26
August 2022 was terminated on 30 August 2023 (the “Old
Scheme”).
remained outstanding as at the aforesaid termination date
and no options has been granted under the Old Scheme

No options granted under the Old Scheme

since the aforesaid termination date. The new share option
scheme of the Company was approved by the Shareholders
and adopted on 30 August 2023 (the “New Scheme”). No
share option has been granted, exercised, vested, cancelled
or lapsed under the New Scheme during the Year. No
Options had been granted since the adoption of the New
Scheme, accordingly, there was no outstanding Options as
at 31 March 2024. Unless otherwise specified, capitalised
terms used in this section shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the circular of the Company dated 28 July
2023 (the “Circular”). The key terms of the New Scheme
are summarized as below:

(i) The New Scheme is to motivate the Eligible
Participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and attract
and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to
the Group.

(i) The Board may at its discretion grant Options to any
(@) Employee Participant; (b) Related Entity Participant;
and (c) Service Provider.

(iii) Any grant of Options to any Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any their
respective Associates must be approved by all of the
independent non-executive Directors excluding, for
all purposes, any independent non-executive Director
who is a proposed Grantee.
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(iv)

(vi)

Where any grant of Options to an independent non-
executive Director or a Substantial Shareholder, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the
total number of the Shares issued and to be issued
in respect of all options (including the Options)
an awards granted to such person under the New
Scheme and all other share schemes in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue, such grant of Options must be approved by
the Shareholders of the Company in general meeting
in the manner set out in Rule 17.04(4) of the Listing
Rules. The Grantee, his associates and all core
connected persons of the Company must abstain
from voting in favour at such general meeting. The
Company must send a circular to its shareholders
containing the information required under the Listing
Rules.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
in respect of all options and awards to be granted
under the New Scheme and any other share schemes
shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the Adoption Date (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) i.e. 50,536,480 Shares, representing 10% of
the total issued Shares of the Company (excluding
treasury shares, if any) as at the date of this annual
report.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
in respect of all options and awards to be granted
under the New Scheme and any other share schemes
to Service Providers must not, in aggregate exceed 1%
of the number of Shares in issue as at the Adoption
Date (the “Service Provider Sub-limit”) i.e. 5,053,648
Shares, representing 1% of the total issued Shares of
the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any) as at
the date of this annual report.
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(vii)

(viii)
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The Board may seek separate Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting to grant Options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in
excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only
to the Eligible Participants specified by the Company
before such approval is sought and the Company must
issue a circular to the Shareholders containing such
relevant information from time to time required by the
Listing Rules in relation to any such proposed grant to
such Eligible Participants.

The Company may seek approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Mandate
Limit and the Service Provider Sub-limit after three
(3) years from the date of the first Shareholders’
approval for such limits or for the last refreshment (as
the case may be). Any refreshment within any three-
year period must be approved by the Shareholders,
with any controlling shareholders and their associates
(or if there is no controlling shareholder, Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Directors)
and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates) abstaining from voting in favour
of the relevant resolution at the general meeting. The
total number of Shares which may be issued in respect
of all options and awards to be granted under all of
the share scheme(s) under the scheme mandate as
refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the refreshed scheme
mandate.
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(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

The maximum number of Shares issued or to be
issued in respect of all options and awards granted to
a Grantee at any one time or in aggregate under the
New Scheme and all other share schemes (excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the respective share schemes) in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of such
relevant grant should not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Individual Limit”).
Where any grant of Options to a Grantee may result
in exceeding the Individual Limit, the Company shall
not grant such Options unless it is separately approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting, with such
Grantee and his close associates (or associates if
the Grantee is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

The period within which the Options must be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant, but shall expire no later than 10 years
from the relevant date of grant.

At the time of grant of the Options, the Company may
specify any minimum period(s) for which an Option
must be held before it can be exercised. The New
Scheme does not contain any such minimum period.

At the time of the grant of the Options, the Company
may specify any performance target(s) which must
be achieved before the Options can be exercised.
The New Scheme does not contain any performance
targets.

(xiii) A non-refundable remittance of HK$1 by way of

consideration for the grant of an Option is refunded
to be paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the
Option.

(xiv) Subject to adjustments made in a situation

contemplated under the New Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any Option shall be at
the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall not
be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of a Share as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant (which must be a business day) in
respect of such option;
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(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of grant in respect of
such option; and

(¢) the nominal value of a share.

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company and adopted on 30 August 2023 and
is valid for 10 years. Accordingly, the remaining life of
this New Scheme is approximately 9 years.

(xv)

(xvi) The vesting period of the New Scheme shall not be
less than 12 months.

For more details, please refer to Appendix Ill to the
Circular.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The share award plan was approved by the shareholders
of the Company and adopted on 30 August 2023 and is
valid for 10 years. Accordingly, the remaining life of the
Share Award Plan is approximately 9 years. No awards had
been granted, vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Award Plan during the Year. No awards had been granted
since the adoption of the Share Award Plan, accordingly,
there was no unvested awards as at 31 March 2024. Unless
otherwise specified, capitalised terms used in this section
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
Circular. The key terms of the Share Award Plan have been
summarized as below:

(i)  The purpose and objective of the Share Award Plan is:
(a) to recognise and reward the contribution of certain
Eligible Participants to the growth and development of
the Group and to provide incentives in order to retain
them for continual operation and development of the
Group; and (b) to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.
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(iii)

(iv)

The Board may at its discretion grant an Award to any
(i) Employee Participant; (ii) Related Entity Participant;
and (iii) Service Provider.

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued in respect of all options and awards to be
granted under the Share Award Plan and any other
share schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date, i.e.
50,536,480 Shares, representing 10% of the total
issued Shares of the Company (excluding treasury
shares, if any) as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
in respect of all options and awards to be granted
under the Share Award Plan and any other share
schemes to Service Providers must not, in aggregate
exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date, i.e. 5,053,648 Shares, representing 1%
of the total issued Shares of the Company (excluding
treasury shares, if any) as at the date of this annual
report.

The maximum number of Shares issued or to be issued
in respect of all options and awards granted to a
Selected Participant at any one time or in aggregate
under the Share Award Plan and all other share
schemes (excluding any options and awards lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the respective share
schemes) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such relevant grant should not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Where
any Award to a Selected Participant may result in
exceeding the Individual Limit, the Company shall not
grant such Awards unless it is separately approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting, with such
Selected Participant and his close associates (or
associates if the Selected Participant is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.
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(vi) Where any Award to a Director (other than an

independent non-executive Director) or chief
executive of the Company, or any of his associates
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued in
respect of all awards granted to such person under
the Share Award Plan and all other share award plans
(excluding any awards lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the respective share award plans) in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of such
relevant grant, representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the issued share capital of the Company, such
further Award must be approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting, with such Selected Participant,
his associates and all core connected persons of the
Company abstaining from voting in favour at such
general meeting.

Where any Award to an independent non-executive
Director or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
any of his associates would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued in respect of all options and awards
granted to such person under the Share Award Plan
and all other share schemes (excluding any options
or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
respective share schemes) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant, representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued share capital of
the Company, such Award must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting, with such Selected
Participant, his associates and all core connected
persons of the Company abstaining from voting in
favour at such general meeting.

(viii) There is no amount payable on acceptance of the

Award, no purchase price is payable by the Eligible
Participants upon vesting of the Awards, and the
vesting period of Award granted under Share Award
Plan shall not be less than 12 months.

For more details, please refer to Appendix IV to the
Circular.
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According to the Scheme Mandate Limit, the maximum
total number of new Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options and awards to be granted under
the Share Award Plan together with the New Scheme (the
“Share Schemes”), and other share schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the Adoption Date. Accordingly, the number
of Options and/or Awards available for grant under the
Scheme Mandate Limit of the Share Schemes at the
beginning and the end of the Year were nil and 50,536,480
Shares in aggregate, respectively.

In addition, the Service Provider Sublimit in respect of the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options and awards to be granted under the Share
Schemes, and other share schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date. Accordingly, the number of Options and/
or Awards available for grant under the Service Provider
Sublimit of the Share Schemes at the beginning and the end
of the Year were nil and 5,053,648 Shares in aggregate,
respectively.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of
options and awards granted under all schemes of the
Company during the Year divided by the weighted average
number of Shares in issue (i.e. 505,364,800) is nil.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the shares in the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
240 to 241 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
any actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their
functions.

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the
Directors during the Year.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD BY THE GROUP
As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not hold any
significant investment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not pledge any assets.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had no outstanding bank
borrowings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Man Chung (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian

Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung

Mr. Zhu Nianhua

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wai Hin
Mr. Ho Lai Hong
Dr. Lo Yung Fong

Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong and Dr. Lo Yung Fong
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of one year with effect from 23 March 2024 subject
to extension by mutual agreement and retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company as and when required under the Articles of
Association.

In accordance with Article 83(3) and 84 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Yiu Yuet
Fung and Mr. Zhu Nianhua will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
All such Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract or letter
of appointment, as applicable, with the Company which
is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Year, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which any of the Group companies was
a party and in which a Director was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

For the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no such
rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares
or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. There
was no arrangement to which the Company and any of
its subsidiaries is a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors, or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other
corporation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Group did not enter into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
that are not exempted from annual reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements are fully exempt connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 March 2024

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (b) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO;
or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Interests in the Company RAERF ZE @

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

BRAEBIIET 2 EBREE
Personal Family Corporate/ Shareholding
interests interests Other interests  Total interests percentage
EEER

BARR FERE SEMER AR BRASR

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai EELE 69,678,000 27,587,500 269,402,000 366,667,500 72.56%
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(H#-) (H#—) (Hit=)

Mr. Ho Man Chung X BEE 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 0.20%
(Note 3)
H#=)
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian fETEE 942,500 = = 942,500 0.19%
(Note 4)
(i)
Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung AR/ 930,000 — — 930,000 0.18%
(Note 5)
(i)
Mr. Choi Wai Hin ZRHERL 52,500 = — 52,500 0.01%
(Note 6)
H#~)
Notes: oz
1. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consisted of 69,678,000 — - WEEELE ZE AR B69,678,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 27,587,500 Shares PR o e B AR R A A
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner. BEUERLEIFEFRESEREAREAL

27,587,500 8% B 17 °
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2. The 269,402,000 Shares comprised (i) 121,902,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New Sense”); (ii)
82,500,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties Development
Co., Limited (“Castfast Properties”), 87% of the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Honford Investments
Limited (“Honford Investments”), where New Sense and
Honford Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF (B.V.1.)
Ltd. (“TMF”) as trustee for a discretionary trust, which is a
family trust with Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai being the settlor (“The
Ho Family Trust”); and (iii) 65,000,000 Shares held by The
Wedding City Co., Limited (“The Wedding City”), 90% and
10% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in the 204,402,000
Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in
65,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms. Ho
Po Chu is the beneficiary of The Ho Family Trust and is thus
deemed to be interested in the 204,402,000 Shares held under
The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu in the 204,402,000 Shares duplicate
with each other.

3. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Man Chung comprised
1,000,000 Shares.

4. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian comprised
942,500 Shares.

5. The personal interests of Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung comprised 930,000
Shares.

6.  The personal interests of Mr. Choi Wai Hin comprised 52,500
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company or their respective associates had any interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or (c) pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 March 2024.
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82,500,000% f& 7 - EE B ITHR A Z
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([Honford Investments]) & 5 ¥ A -
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2024, none of Directors were interested
in any business apart from the Company’s business, which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The power to make material business decisions for the
Group is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board
considers that there may be a conflict of interest between
the Group and any Director, such Director will be required
to abstain from voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of
carrying on the Group’s business independently of, and at
arm’s length, from the business of Directors.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has entered into the deed of non-
competition dated 21 February 2023 (“Deed of Non-
competition”) with the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu,
New Sense, Honford Investments, Castfast Properties and
The Wedding City, pursuant to which each of them has,
among other matters, irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken to the Company on a joint and several basis,
each of them would, and would procure their respective
associates (other than the Group) not to, whether directly
or indirectly, either on its own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, carry
on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or
hold any activity or business which competes or is likely
to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The Company has received an annual declaration from
each of the controlling shareholders of the Company
confirming their compliance with their undertaking under
the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31 March
2024. The independent non-executive Directors have also
review such annual declaration and are of the view that the
controlling shareholders of the Company have complied
with the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 March 2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZE-_NFE=ZA=+—H

The interests or short positions of the persons (other WRIEFHKIEEFIEXVEF2RES
than Chief Executive of the Company) in the shares or D HHETE - LTAT(TBEIEARR Z &
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be  ®1TEA B)RAR AR5 &8 E K7D
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions ~HH#EZHFORE - SKEEIHEEEFE
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly or indirectly {8 R AEE5%3 A E89#Ez= - I
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class BEERRERRXEHMABEBATIREX
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances ¥ B RIE AR B BIR(EFIEHI)E336
of general meetings, or as recorded in the register required 1§17 & 2 B2z -

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

SREBIOETZEERHE
Personal Family Corporate/ Shareholding
interests interests ~ Other interests  Total interests percentage
Name of EEER
Shareholder RR&® BAER FEER HEMER AiER RRAESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai B4 69,678,000 27,587,500 269,402,000 366,667,500 72.56%
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3)

(Hit—) Wit-) (Hit=)

Ms. Ho Po Chu MERL T 27,587,500 134,678,000 204,402,000 366,667,500 72.56%
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hrit=) (Hit=) (Hit=

New Sense — 121,902,000 — — 121,902,000 24.12%
(Note 4)
Witm)
Castfast Properties RERHE 82,500,000 — — 82,500,000 16.33%
(Note 5)
(Wit )
The Wedding City BYH 65,000,000 — — 65,000,000 12.86%
(Note 6)
(Wit r)
Honford Investments = 82,500,000 82,500,000 16.33%
(Note 5)
(Witz)
TMF — 204,402,000 204,402,000 40.45%
(Note 7)

HEt)
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Notes:

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of 69,678,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 27,587,500 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprised 27,587,500
Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be interested in (a)
69,678,000 Shares held and 65,000,000 Shares deemed to be
held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, and (b) 204,402,000
Shares referred to in Note 3 below.

The 269,402,000 Shares comprised (i) 121,902,000 Shares
held by New Sense; and (ii) 82,500,000 Shares held by
Castfast Properties, 87% of the issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Honford Investments. New Sense
and Honford Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF as
trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust, and (iii)
65,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding City, 90% and 10% of
the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai is deemed to be interested in the 204,402,000 Shares in (i)
and (i) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in 65,000,000
Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms. Ho Po Chu is the
beneficiary of The Ho Family Trust and is thus deemed to be
interested in the 204,402,000 Shares held under The Ho Family
Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho
Po Chu in the 204,402,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by
TMF as trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by TMF as
trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The
interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of the
Castfast Properties.
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6. 65,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding
City. 90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu,
respectively. The interests of The Wedding City therefore
duplicate with those of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note 3
below

7. TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New
Sense, Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue of
acting as the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares”
above, had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
of general meetings, or that was required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Change of information of the Directors during the Year,
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Name of Director

EEHR

Detail of Change
2EFR

N A E 345 565,000,000 k1 o
B8 1T IR AN 290% KX10% 5 B /B ] k& 1%
EERMEGLLZLIEZRNHES - Wt - 1B
Wiz = %&%ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ%i(ﬁuﬁﬁz
ZR) 2 ERES -

+ + TMF# 13 B LAThe Ho Family Trustz %
A B D New Sense * 321 B i &E &
Honford Investments T A 5 F HEH

s -
%LY&%%& BITHRABRIEZES
BRETBABZRMOER | FHREIN -

F_E_EEEH:+ H &AL
EEARRR Z KM RBBEKSFRIE
HERBEGRMEXVIFE2RFEID S
MR TEERAARRBI B ERIOAR

SEENEERETANENRATE
5% A EFRESTERRERNENAEE
MTERERE  IMZEERIARSD
RIBCEFIEPI)FEBIEBTHERZE
s PTE 8% ©

RiELHRAEB5IBOKELZES
BEMER

A AR F T8 B E13.51B(1) 16 /B
THRREZETEREHHINWOT

Mr. Ho Man Chung

annual salary increased from HK$969,600 to HK$984,000 (excluding

discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2023, which is determined
by the Board with reference to his experience, performance and duties as
well as the prevailing market conditions.

X BE4 F $ H 969,600/ JT 1L 11 E 984,000 T (NBIEWMEEL) BT ==
FHtA—HBHAW HEF¥FMAEETCL2EHTIERR %& %E&%w
MEBERAMETE °
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Detail of Change
SEFR

Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian

mETrEE

Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung

kA E/NE

Mr. Zhu Nianhua

METE

Mr. Ho Lai Hong

mERETE

Mr. Choi Wai Hin

REHFEL

annual salary increased from HK$900,000 to HK$924,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2023, which is determined
by the Board with reference to his experience, performance and duties as
well as the prevailing market conditions.

4 %7 §1900,00078 7L 3 M1 £924,0008 T (M EHEMEELA) B -_F—=
FEA—BAER EFMaESFS2ZHTERE &% BENER
mEEAMEE -

annual salary increased from HK$658,800 to HK$668,400 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2023, which is determined

by the Board with reference to his experience, performance and duties as
well as the prevailing market conditions.

% ¥ H1658,80078 TLIE N £668,400/8 T (T BEMNELLA) BT ==
FLA—BAER EFMOEFS2EHETERE &% BENEMN

mGBERMETE

annual salary increased from RMB464,688 to RMB470,688 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 August 2023, which is determined
by the Board with reference to his experience, performance and duties as
well as the prevailing market conditions.
FHHARB464,688 T ME ARK470,688TT(TRIERMEILL) - B
“EC_FN\A-RAEN EFHAEFSSEHETHERR £ B
BENERMMSERMERE °

Mr. Ho Lai Hong was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive
Director to an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (stock code: 321) with effect from 9 November 2023
and 1 January 2024 respectively.
MEBRLEHABKEREERAAKRORIK 21N 2B IERNITES
ATRATESTRITRAH 2R F_=F+—ANBEZ=-ZT_M
F—A—BREXR-

Mr. Choi Wai Hin has resigned as an independent non-executive Director
of Sterling Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1825) with effect from 31
January 2024.

EEHLARIXEREERBRARF MR 1825) 2 BILIFHTT
Ex BT _MWE-A=t—BEEX-
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual reports, the Company does
not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.21
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group were approximately 89%
of the total purchases of the Group, and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 39% of the Group's total
purchases. The aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group was less than
30% of the total turnover of the Group.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital
(excluding treasury shares)) had a beneficial interest in the
Group’s major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM, for the purposes
of ascertaining the entitlement to the final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 5 September 2024 to Friday, 6 September 2024
(both dates inclusive) during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4 September
2024. It is expected that the final dividend will be payable
and issued to those entitled on or around Tuesday, 24
September 2024.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on 30 August 2024, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
26 August 2024 to Friday, 30 August 2024 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 August 2024.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Plan as set out in the section of Share Schemes in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31
March 2024.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
KPMG who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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The Company has not changed its auditor in the past three

years.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Wai Hon, Brian
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 June 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Appendix
C2 “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Reporting Guide” of the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, disclosing sustainability
information of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”).

The scope of this Report covers the major operating entities
of the Group, including the offices and sales centres
located in Mainland China, as well as the completed real
estate projects of Phases 3, 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas and
Louvre Mansion. The reporting period is the fiscal year
from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024, and the current
period data is presented alongside historical data if
available.

In accordance with the “ESG Reporting Guide”, this Report
has complied with the following reporting principles:

e Materiality: The content in this Report has been
determined based on the significance of the Group’s
sustainability impact, together with stakeholders’
opinions obtained by different departments from daily
work. Please refer to the section “SUSTAINABILITY
MANAGEMENT” in this Report for relevant
information.

*  Quantitative: This Report discloses key performance
indicators for material topics in compliance with the
reporting standards mentioned above. Please refer
to the section “KEY PERFORMANCE DATA” in this
Report for relevant information.

e  Balance: This Report provides an unbiased picture of
the Group’s sustainability performance. Regardless
of whether the performance is positive or not, the
information has been disclosed in according with
guidelines.

e Consistency: This Report adopts consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of
the data over time.
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R HERERRSE

This Report has been approved by the Board and verified
by the independent third-party. Such relevant content is set
out in the section headed “VERIFICATION STATEMENT”.

BOARD STATEMENT

KRP adheres to the concept of sustainability development,
upheld the spirit of craftsmanship to create safe and
comfortable ideal homes for customers. In the process
of project development and operation, we take the
management responsibility for relevant sustainability topics.

Under the supervision and authorisation of the Board, the
General Manager leads the relevant departments of the
Group to implement the works related to sustainability, and
reports relevant goals and working progress to the Board
through regular meetings. During the daily communication
process with stakeholders, each department collects
their ideas and needs and responds promptly. Combining
stakeholders’ opinions and the impact of the Group’s
business, the Board reviews issues that have a significant
impact on the Group and continuously monitors relevant
work performance to balance stakeholders’ interests and
jointly build a sustainable future.

The Group continues to optimize the supervision process
of project design and construction, ensures that the quality
and safety level of the houses that delivered to customers
fulfill regulatory requirements. To provide customers
with a comfortable living environment, the Group has
defined clear requirements for property management
companies which are responsible for maintaining the
facilities and equipment within the project, listening to
customer opinions and responding promptly. The Group
strives for safeguard customers’ data, has established the
documentary management system and allocated reasonable
access rights to the employees.

The Group continues to pay close attention to the
impact of climate change on the real estate industry, and
enhances projects with wind proofing, flood prevention,
and energy-saving designs. The Group also incorporates
green building concepts into the designs and sets green
building target for future projects. The Group has
formulated internal policies to manage environmental
work in its offices and sales centres and has listed detailed
environmental protection requirements for contractors and
property management companies.
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During business cooperation, the Group strictly prohibits
anyone to take advantage of the situation for personal
benefits. The Group has established and regularly updates
the management mechanism that requires all partners to
commit to and sign the Group’s integrity requirements.
Through internal education and external supervision,
the Group ensures that all cooperation is based on
product quality, service performance, and recognition of
environmental protection, employment, and safety.

The Group has formulated relevant systems to ensure
the safety of working environment and training
and development opportunities for employees, and
continuously monitors the implementation of related
measures. The health and safety of contractor workers are
also protected by the Group’s policies, and contractors are
required to implement safety measures that are not lower
than the Group’s standards.

The Group values building a good community relationship,
with real estate project customers and residents in
surrounding areas as the main service targets. Through
organising interesting and beneficial community activities,
we enhance community vitality and culture. The Group
also provides support to vulnerable communities in the
surrounding areas.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for formulating the sustainability
policy of the Group, overseeing related works, and
reviewing targets and progresses. The Board has authorised
the General Manager to lead the relevant departments
to implement the sustainability policy and report to the
Board regularly. The Construction Department, Design
Department, Procurement Department, Marketing
Department, Human Resources and Administration
Department, and Internal Audit Department are responsible
for executing specific works and reporting relevant results
to the General Manager regularly.

The Group incorporates the spirit of craftsmanship into
the real estate project development process, building good
homes for customers and creating sustainable communities.
The Group links the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals, establishes a sustainability framework,
and is committed to creating long-term value for all
stakeholders.
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RiIR - HEgRERBE

For Customers:

BEF:

e Integrating the craftsmanship spirit to build a better home and
property service
[0 7 38 1 2 ) 3 B IR 7%

e Protecting customers’ privacy and information
REEFEMLE

For Communities:

BHE:

e  Creating harmonious and comfortable public spaces, maintain
good neighborhood relationships

1 SUSTAINABLE CITIES

ANCIEST - iy

TEME  FEARZER #ERIFBERBE
For Environment:
%Fﬁ

Protectlng the local ecology

RAE e RRIR IR

e Pursuing the high standards of green building
Bk ERESIEE
e  Promoting environmental protection knowledge

BEHIRR A

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

15 oiwo

For Partners:

BEERHE:

e Adhering to the code of business ethics and integrity
ETREBRTMBERTA

e Grasping the safety requirements
EEZEHRIRE

e Working together to build a community in a sustainable way

BFafF UNASETARELRE

PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

17 (REBZERNBHBARK

17

For Stakeholders:

BIEGE:

e Establishing appropriate channels to keep in touch
BUYBERBAFNHERBER

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

BEHIEMKEER
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The various departments of the Group have established
diverse communication channels with relevant stakeholders
to listen to and record the feedback from different
stakeholders. Through regular meetings, the departments
of the Group report to the General Manager and the
information is ultimately reported to the Board. The Group
generally considers the needs of different stakeholders
and continuously improves its sustainable development
performance.

Shareholders

IR R

e Annual General Meeting
BERKRE

® Press Release
s

e Circulars, Announcements, Annual and Interim Reports

BE - RE - EFRTHEERE

R - HEgRERRE

AEBEEAFIEBRFNERLZ LA
BEE BORSHETASMESL
TEBEMIHETAEZRMALER
%$Aﬁﬁ AEEEAEETREND
ERE BERETSERRIE-

¢ Information on the Company’s Website and on the Internet

ARB - EHBA

e Shareholders” Communication Policies

P 3R 3B RS

Employees

BT

e Corporate Events
NCINES:2)

e Internal Memos
|9\—‘|4|3/\t|:

e Suggestion Box
BERME

e Workshops
TS

e Karrie’s Monthly
AT

Customers

BF

e Onsite Visit and Communication

BE28 LR

¢ Information on the Company’s Website and on the Internet

NAABYE BEEEER

e Telephone and Onsite Interviews
BaE MBS K

e Questionnaires

BERAL
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RERE -HERERRS

Suppliers
HER
e Supplier Onsite Audits
HERE RS EZ
e Supplier Training
H RE 7 5
Regulators and Industrial Organisations
EERBRITXAR

e Visit and Examine Real Estate Projects
28 EERMERHA
e Corporate Events

NEEE
e Seminars and Workshops
ek Iy
Local Communities
Rip it &
e  Community Events
RS
e Volunteering
BB IIE
e Charitable Projects
RELY

The process to identify material topics of the Group AEBEFTEZZEACAENIERE
was based on the impact on its business model and BEBzTE FEEZHPIBFEFEH
the opinions gathered from daily communication with E&BZ E R o A& ER2022/23F [E
stakeholders across various departments. The Group HRABEEBAEXZABRAF LWH
adopted Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing — AIff$xC2CIR3% « #t @ RE A (ESC) WS
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong #E5)RZEEE S kKB GTERE
Limited “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) B & (SASB) « & Bk E Kk B K XEIEZ
Reporting Guide”, as the list of sustainability topics. The  (GRESB) » B & (MSCI) ~ £ & & B (S&P
Group analysed the importance of various relevant topics  Globa) ¥ E i E1TX S EEEHEE 2
in the real estate industry based on the Sustainability ZEZREE X WHAEFEFEFMHERZE
Accounting Standards Board (SASB), the Global Real Estate < EHMZHBE X UWERAKEFHEE
Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB), MSCI, S&P Global, and R - ¥ EAREBE XK@ 2 #E#ETH
the material topics of the major real estate peers in China, & ERAEEFANEBEL L FIZ
as well as the opinions of the Group’s stakeholders, and & ' ML RIBUW MEBELNE - K&
prioritised the topics related to the Group’s business in B #5818 = E ZHESGERE o
2022/23. After approval by the Board, the Group’s high

material ESG topics include the following eight items.

Given that the Group’s business have remained stable

throughout the year and there have been no significant

changes in the external operating environment, the

following 8 high-material ESG topics are being maintained.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RRE -HEBRERBRS

Concerns/Expectation

Order Topic of the Stakeholders Relevant Index Disclosure (Chapter)
FF E 4= HHEREHE BEER REEH
1 Ensuring housing quality ~ Customers: To provide HKEX B6 CRAFTSMANSHIP
and safety good housing quality Product Responsibility BUILDING
EREEEEHEZ 2 BF FEEERY HKEX B6 g 5E
Regulators: To fully comply Em&EF
with building-related
regulatory requirements
EERE: 2ENTAREM
BA R E K
2 Business ethics and Suppliers: To maintain HKEX B7 SINCERE
integrity a fair and cooperative Anti-Corruption COOPERATION
BEBEENEG environment HKEX B7 R
HER BB RFAERE RES
Employees: To comply
with relevant laws and
regulations
BT BTHEERER
B3k
3 Occupational health and ~ Employees: The company ~ HKEX B2 COHESIVE TALENT
safety provides a safe working Health and Safety REBEAT
BEREREZR environment HKEX B2
BT ARRMR2THFE RESLS
R
Contractors and
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The Group conducts an enterprise risk assessment at least
once a year, covering ESG-related risks, including talent
competition, supply chain interruption, property damage,
as well as environmental protection, safety, personal
information protection, anti-corruption, and other risks.
The Internal Audit Department of the Group organises
various departments to conduct risk identification,
likelihood and impact assessment, develop mitigation
measures, and monitor their implementation every year.
After review by the Group’s CEO and CFO, the risk
management result is submitted to the Audit Committee
and the Board.

CRAFTSMANSHIP BUILDING

The Group has established the management system
for different design stages. The Design Department
has developed Design Technical Standards Guidelines
covering architecture, structure, water supply and drainage,
electricity, air conditioning, decoration, and landscape
areas. All design companies are required to conduct
standardised design according to these guidelines to ensure
compliance with relevant national regulations, including
but not limited to the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Urban and Rural Planning, the Construction Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Project Code for
Residential Building, the Management Measures for Safety
Facilities of Construction Projects and the Fire Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China. During the vyear,
the Group established the “Design Review Operational
Guidelines” to further standardise the actual review
procedures during the design phase.

Quality control during the construction process begins
with selecting high-quality building contractors and
suppliers. The Group has developed detailed agreements
to ensure that construction performance and material
quality meet our standards. The Group has established a
set of standardised technical and quality control guidelines,
providing detailed requirements for quality standards and
specifications during the construction process.
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The Group controls the construction quality in advance,
with the implementation of construction examples
guidance as well as material and equipment examples
management. It establishes the examples of construction,
material and equipment to guide subsequent onsite
material and equipment checking and construction
processes. Multiple inspections will be conducted during
the construction process. In addition to self-inspection by
contractors and acceptance checks by third-party certified
construction supervision companies and the Group’s
Construction Management Centre, the Group also together
with relevant departments,
companies and chief engineers,

construction supervision
implements internal
combined acceptance checks of projects and records the
process with photos and documents on a cloud platform.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations,
the Group carries out testing and certification of the
materials and equipment quality for the main structure,
roofing, water supply and drainage,
and heating in stages. The Group has established detailed
rules for “Unit Acceptance Checks”.

building decoration,

According to the
relevant regulatory requirements, the Group organised
internal relevant departments, designers, supervision, and
construction companies to conduct “Unit Acceptance
Checks” before the implementation of the overall
completion acceptance of the project. During the vyear,
the Group has established a pool of acceptance members,
which operates on a random representative model. This
enhances the professionalism and standardization of our
project acceptance processes.

The Group provides building structural quality assurance to
the owners in accordance with applicable laws and specific
quality assurance for certain applicable equipment and
fixed installations for a specified period. During the quality
assurance period, the construction contractor is responsible
for the cost of relevant maintenance.
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CONSIDERATE SERVICE

The Marketing Department of the Group is responsible for
coordinating the sale of properties, and the process strictly
adheres to relevant regulations, including but not limited
to the Rules on Sales of Commodity Housing at Clearly
Marked Prices, the Administrative Measures for the Pre-sale
of Urban Commodity Housing, and the Regulations on
Administration of Pre-sale of Commodity Housing of
Guangdong Province.

The Group has developed internal guidelines requiring all
salespersons and staff for house delivery to receive basic
information training and conduct sales and house delivery
exercises before the project is publicly sold. This ensures
that accurate and consistent information of the projects is
provided to all customers. Before delivering the property
to the owner, the Property Service Centre must conduct
a house acceptance inspection together with the Group’s
Construction Management Centre, and repair any problems
within a specified period. During the house delivery
process, the Property Service Centre introduces in detail
the use instructions for the house and attached facilities
and equipment, answers owners' questions, and provides
relevant information for owners’ record.

To provide customers with a high-quality living
environment continuously, the Group has developed the
property management plan and provided detailed service
management requirements to the property management
company. The Property Service Centre must conduct
inspections regularly, maintain all buildings and facilities in
good condition, complete repair for damages or residents’
maintenance needs found during the inspections within
a limited time frame, and conduct 100% follow-up visits.
The Property Service Centre must also visit residents
regularly and provide complaint channels for customers.
All customer complaints received must be handled within
the specified time limit. For complaints related the Group,
the Property Service Centre must report them to the Group
promptly for follow-up.

R - HEgRERRE

B0 AR 7
AEBEEHREBREFEHE T
HEBEBRRETHRBEIR  BRET
RIC(EmFEHERBRERTE) K
TEmEREERENE) (EREEM
FHEEEEGH) -

AEBERIEARES - RBEBAFHHE
S TEHER KNTIEABHEER
XEEEXREREI  ETHE FE
RTER BRSMATFIREERE -
—HWIEREA - EFERMNE LA -
MERBFLOFEARETEEEPL
HAETEERYK  HEENHBET
REIEE BEXNEIBES F
EIHFHANAFERMTHORERE
ERRER - MERIRME - Wi AR
ERHEIRT

ARPREBERHEENETRE XK
SECHEYVECTEERAR  MYE
ERARREFANREERER -9
ERBPLEHEENTBREEDRR
METERKERRE  HKEFRE
BHBEZBERAREFREBEZHETK
PREFSEAK SRS - I 3 17100% =
e MERBFLETCHESERL
AERFPREEFRE  AIERINE
FEFFRABRFRELER - HR
BRAEBZEFEE  MERBKHL
ERFRENEERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 % ¥§ 101




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERRSE

The Group has developed the file management system
and set user access permissions to ensure the integrity
and confidentiality of customers’ information. The Group
has established the independent central file room to
manage the documents and data,
personal information.
retain these documents without permission. According

including customers’
No individual is allowed to
to the job functions of employees, the Group has set
corresponding access permissions and conducts regular
inspections. During the year, the Group did not receive any
complaints regarding the disclosure of customers’ personal
information.

The Group has developed the transparency management
guide to ensure that customer complaints related to
sales are reasonably and effectively addressed. The
Administration Department is responsible for reviewing
complaints every month and evaluating the performance
of the Marketing Department. During the year, the Group
received 2 sales-related complaints. After communication
and coordination with customers, they eventually appealed
to the local Market Supervision and Management Bureau
and the Court.
not support the customers’
applications were rejected.

However, the relevant regulators did

refund claims, and their

HARMONIOUS ENVIRONMENT

The Group has developed internal guidelines for assessing
the location of new projects before considering investment
and development, including consideration of environmental
conservation around the sites. The Group complies with
local environmental protection laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment. Before the project starts, an independent third
party is appointed to carry out the environmental impact
assessment, develop the mitigation plan, and supervise
the implementation of environmental protection measures
during the project’s construction and operation.
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The Group considers environmentally friendly design
schemes in the first phase of the project, including
optimisation of building orientation, facade appearance,
unit layout, building materials, etc. The Phases 4 and 5
of Castfast Villas, and Louvre Mansion developed by the
Group have adopted appropriate environmentally friendly
designs, such as south-facing layouts, low-radiation glass
and insulated external walls, to enhance natural ventilation
and lighting, improve thermal insulation performance
and energy efficiency. To mitigate the impact of extreme
weather caused by climate change, the Group designs the
projects’” wind-resistant and flood-resistant capabilities that
meet the standards according to the geographical location
of the project. The Group has established guidelines for
natural disaster prevention and preparedness, addressing
potential impacts brought about by climate change,
including measures for emergencies such as typhoons and
heavy rainfall.

In accordance with the requirements of the 14th Five-Year
Plan for Building Energy Conservation and Green Buildings
Development of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the People’s Republic of China, the Group
has set the green building target that all new projects will
achieve the basic level or above of green building standard
by 2025 or earlier. At that time, all new projects must meet
the design requirements related to energy saving, water
saving, material saving and indoor environmental quality
in the standard, and improve building insulation capacities,
heating and refrigeration equipment performance,
lighting density according to the General Code for Energy
Efficiency and Renewable Energy Application in Buildings
of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the People’s Republic of China.

During the construction process, the contractor must
manage the environmental protection matters at the
construction site in accordance with the Group’s Onsite
Safety and Civilised Construction Standards or higher
requirements, including controlling dust, wastewater, and
waste discharge. After the project is completed, the Group
also requires the property management company to develop
environmental management regulations, including recording
of the energy consumption and water use of the facilities
and equipment in the project and regular check up.
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For the daily operations, the Group has specified energy
and resource management requirements in the Employee
Handbook, including turning off unnecessary lighting and
electrical equipment, conserving water, and encouraging
double-sided printing or reusing single-sided paper. During
the year, the total energy consumption of the offices, sales
centres, and unsold housing units managed by the Group
was 296,774 kWh, including electricity consumption
of 238,946 kWh, gasoline consumption of 5,967 litres
(equivalent to 57,827 kWh), and the water consumption
was 2,574 m3.

Domestic sewage generated during operations is connected
to the municipal sewage pipeline in accordance with the
local regulations and transferred to the municipal sewage
plant for treatment and discharge. The Group has several
vehicles for employees’ business trips transportation and
commuting, which will produce a small amount of air
pollutants during fuel combustion. All vehicles owned
by the Group undergo regular inspections as required
by the local government to ensure that their exhaust
emissions comply with relevant regulations. Referring to
the calculation guidelines based on fuel consumption of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide, the
Group’s vehicles emitted 2.97 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.09
kg of sulphur oxides, and 0.22 kg of particulate matter
during the year.

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions mainly come
from energy use, including vehicle fuel and electricity
consumption. During the year, the direct greenhouse gas
emissions (Scope 1) of the Group were 15.92 tCO,e, and
the indirect energy-related greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 2) were 138.83 tCOze.

SINCERE COOPERATION

The Group continues to collaborate with various external
partners to provide necessary services for different stages
of its projects. During the construction and development
phase, the Group only selects reliable and reputable design
companies, building contractors, and material suppliers
to provide services and raw materials for project design
and construction. The selection process is usually carried
out through a tendering procedure, taking into account
factors such as suppliers’ qualifications, track records, work
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The Group has established the procedures and
management methods for selecting contractors and
suppliers, including the “Construction Tendering
Management Measures” and the “General Procurement
Management Measures”. These procedures are regularly
reviewed and revised based on the actual needs of our
business. All contractors and suppliers must provide
qualification certificates related to environmental
protection and safety, undergo qualification review, and
follow the Group’s requirements for on-site inspections.
Only contractors and suppliers who have passed the review
and inspection can participate in tendering or accept
procurement invitations. When selecting suppliers, the
Group values their environmental and safety qualifications
and on-site inspection results. Suppliers with good
performance will receive bonus points and increase the
cooperation opportunities. The Group has established the
list of qualified suppliers and conducts reviews and internal
evaluations at least every six months, reassessing and
revisiting suppliers in batches. During the year, the Group
collaborated with 32 major contractors and suppliers, only
1 supplier is located overseas, while the rest are based in
China.

The Group identifies the main environmental and social
risks of suppliers by analysing their business models. As
contractors have a large number of workers, who are
exposed to safety and environmental pollution risks existed
in their workplace, the Group requires them to strictly
comply with the local labor and safety-related laws and
regulations, establish management systems for construction
site safety and environmental issues, and protect the
legitimate rights of workers. The Group has established
the Onsite Safety and Civilised Construction Standards,
implemented the safety hazard inspection system, specified
environmental and safety measures that contractors must
follow during site management, with the Construction
Management Department and construction supervision
companies monitoring contractors' practices.
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R HERERRSE

During the collaboration process, the Group upholds the
principles of integrity and honesty, and has established
the “Contract Management System”, which stipulates
that contracts must be signed in written form, explicitly
prohibiting oral, telephone, email, or any other forms of
agreement. Referring to the relevant laws and regulations
in the operation area, the Group has developed and
released the “Employee Code of Ethics” to all employees.
All new employees must receive integrity training and all
employees will receive regular corporate reminders. At the
same time, the Group issues the “Peers’ Belief” letter to all
business partners, which clearly states the Group’s integrity
requirements, provides whistleblowing channels, urges its
business partners not to provide benefits to the employees
of the Group and to report any violations. All business
partners must sign the document to acknowledge the
Group’s requirement and make their commitments before
collaboration.

The Group has developed and implemented
anti-corruption and anti-bribery systems. Under the
authorisation of the management, the Internal Audit
Department implements daily anti-corruption and
anti-fraud measures, including handling complaints,
ensuring the protection of whistleblowers, conducting
internal investigations, and reporting to the Board. For
any discovered corrupt or fraudulent behavior, the Group
undertakes remedial measures and preventive methods to
avoid similar incidents in future.

The Group regularly provides anti-corruption compliance
training to its senior management and employees,
enhancing their understanding of relevant laws and
regulations. Relevant policies and explicit provisions
prohibiting violations have incorporated in the Employee
Handbook and the Employee Code of Ethics. During the
year, all new employees have received anti-corruption
compliance training; all board members have received
director responsibility training, including supervising the
Group’s anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters.
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The Group complies with the relevant provisions of the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China related to
non-state-owned companies and enterprise employees'
criminal clauses and prohibitions on commercial bribery, as
well as relevant applicable laws and regulations. During the
year, the Group did not violate any relevant applicable laws
and regulations in this aspect.

COHESIVE TALENT

The job functions of the Group’s employees include
management, real estate development and design,
construction management, procurement, sales, finance,
human resources and administration. During the year, the
monthly average number of employees in the Group was
64, with a gender ratio of approximately 6:4 between
males and females. The age group is primarily composed
of young adults aged 30 to 50, and opportunities are also
provided for the youth.
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R HERERRSE

The Group strictly adheres to local laws and regulations
when hiring employees, including but not limited to
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Regulations on Management of Housing
Provident Fund. According to Chinese regulations, the
Group signs written labor contracts with all employees in
China, complies with the local minimum wage standard
and employment age requirement, and provides welfare
programs covering endowment insurance, unemployment
insurance, maternity insurance, work-related injury
insurance, medical insurance, and housing provident
fund. In addition, the Group establishes a “Cooperative
Housing Plan” to encourage talents to settle down and
work locally, effectively retaining talents in the competitive
talent market. The Group provides employees with the
employment guide that outlines their benefits and job
requirements, allowing employees to understand their
rights and job requirements.

The Group strictly prohibits any use of child labor or
forced labor. The Human Resources Department verifies
the age and identity information of each new employee
before employment. Employees only need to submit their
original personal documents and certificates for inspection,
the Human Resources Department keeps a copy for
internal filing, and the original will be promptly returned
to the employee, ensuring that all employees enjoy
employment freedom. During the Year, the Group did
not violate any employment-related laws and regulations,
did not encounter any significant problems in recruiting
or retaining employees, and did not suffer any significant
interference due to labor disputes or strikes.

7 8 (B B 1% 7 308 B 2 SR AR 4R
EAET BEETRRM(TEARR
NELHE) (hEARLNALHA
FsA) - (R A R A B it & 1218 0%)
RUTEAES BERIER) - RIBTE%
WRE AEEALBIRETETE
H4HAF  BTEHBETEEER
THEFRAT  LRETERLRR -
RERR - EBRR  TERR - BB
RBUREEAES N IEFE -
9 REERBAEELHE] B8
SMRETATNBEREEASRE LR
B NERHIMOALTIEE RS
BAA - AEERETIREABIES -
EhSIBEENS BRI ERT  &E
TTRERFRIAEER -

AEBEBRLEEAEAEL  RAHTH
TREL - ANBRIREBHELR
BE—REFREFFNER - BEIEAAR
- BERABKRRME  ANEREHK
EENBIATF1E - EAH MR E 8 T E
A REMBEEIMZAEXRA - F
A AEREEXLERERBBER
FEREE YERNAREXBRERETH
EBBEMEAME  HEHEAHK
EIMEXEMEARTE -
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The workplaces of the Group’s employees are offices
or sales centres, with relatively low safety risks. New
employees will receive orientation and fire-related
education. The Group complies with relevant regulations
such as the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, implements fire protection measures in the office
and conducts regular inspections. During the year, the
Group did not occur any work-related injuries among the
employees and did not have any violations of relevant laws
and regulations related to occupational safety and health.

The Group also sets detailed requirements for the
safety management work of contractors and property
management companies, ensuring the safety of
construction workers and property management staff in the
Group’s real estate projects, and ensuring that contractors
comply with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Work Safety, the Law of the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Safety Facilities of Construction
Project “Three Simultaneous” Interim Measures for The
Supervision and Management and other relevant laws and
regulations. The Group requires contractors and property
management companies to purchase accident insurance
in accordance with regulations, and to provide regular
physical examinations and training for workers at risk of
occupational injuries.

R - HEgRERRE

AEBREZIBIRSMARLE
HEHEFL REABRE - HETH
BERABIEN - ARCEDEEAHE - K
SEET(REARAMBEENR RS
MEERER  BEM RS ZHEME
B ERRE  c REBRAFEY &
EREEHBREAIREGEMH  AEBEL
THERBEL2EEMEBEIERER
EH-

AEBENMHREADE  WEEERA
ZREERTHENEFAER  RIE
AEERBZRETIAN MEEEASR
ZRE BRABHET(PEARK
MEZ2EEER) (FEARKMBER
EmaE) (BREBLEREI=
RIS EEEIR)RBRIESR - K&
BEREZEARE  MEREERARE
ERBEBEIINMRER LAEEBRESG
TR T ARMEE RERLE -
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RIR -HEgRERBE

The Group arranges for all new employees to receive the KE BRHMBEMABRE IR AR
orientation and develops annual training plans to provide &3l - ti%ﬂmi dlEt8 A EBRE T
continuous training courses for in-service employees, JFERFEFINRE  BEFEREM

including professional skills and safety information. During &% 2 && ° K’ilﬂﬁir/\i’]i Bl
the year, the average training hours per employee of the — BE9.8/\FF - IEFIEIN14% * BB E
Group reached 9.8 hours, representing an increase of ¥ &79.7% ° ilﬁ $§Ek.§'ﬁ RHBFER

approximately 14% as compared to the previous year, and & - pKANIEH| TRER - WEERE -
the training coverage rate was 79.7%. The Group offered & fﬁﬁiﬂ f/ﬂ‘“f‘ﬁﬁ HEXRIEAR
professional courses such as bidding and procurement, $%@¥$Zig B ¥ B R T

cost control, project management, property management, EIZE}%7J<$
marketing planning, and tax processing, continuously

improving employees' professional levels in important

aspects of the Group’s business.

Average Training Hours Average Training Hours
(By Gender) (by Categories)
(Unit: Hours) (Unit: Hours)
AR B (RIER) A (RETER)
(BEMY @ /NEE) (BEfY @ /EF)
1.5
9.5
: I 7.4 I I I I
Male Female Management Middle Level Entry Level
St z ERAR HEEXE EEST
W 202223 W 202324 W 202223 W 2023/24
Training Percentage Training Percentage
(by Gender) (by Categories)
FZANEEB (MR AL (FETER)
100.0% 100.0%
91.2% 92.0% 92.9%
81.0% 78.1% 75.0% 72.7% I SI”% I I
Male Female Management Middle Level Entry Level
St pgid EEAR TEXE EEST
W 202223 W 2023/24 W 202223 W 202324
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CARING COMMUNITY

The Group values the community culture development
of real estate projects and has formulated guidelines for
community building. The Group has collaborated with
the property management company to create a lively
and vibrant community. During the year, the Group has
organised multiple community activities in the Phases 3,
4 and 5 of Castfast Villas. These activities have promoted
communication among community residents.

“Warm Youth, Labor Day Fun Fair”

Castfast Villas has thoughtfully arranged the “Warm Youth,
Labor Day Fun Fair” event, providing 4A-grade scenic site
tickets to the residents. Families and neighbors can enjoy
a diverse range of park activities together at Longfeng Villa
during the holiday.

R - HEgRERRE

RIELE
AEBEEREHMERBEEREEZR
Bl EL R ERE S E T IERESI

HYRXERERAGFE-—RTBHHREER
EEEARNINERAE - AFE - K

SEREERNEERE=H kX -

FHRITZIAMEREE - RELEETP
?C Diiike
(EEEE H—HE%S]

EESRERERELOLHTIRESE
A& BEFMKRZEIAL SR
Ly
HH

FERILEMARE RA—REPERA
MEAZEEZYHNERLY -

A

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 % 3§ 111



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RR - -#HEB8RERRE

Mother’s Day Flower Arranging Activity BRERIEED

On Mother’s Day, the Group invited professional florists SEBERGHREAZEABBINEEMLEE
to teach homeowners the art of flower arranging as a gift BIEFXEZRBIEBM TEF I ZERR
for their mothers or female friends. This activity not only TERZ I TEHAMNRFELEHE
created a festive atmosphere and a sense of warmth and ERBLEEBETSEEERERG  HEPF
care but also included a variety of delicious food and  [F =& A EL -

drinks for everyone to enjoy the holiday festivities together.

I ”W"

The Group also collaborates with local charitable ZAEETHELEFRAMKFERESE
organisations to provide support to vulnerable groups in EFRERAEE - At ERBLEEBRHES
the community. During the year, the Group donated to the & - RAFRABA MR EEZ M E/NE1R
Shaoguan Charity Federation. B -
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RRE -HEBRERBRS

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA BARENHE
Environmental RIE
The following environmental data covers the Group’s office  LATIRFHIEBEASEU N FEERS

located in Fenggang, Dongguan, the PRC, sales centres for Bl 2 HAE - EEED%Z EHHT O KR

HI}+

properties currently on sale, and residential units directly HREBASEEZETE CEEEHEN -
managed by the Group.
Item Unit
BER B 2023/24 2022/23 2021/22
Electricity Consumption kWh 238,946 495,540 743,030

£ TRE
Petrol Consumption Litre 5,967 6,575 1,498
ARFERE Rt

equivalent to kWh 57,827 63,722 14,513
ERTHH
Total Energy Consumption kWh 296,774 559,262 757,543
BERREME TR
Energy Intensity (by Delivered Area) kWh/m? 30.59 21.00 27.00
RREEEINAEGE) TRE/ TR
Water Consumption m’ 2,574 24 417 85,239
kg K
Water Inten5|ty (by Delivered Area) m3/m? 0.27 0.92 3.04
AKBE(RRNEETE) IRxR/FHK
Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions' tCO e 15.92 17.54 4.00
ER(EE)RERBHNE W ElkiyE
Indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions' tCO e 138.83 282.61 431.70
& (BE)RERBHENE B ELBEE
Scopes 1 and 2 GHG Emissions tCOe 154.75 300.15 435.70
BEIRBEVRERBHHEER W ELBEE
GHG Emissions Intensity (by Delivered Area) tCO,e/m? 0.016 0.011 0.016
BEREBHNEE (RRANERHE) W ElkEEE,/
FK

GHG Emissions Intensity (by Headcount) tCO e/person 2.46 4.76 6.81

BEREHREE(RAR)

BoElLREE/A

1 The types of GHG include: carbon dioxide (COZ), methane

(CH,), nitrous oxide (N,0), hydro-fluorocarbons (HFCs), < FRGE( (CH) ~ aima( (N,O) » =
per-fluorocarbons (PFCs) and sulfur hexafluoride (SF). Emission ﬁﬁﬁﬂ:'ff% (HFCs) ~ 2 &AL HR (PFCs) M 7 |

factors and global warming potential (GWP) data sources and

calculations methods are derived from the How to Prepare
an ESG Report by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, and the

Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse

Gas Emissions of Enterprises for Power Generation Facilities
(2022 Revision) and the Notice on Doing a Good Job in 2023-
2025 Reporting and Management of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

of Power Generation Enterprises by the Ministry of Ecology and

Environment of PRC, and the Fifth Climate Change Assessment

Report (AR5) by Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change.

/ﬂni'—?‘&“ﬁﬁhﬁ’]&*ﬁ B Z ALK

ﬁﬂﬁm 0?3[5]55[%&%}2:%}“{,,@.%
(GWP) E’J%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁtﬂ@%%ﬂﬁ%?&ﬁﬁﬁ’](ﬁu
fﬂ%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ Ti”’\&”éiéﬁ&tw EPEEA
HMBEARERESI(CEBRERESE
HV§H£ﬁﬁ¢hﬁ**“QOz
FAERTR)) ~ (B A M £72023-20254F 5
BITECERERBHRBREEEEGH
TEMBIERBNERKIGEELCEME
Be(FERIREEBFHHRE) -
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Item Unit
HEE Efi 2023/24 2022/23 2021/22
NOx (Corporate Vehicle Exhaust)? kg 2,97 3.22 5.63
ARNM(RAEHER) TR
SOx (Corporate Vehicle Exhaust)? k 0.09 0.10 0.02
REtM(RREHER) 7
Particulate Matters (Corporate Vehicle Exhaust) k 0.22 0.24 0.54
BB (258 BER): 3
Social g
Employment Overview & & % 2023/24 2022/23
The Group’s Average Number of Employees A& B EIRFHE T A 20

during The Year® 63 63
By District B it &
Mainland At 56 56
Hong Kong B 7 7
By Gender 7 11 Bl
Male 3 37 37
Female Z 26 26
By Age Group ®RE AR
Below 30 30B% A T 8 9
30-50 30-503% 48 48
Above 50 507% A & 7 6
By Employment Type rERER
Full-time £y 63 63
Part-time ¥ 8% 0 0
Number and Rate of Employee Turnover BEFHYBIMRKAR
(Monthly Average)* R kb &R 2023/24 2022/23
By District 7 it &
Mainland A 1.63 (2.9%) 1.83 (3.3%)
Hong Kong 5 0.17 (2.4%) 0.08 (1.2%)
By Gender B B
Male 5 0.83 (2.2%) 1.42 (3.8%)
Female 58 1.(3.8%) 0.50 (1.9%)
By Age Group R F i 4 Bl
Below 30 3058 AT 0.58 (7.3%) 0.42 (4.6%)
30-50 30-507% 1.25 (2.8%) 1.33 (2.8%)
Above 50 5088 A 0 (0%) 0.17 (2.8%)

The emissions of NOx, SOx and Particulates were calculated
based on the amount of fossil fuels that used by the Group;
relevant calculations and data sources are derived from
EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission Calculation by the H.K.
Environmental Protection Department, Vehicle Emission
Modeling Software — MOBILE6.1 by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, and EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant Emission
Inventory Guidebook — 2019 by European Environmental
Agency.

The monthly average number of employees during the year
Monthly turnover rate of a specific type of employee = monthly
average number of that type of employees turned over/monthly
average number of that type of employees

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8| E# E#ZE R ER 2 7

NOx * SOxA R BHR ¥ B & 1h &
RASER B EREFEMS  H@EH
W R E B E BRI R #EFEMFAC-HK
Vehicle Emission Calculation /3 B 3 %
FFERA - X EIR B R EEFE A Vehicle
Emission Modeling Software 5 B # i} 1%
RE M — MOBILE6.] » BUMNIR IR B %
5 B EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant Emission
Inventory Guidebook — 2019) ©
ERFENETIAEMAFTHE
AEERALEAE—BANEIZE
BEARRIAE ZBERZ2EFRFEAA
4
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Occupational Health and Safety BEEERZ2 2023/24 2022/23
Number and Rate (%) of Occupational T AT %)

Fatalities 0 0
Number of Lost Day due to Occupational B T{&EME KXz TIEH

Injuries 0 0
Employee Training BT 2023/24 2022/23
Total Training Hours BIEIR & 617.5/NE& hours  539/)\[ hours
Average Training Hours per Employee and B T E &

Coverage Percentage’ Lt 15 9.8 (79.7 %) 8.6 (91.5%)
By Gender gl
Male B 11.5 (81.0%) 7.9 (91.2%)
Female g 7.4 (78.1%) 9.5 (92.0%)
By Category RETIEHR
Management BEEAB 11.6 (72.7 %) 6.4 (75.0%)
Middle Level FEEXE 8.9 (81.1%) 9.4 (100%)
Entry Level HEEET 9.4 (92.9%) 10.3 (100%)

Number and Rate of Major Suppliers FTEHERHEIHABE

Distribution by Location K& 2023/24 2022/23
China a3 31 (97%) 25 (100%)
Others H At 1 (@ 1 3%) 0 (0%)
Social Responsibility HEEMR 2023/24 2022/23
Charitable Donation (RMB) HEBRBARE) 5,000 12,000
4 Monthly turnover rate of a specific type of employee = monthly 4 AP RALEERE-—HRNEIZH

average number of that type of employees turned over/monthly
average number of that type of employees

e Training percentage = number of employees getting training  °
during the year (only counting the employees still on job at the
year of the year)/total number of employees at the end of the
year

AFHRANEZRBNZBRFHA
24

Bl Pl = R—BHIMBETEFAE
REINZ NB(RFAEFREBRAR)
ZENETIZFRERAR
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RR - -#HEB8RERRE

“ESG REPORTING GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (RIE - HERERBREESI)ARES

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements & i i & # &

BARE A statement from the board containing the following BOARD STATEMENT

Governance Structure  elements: ExgRy
SUSTAINABILITY

(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG MANAGEMENT
issues; REEREER

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets with an
explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

HEEFSRLMNER EhHEATIRE:

i) BEEECHRE HSRERTENEE

(i) BEFEMRE HLERBTAREEAHERRE £
B BABIEKEBREEMNIRE ?@&
EREMEEEBUBTAXESNRR) NG
TERDVE

(i) EEEMAEEE HEREAABAERS
£ THBEMNARETAEHEBE
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R #HERERHS

Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application ABOUT THIS REPORT
P& %R R I of the Reporting Principles (Materiality, Quantitative [N ¥ %

and Consistency) in the preparation of the ESG report.

HAMBERRBRE HERERRESHNMER

EHRA(EEN B —F1)-
Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ABOUT THIS REPORT
i ¥ 0 & ESG report and describing the process used to identify B R 74 &

which entities or operations are included in the ESG

report.

BERE HeRERREWERDE  MEALE
MULERKEBAARE HERELBRENBRE -
‘Comply or explain’ Provisions [ & <F & f# 12 | #%& 3
Aspect Al: Emissions /B A1 : B Y

General Information on: HARMONIOUS
Disclosure (@ the policies; and ENVIRONMENT
— B E (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations #3335

that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

FRABERNBEREBHN  MAKELHOHES AF

LEERBYNELEN:
@ B R
by BITHETABEAFENHBEZRBRLN
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KPI AL1
BB IR IRALT

KPI A1.2
BB MIRIRAL2

KPI A1.3
R ENIERALS

R B IS 1R ALA
KPI A1.4

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BB RER R EE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions and, where appropriate,
intensity.
EREE)REREZ(EE)RERETFKE A
MAE)R(WMEREE(WMNBESEMN  BERIG
ATE) -

Total hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity.

FELAEEREENEE UMHE) R (NER) ZE (1
NEBESEM BREREMHE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FETEZFEENEE T8 R(WER) BE (1
NEBESEM BERENE) -

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E#i EE R E R 2 A

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

M RE

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

MR

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA

All the operating locations

of the Group are offices and
sales centres, and there is no
significant waste generation. The
non-hazardous waste generated
is collected and transferred

for treatment by the municipal
sanitation organisation.
According to the Directory of
National Hazardous Wastes
(Version 2021), the office waste
does not need to be managed as
hazardous waste.
ARBEREROR/PRERE
HPL o WEBEREWMESL
ELMEERERY  AMER
s YEBRE - RIEDE
ARANBECKBEREREZN A
2 QOIFRD AT HEEND
BRERERBEENEE -
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RE HERERHS

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to
BB EMIEE AL5S  achieve them.
HA PRI PERER R R RERE LB IRATRIA
KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
BAGE4E WIE1E A6 wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HARBEAEERETRZYNOTE - RERATETLMN
REBGLEREIELEEMRMNTHE -

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

ﬁ:u *J:h

The Group s daily operations do
not involve significant pollution
or waste emissions, and we
have set green building target to
reduce emissions during project
construction and operation in
future.
ARBRREE T FERBES
FRBEEWMBN YRS
REERHIBEARL 2B S

(el
Aspect A2: Use of Resources B EIA2 : & R &£
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including HARMONIOUS
—RIRE energy, water and other raw materials. ENVIRONMENT
ARERER@ELR KREMERMR)MEE - MHER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in  HARMONIOUS
FAREBIEIE A21  total and intensity. ENVIRONMENT
RENBSNEER /HMEER(WE  Ravn) @ MR
REUTATERHB)REE (MUGESEN - § KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
IE\ nﬁ/’@,;‘l‘ﬁ) %ﬁ;&ﬁ%g
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. HARMONIOUS
BRAMIEF A2 RBREKEREEWNASEEEM  BEREE) - ENVIRONMENT
MAERER
KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
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KPI A2.3
BB IR IR 1R A2.3

KPI A2.4
B B8 AE SRR 1R A2.4

KPI A2.5
B8 88 AE SAE 1R A2.5

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

WL PRI LM RERAM BB R R RESE L
BIEPTRENZ B -

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

it SR EGE AR LRl BERIFE - A KR PrET
MR BKR S BERAEDE LB FEARIA
B

Total packaging material used for finished
products, and if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

R mAAEEMHNEE AR E) & (nE
RBLEENGE -

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E#i EE R E R 2 A

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

R IR

The Group’s daily operations
consume limited energy and
water resources, and we have
set green building target to
reduce energy and water
consumption during project
construction and operation
in future.
REBREKEMBREIR
FKERAR » WE R 4%
EREERBRLEART
EEBREZER  KERHE
FE o

The Group is a real estate
developer, and this KPI is not
applicable.
AEBREMEZERRD
EETER -

A
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RE HERERHS

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources B HA3 : RIER KRR E IR
General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s sngnlflcant HARMONIOUS
—MRIXE impact on the environment and natural ENVIRONMENT
resources. i
BMEZETAHRERRREREXNBEAZEN
PSR e
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities HARMONIOUS
#5245 IE IR A3.1 on the environment and natural resources and ENVIRONMENT
actions taken to manage them. I

W XBEHHRBERRAERNEAZER
EXREEBHEEENTY -

Aspect A4: Climate Change BEA4 : RIZ & 1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of HARMONIOUS

—MRIXE significant climate-related issues which have ENVIRONMENT
impacted, and those which may impact, the H&&3&
issuer.

BN EHEREMAESHBRTAELEREN
EARKEBEENBE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related HARMONIOUS
B 5245 IE 12 A4.1  issues which have impacted, and those which ENVIRONMENT
may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to F3&%
manage them.
WAEERAREHETAEEFENEAR
REEER  MEHITH -

A
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RE -#HEB8RERBRE

Aspect B1: Employment [E EB1 : {& /&

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B1.1
8§ 48 W 5 1R B1.1

KPI B1.2
8§ 48 W 5 12 B1.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

FRFMEEE HBEREN THERH &

B FE#E Znlt RESAREMFE

LR

@ HBE: &

by BTHETAGEATENHBEERER
I EE R o

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age

group and geographical region.

R BEBRE(NEBEGRE) - Ficd5

Kl &l o e B A -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

SRR - A EE B RS B BB B RS LK o

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E#i EE R E R 2 A

COHESIVE TALENT
BBEANT

COHESIVE TALENT
BRBEAT
KEY PERFORMANCE DATA

FAREIERE
COHESIVE TALENT

BEEANT
KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
PR BUREE
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R #HERERHS

Aspect B2: Health and Safety EEB2 : REHZ 2

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B2.1
8 # 48 5 1R B2.1

KPI B2.2
8 42 45 W 1EB2.2

KPI B2.3
8 88 AR IR 1R B2.3

Information on: COHESIVE TALENT
(@ the policies; and RBEANT

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

ERRAEZ2THEREMREREER2BEN

EEN:

@ BE: K

(b) BTFTHBTABEATENHBEIZERA
Bl &R o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities The Group’s daily operations
occurred in each of the past three years including are conducted in offices and

the reporting year. sales centres, with relatively
BE=F(BERERFE)TFEAITHMHAZ low health and safety risks.
R bp 2 o In the past three years, there

has been no work-related
fatalities.
AEBRFELEHABMAE
REHEP L BEZZRER
BRE BE=F1TEIMFNE

THITH -
Lost days due to work injury. KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
RIBERIIERE - ARHEEER

Description of occupational health and safety COHESIVE TALENT
measures adopted, how they are implemented & & A

and monitored.

M PR B R RE L 25506 - AN

WITRERTE -
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RIR -HEgRERBE

Aspect B3: Development and Training /& E B3 : & & & 1% 3l

General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

—MRIXE skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.
ERREABREERTIERENNE R KRENR
R A FIER o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender

#8245 A HEEB3.1  and employee category.
BUHRNREEEN(WNERERE - PREEE)
FAoMXIEEES L -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per

752 48 IE1EB3.2  employee by gender and employee category.
RUERNEEERE D  BREE KN
TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards fE HE B4 : 25 T %8|

General Disclosure Information on:

—REE (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI E TR blg TH:

@ HBE: &
by BTHETAGEAZENHBEERZER
5 1) & #}
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment

782 45 BIE 12 B4.1  practices to avoid child and forced labour.
1 AR 5T SR BS 1B B 9 4 B DA B SR B T Re SR 55
I o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate child and
#8245 HE R B4.2  forced labour practices when discovered.
e 3 3R R RIE N E R A BRI AT SR LAY
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COHESIVE TALENT
BEBEANT

COHESIVE TALENT
REBEANT
KEY PERFORMANCE DATA

B BURME

COHESIVE TALENT
BEBEAT

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
BB BUR M &

COHESIVE TALENT
BB AA

COHESIVE TALENT
REREANT

COHESIVE TALENT
BB AA
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&

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [

General Disclosure

— R E
KPI B5.1
38 §8 45 3 45 1R B5.1

KPI B5.2
78§ AR K45 1R B5.2

KPI B5.3
8§ 4R SN 4R 1R B5.3

KPI B5.4
8§ FH SR HE 1R B5 .4

EmEBs: ftEEERE
EEHERENREME SRBREEK -

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
mwEE S NHEERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are

suppliers,

implemented and monitored.

Wi EREERERENED  WERNTERE
FIeyftEEmE R U RBERITRERTE -
Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

LB R E A H RS ERANIRE LR
REER - UREBERITRERTE -
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Wi ERERERFREZBRRER RS
MIED - ARBBRATRER T -

SINCERE COOPERATION
53 1

SINCERE COOPERATION
3 1
KEY PERFORMANCE DATA

A BUR 2
SINCERE COOPERATION

30 4 1

SINCERE COOPERATION
BRE

SINCERE COOPERATION
BEE
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

ﬂgu *kb
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility fE EB6 : & m & 1T

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1
78 §2 48 A5 12 B6.1

KPI B6.2
4 8 48 M 5 12 B6.2

KPI B6.3
B4 8 48 5 12 B6.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

ERfRHERMRENEREZS2  EBEE

BRERLEBEEARBRT AN :

a) BER: &k

by BTHETABEAZENHBEEIENRSR

I & #Y -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

(
(

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXCEREMEAHTR L2 EERERAM
AEPHBEDL -

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with.
EEBERNEMERBGHORFEEARBEH X
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

Wt g MREANAEEAROIED -

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E#i EE R E R 2 A

CRAFTSMANSHIP
BUILDING

I S8 3
CONSIDERATE SERVICE
Bh O RTE

All of the Group'’s properties
undergo regulatory
inspections before being
delivered to homeowners,
and there are no cases where
the properties need to be
recalled due to safety and
health reasons.
AEEMERERRXNEE
MBEERETREI TF
ERZEEEFEEAMAD
WIE L o

CONSIDERATE SERVICE
O AR 75

The Group mainly focuses
on developing residential
projects, with lower risks
regarding building design
patents. We review exterior
design plans to avoid
infringement.
AEBTEZREEHD
R ERFEN R BREBRIE -
AEBERINBRATER
e RERR -
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KPI B6.4
8§ 48 M 5 12 B6.4

KPI B6.5
B4 # 48 5 12 B6.5

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
WilEEmEBRELRERE KRR
Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.
B HBEEERRERALBERE
TRERGE -

PA B AR A

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption B EB7 : R &35

General Disclosure
—REE

KPI B7.1
8§ 48 W 15 1R B7.1

KPI B7.2
B8 # 48 5 1R B7.2

KPI B7.3
8 42 45 I 1EB7.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BEADIEHEE xR BFRLERESN:

@ HE: K

b)) BTFHBTABEATEMNHEBEIERR
Bl Ey & K o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHETAXIERERIACELN
B FRRTNBARFRER -
Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

e M ERIEF AREEATRE
BHIA e

Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff.

HRREER BT RHENOREITHEI -

CRAFTSMANSHIP
BUILDING

b S
CONSIDERATE SERVICE
B B 7

SINCERE COOPERATION
BA e

e e
SINCERE COOPERATION

0 4 1
SINCERE COOPERATION

A
SINCERE COOPERATION

i
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Aspect B8: Community Investment EHB8 : #+ B &R &

General
Disclosure

—RKE

KPI B8.1
38 58 /5 SR 45 1R B8.T

KPI B8.2
4 # 48 M 5 12 B8.2

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
takes into consideration communities’ interests.
ERAURSLERTHREEMELESREMBER
HEBRTHGZERMENZAER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

ErERERE(WHE REFH BIFK:
g -3k - BBH) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIBRBEMPAERMSELER) -

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E#i EE R E R 2 A

CARING COMMUNITY
B R AL

CARING COMMUNITY
AR AL

CARING COMMUNITY
AR AL

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
R B 4R AR
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT

TUVRheinland®
Precisely Right.

Independent Assurance Statement

Introduction

TUV Rheinland (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., member of TUV Rheinland Group, Germany (hereinafter “TUV Rheinland”,
“We”) has been entrusted by the management of KRP Development Holdings Limited (hereinafter “KRP”, “the
Company”) to conduct independent assurance of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report 2023/2024
of KRP (hereinafter “the Report”). All contractual contents for this assurance engagement rest entirely within the
responsibility of KRP. Our task was to give a fair and adequate judgment on the Report.

The intended users of this assurance statement are stakeholders who have relevance to KRP’s overall ESG performance
and impacts of its business activities during year 2023/2024 (1 April 2023 ~ 31 March 2024).

TUV Rheinland is a global service provider of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability Services in over 65
countries, having qualified professionals in the field of Corporate Sustainability Assurance, Environment, Social and
Stakeholder Engagement. We have maintained complete impartiality and independence during the assurance
engagement, and we were not involved in the preparation of the Report contents.

Assurance Standard

TUV Rheinland undertook the assurance work in accordance with the AA1000 Assurance Standard v3 (AAT000AS v3)
Moderate level assurance.

Scope & Type of Assurance

Our assurance engagement was carried out in accordance with the AAT000AS v3, Type 1, Moderate level on KRP’s
ESG performance in the Report. The following assurance criteria were used in performing the assurance work:
e Inaccordance with ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (HKEX)
e Adherence to the AA1000 AccountAbility Principles of Inclusivity, Materiality, Responsiveness and Impact

Assurance Methodology

Our assurance activities included:

e  Reviewing management practices and processes to assess KRP’s ESG system, which includes stakeholder
engagement, identification of material topics, risk assessment, and performance indicators.

e Conducting interviews with management responsible for ESG performance and data collection.

e  Reviewing and analyzing ESG-based performance information and data on a sample basis, to test accuracy of
information and data by using analytical procedure.

e Collecting and assessing documentary evidence and management representations that support adherence to the
AccountAbility Principles.

Limitations

TUV Rheinland performed the assurance based on the scope of defined engagement agreement, and on a moderate level
of assurance under the AAT000AS for engagement. Information and performance data subject to assurance is limited to
the contents of the Report.

Procedures performed in a moderate assurance vaty in nature from, and are less in extent, than high level assurance.
Our assurance work did not cover financial data and other information not related to sustainability.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 £ $§
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TUVRheinland®

Precisely Right.

Conclusions

Based on our methodology and activities performed within the scope of this assessment, we can reach a conclusion that
no instances or information came to our attention that would be to the contrary of the statement made as below:

e  KRP 2023/2024 ESG Report and its contents adhere to the AccountAbility Principles.

e KRP has implemented processes to collect and aggregate key quantized performance data in relation to
important topics within the reporting boundary.

e ESG-related information and performance data disclosed in the Report are assessed and supported by
documentary evidence.

TUV Rheinland shall not bear any liability or responsibility to a third party for perception and decision on KRP based
on this Assurance Statement.

Adherence to the AA1000 AccountAbility Principles

Inclusivity

The key stakeholders identified by KRP include shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, regulators and industry
organizations, and the local community. Evidence shows that the company conducted stakeholder surveys in 2023 on
the ESG issues identified to understand the expectations and perspectives of these stakeholders.

Materiality

According to the characteristics of the company’s business, the external business environment, the results of the
stakeholder questionnaire survey, and the reference and benchmarking of internationally recognized sustainable
development standards, KRP assessed and determined the highly important material issues, which include ensuring
housing quality and safety, business ethics and integrity, and occupational health and safety, etc., and they are disclosed
in this report. We recommend that KRP disclose a matrix chart of the prioritization of materiality issues.

Responsiveness

The methods and channels for KRP to communicate and interact with stakeholders on ESG issues include shareholders’
meetings, government seminars, industry workshops, supplier audits and training, employee training, customer
interviews or surveys, and social projects. In accordance with the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide, the company disclosed
relevant ESG information and key performance indicators in the report, covering water and energy, greenhouse gas
emissions, emissions, workplace injuries, and employee management, etc.

Impact

KRP pays attention to corporate risk assessment, focusing on environmental protection, safety, personal information
protection and anti-corruption, and implements relevant actions through internal control mechanisms. We recommend
that KRP continue to carry out environmental and social impact analysis and assessment on the company’s operations
and business relationships.

Daniel Pan

Corporate Sustainability Service Technical Manager
TUV Rheinland (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Shanghai, China, 25 June 2024

AA1000

Licensed Report
000-555/V3-RWQFU
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BUYERBSE
A TUVRheinland®
Precisely Right.
FLEREN
iyl
KRG (108) ARATE - ZERKE TOV £EKEZ — (DUTEE “TOV K" 8 “&fT” ) » 25

AlEHEIER AR A S (LUNEHE “Zal7 5 “AH" ) EHTZRCEEA] 2023/2024 Fik - tgfE
e (DUFIEE “HE” ) #ITINIER - ARFERAETHENITAERATTE VAR A - i
TR B HHR S EH—E A ERE S0 AT -
AR O Y TE A3 R B2 AIE 2023/20244F 18 (20234 H1HZE 202443 H31H ) BEE - HgfE s
(ESG) &ML B B E = S ENAY A 25 tERR 7T -
TOVE B — R M RIS L ER - Emes(EE R AET ST TR ESERT - WA E4
FEARHE SR - B - R 2 EEESEFER o LRERAET - RMEREKRS:
ERFFAIEREI - WA S SN ERER -

FEREAE
TUVH A B AccountAbility AA1000ZEERFZEE v3 ( AALO00AS v3) Hr B ESHN R AR B i A 28 TAF -
& B B AR

BTG AAL000 FERITAE v3 » JHRL-1 AP R/KEEAREERFE Al & Y ESG SENAE R - ToEEReE
At R B A TCEERR TAF
o (R (BEBESXAFTARAFRES EHRAD ek C2 (B3R - ttg KER#HERES) ( (ESG
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o M AALO00 FERIFHI - BIEAE - BENE - EIEMERIR S
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HFHIESRSB AL TS
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A TUVRheinland®

Precisely Right.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KRP Development Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
KRP Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 143 to 239,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2024 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BEAEHEEZRAERLAAZERRZ
BYZEAMERE
(REEHEZTMELZEFRLA)

R
EEOEZVNE N EI143EF2398 54
B EZERERAR(ELAR ] KEN
BRreEI(BIEEB) 2K BHRE
REVEBRRBER=SE_MF=A
=T—HZHEEHBRAREEEZA
FtFEZHREBER HReBEakH
HEMBRAR SKEEZEDR LG
EREMER  URPBEHRERMITE 8
FXTESTHEME -

BERS ZEHEAMBRRERE
EARGHMAEEM(EEM B HRE
HADEEMAFHRRT E&ER
“ECNF=ZA=T—HZEATBN
ARBEZRLEFREZHEAMBRA
MERBEERE YEBREB(RT
fGRBI)z BB ERZDHRE

RRzE®

BEEOREBBEAMASHEM 2(F
BEERVETEN - BFERFE
AT AE 2 EEEHE AR E [ BE0 5
B REVBRRAEZERIBS R
tFE—FRL - REFESHMLE
B 2 B X gt ahaE T RDUAT
[FRADAEEEEHHRSHSHEAY
BHRRIEBFTHBZBRER  BEFE
VR BRE YEETELBRER
ARSFAPZHEMEXEREET - BF

=Ry

BiE BEMESZEFREETENR
AEMABEEFCENERIRMEER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FREETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional ~ FAEBEETFIEIIREEZE 2 HE A6 -
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the RAHRNHPEEMBERRIIEARR
consolidated financial statements of the current period. EZEIH - FEFTBHEAE TS HT
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit % &8 ??éﬁﬂ‘kiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and EI - BT @ HELEHIZMHES
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a Z,mﬁ

separate opinion on these matters.

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Chinese 3t e R E B ([ s 3 E B ) 2

Mainland

]

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial statements and 75 247 & B 5K FZ W 281 & i &

the accounting policy note 2(p).

The key audit matter
BRERER

/]/jufZ(p) °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEEZSE

LAT in Chinese Mainland is one of the main
components of the Group’s taxation charge.
FEA T HIEENEAEEHREI LN ETE
ARED -

LAT is levied on sales of properties at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value in accordance with the requirements
set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations.
REBEEBETARARNRE T EEH R L
BIEM30%E60% M RER K - MEVRIHEEK
THIRER -

Our audit procedures to assess the provision
for LAT in Chinese Mainland included the
following:
BAERATATEAEFEFEREAL L
¥ T E A

e assessing the design and implementation of
key internal controls over the calculation of
the estimated LAT provision;

o FMEHMAATHMIEERBENTENRER
P BB 7 il B B AT R B e

e obtaining understanding of relevant tax
rules and regulations of LAT and assessing
the appropriateness of the Group’s
methodology on the calculations with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

. Tﬁ@if@i“fﬁﬁéﬁ’ﬁﬁE@ﬁ”ﬁl?ﬁ%ﬁ ¥ 2%

BTt B M BRI B AKEFES A
HEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Chinese

Mainland (continued)

The key audit matter
BRELEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

RREBEFSHE)
(&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZEE

HE At it R E R ([ B EH )&

The Group estimates the provision for LAT based
on its understanding and interpretation of the
relevant tax rules and regulations and the total
sales of properties less estimated total deductible
expenditure. The estimated total deductible
expenditure includes cost of land use right,
property development costs and borrowing costs
that might consist of uncertainties on whether
those costs are deductible in accordance with the
relevant tax rules and regulations. When the LAT
is subsequently determined, the actual payments
charged to the Group may be different from the
estimate.
AEBERBEHHBEHRUVOEROIEEMERE - LA
EYRHEEBBEREBFAHNG AR W
MELHIBEHERS - REEABERBOER - B
AR AERE LM ERERE  BihER
BRARMERKAA - MZERXARTAMG - F&
THEEE BREAETLHEETES AEEE
BR W BN RO 5K TR A] BE B AR FT TR o

We identified provision for LAT in Chinese
Mainland as a key audit matter because
the estimated provision for LAT is based on
management’s judgement and interpretation of the
relevant tax laws, regulations and practices and
because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

KM REAS T EERBER N RERE
AER AR EENMNGTERGEEERNERE
BHMBABKL AR MEPIOHEMERE AR
HUASEAHMBEHRERNER N -

e involving our internal taxation specialists
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
deductibility of property development
expenditure in the Group’s calculation
based on our experience, knowledge
and understanding of the practices of the
application of the relevant tax laws by the

various local tax bureaus; and

e BRMOAMRBERRBEANER -
MBMHAZH TR RERABEEANE
BHEE FEAKEEFEFSMERR

SHBMBE ENAEN R

e comparing, on a sample basis, the amount
of provision for LAT recorded by the Group
with our calculations performed by our

internal taxation specialist.

o EMMEMERL BEBFENLIHMIEE
Tk R RIS B E TR AT

B AT o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

B B ()
REFETRRFE

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements 75 2[4 & B K KA 158 & 51 B

and the accounting policy note 2(i).

The key audit matter
ARELER

KK E20) -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESNERNAEEZESR

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregate carrying
value of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale and properties under development (together
“inventories”) totalled RMB964.7 million.
R2024F3A31H AREREHENCKRIME
MERTHXGERIFENEAEEST/RAR
%964 7EE T

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The calculation of the net
realisable value for each category of property
held in the property development projects at
the financial reporting date is performed by
management.
FERRAEAERZFERNETREEAR - &
BEERUKERESAAEMERZERETZSRNY
EHAIEBFE -

The calculation of the net realisable value of
inventories involves significant management
judgement and estimation on the costs to
completion and assessing the expected future net
selling prices for each category of property held in
the property development project, with reference
to recent sales transactions in nearby locations, the
estimated future selling costs and the relevant taxes
and other expenses.
FEAERFEANGESIREEEHEZTTAAN
MEXRHEMEST  AERFEAFZSRIDEN
BHARKFEE  S2EMOHNHNTHEERS -
EEFARAREEXNAALBEANREMEMGER °

We identified assessing the net realisable value
of inventories of the Group as a key audit matter
because of the inherent risks involved in estimating
net realisable values on the inventories.

ARG FERN2RFEFERARR - RAKF
MAEEFEAS2RFEEESBERETSE -

Our audit procedures to assess the net
realisable value of inventories included the

following:
ZPERTUTEARFEFEFEAERF
8-

e assessing the design and implementation
of key internal controls over the
preparation and monitoring of management
budgets and forecasts of each property
development project;

s IEEFMEMKBEERAIMBRNEEN
EHMEE - FEH BRORE 5 A5 8
R MEH

e evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

s Z2ERTEHENNER FEFEME
TERBEE

e challenging the reasonableness of the
expected future selling prices by comparing
expected future selling prices to recent
transacted prices for similar properties and
the prices of comparable properties located
in the nearby vicinity of each category of
property held;

s BBKEHARREBRBLUYEMNTHR
SEBARMRAFENTRYEW TN
ALEMENBRETHER  BREBEHRK
EENEEMY:

e comparing the costs incurred for each
development project up to 31 March 2024
with budgets made as at 31 March 2023
to assess the accuracy of management’s
forecasting and budgeting process;

o HEE2024F3A31HBEMEHEB KK
B FE2023F3ANAMFAEETLE - N
AEEREEEAMAEERENERMT
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B ZEAMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BMREITERE)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories FHEFENESRFEE)
(continued)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRERSEE EENERNMAREEZEE

e evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimated costs to completion and the
estimated future selling costs for each
category of property held by comparing
those with the Group’s latest budget and
market available data, on a sample basis, to
assess the reliability of the data used by the
management; and

s UBARGER BEBEZKHBRENTSA
R ESEEERM T IERKAR
AREERANEEY  FHEREMRA
BB ST &

e considering the sensitivity analyses
prepared by management to determine
the extent of changes in key estimates
and assumptions that, either individually
or collectively, adopted in assessing net
realisable value, may result in material
misstatements in inventories and whether
there was any indication of management
bias.

s TEREEERUEUNGBMEDN - UEEHE
AP AR R EREB N KRR A5

e MRBROE(CREE - TRERTFED
BERER URREFEEMEEERR
HEFR e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEMERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEMERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE BB M B EF FEU B RRAEZE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E (&)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, WEBEZEZE S EFER2EFHF BF
we determine those matters that were of most significance T E WL BEE AL ST HEREK 2
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Wit &xAEEZ EMEKBREBAS
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 18 - EEEZHAI RS R HllELE
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law I8 ' BRIEERER T AT AR EEL
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter EI1E @ HEBRKFER 2B AT - IR &
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine EBEEEEHREFEBEEHEN
that a matter should not be communicated in our report <ZEBEBRBBELEZAZRMNE @ &
because the adverse consequences of doing so would FRENEEREFEHEZEE -
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEAXBIZHMBEZEFBEEH

independent auditor’s report is Cheng Chu Fai. AEEPEELE o

KPMG ESRSTMERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEZE AN

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BEABHIR

10 Chater Road FEITE109%

Central, Hong Kong RKFRKE8E

18 June 2024 —EWMFEAATNAR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

)

3=

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZ=Z—UF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”) (A A R#5517R)

2024 2023
—E-NMFE —FT-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TrT ARETT
Revenue PN 4 226,877 700,751
Cost of revenue NN (81,153) (183,819)
Gross profit EF 145,724 516,932
Other net losses H b 518 558 6 (14,788) (4,353)
Selling expenses 8 & 5 2 (15,798) (16,217)
General and administrative — R RITHA X
expenses (31,634) (46,852)
Operating profit Pl 83,504 449,510
Finance income B 7% U A 7() 2,883 6,034
Finance costs B 75 B A 7(@) (302) (6,419)
Finance income/(costs), net  BABWA “(B*) #& 2,581 (385)
Profit before taxation B B4 A& 7 86,085 449,125
Income tax charge FTiSfif X 8(a) (46,016) (268,279)
Profit for the year FREF 40,069 180,846
Earnings per share — TR —
Basic and diluted (RMB Cents) E AMEBERZ(ARESD) 11 7.9 35.8
The notes on pages 151 to 239 form part of these financial 151i239EZ|34T ARAMBRRZ—

statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for ~#@mFA A Z I E
the year are set out in note 23(e).

i

N2
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEaREMEZEBRAR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE—Z - IF=A=+—HIIFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R¥ 51 7R)

2024 2023
—EZmE —T-o=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

fiiE ARWTR AR®TTT

Profit for the year FERA 40,069 180,846

Other comprehensive income AFEHM2EK A :

for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified T8 E¥ 7 HE B < HE -

to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of provision for REIRE @ EH 2 EFNGTE

long service payments 77 160
Items that may be reclassified ~— B {EAJGEEF 7 E B 2

subsequently to profit or loss: HE

=

Exchange differences on B A 3 3R 90 3R T B 7S R
translation of financial MEELZR
statement of operations outside
Chinese Mainland (585) (36,126)

Other comprehensive income FEH2EK A
for the year (508) (35,966)

Total comprehensive income FEZEABALSE

for the year 39,561 144,880
The notes on pages 151 to 239 form part of these financial ~ F151E 2398 KM s R AR B K 2 —
statements B o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBERRR

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A REEFIITR)

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

—E-NFE —FT-=F
=ZA=+—-B =ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR®FTr ARETT

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% ' i E K& & 12 1,509 3,857
Investment properties BREME 13 118,916 77,850
Deferred tax assets RIERSEE 20(b) 109,013 95,670
229,438 177,377
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and other contract & Kk E & [ K &
costs 15 965,907 1,055,162
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - A R HEA
other receivables JFE W BR K 16 17,275 12,121
Cash and bank deposits Ba MBETER 17(a) 175,162 267,835
1,158,344 1,335,118
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H fth T BR K 18 56,966 84,020
Lease liabilities HE&E 21 103 500
Contract liabilities EREaE 19 20,583 121,671
Current tax payable 7 HA FE A5 A 1A 20(a) 440,856 456,594
518,508 662,785
Net current assets RBEEFE 639,836 672,333
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ]
Total assets less current EERERARBEE J,SJ
liabilities 869,274 849,710 L

A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
meaMBERRR

(Expressed in RMB) (A A RE717R)

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

—ENFE —FT-=F
=ZA=+—-8B =ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR®Fr AREBTT

Non-current liabilities kRBEME

Provision for long service payable & Hi ik 7% & # ## 17 81

Lease liabilities HEBE 21 9 1,462

Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEAE 20(b) 20,025 19,613
20,051 21,156

NET ASSETS EERE 849,223 828,554

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 23

Share capital % A 4,394 4,394

Reserves & 1 844,829 824,160

TOTAL EQUITY HWEER 849,223 828,554

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-_ZT_NF XA+ \BHEEZSHE

on 18 June 2024. REETIIT -
Ho Wai Hon, Brian Ho Man Chung
a8 5F A
Director Director
EZE EZE

The notes on pages 151 to 239 form part of these financial #1512 2398 2 {5 A A E %k 2 —
statements. 2o o
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B#ZE—Z - F=F=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A REEFIITR)

Share Share Exchange Statutory surplus Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
REx  ROEE  EXREE ARRBEE  G0EE  REEW fait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
(note 23(b)  (note 23()i)  (note 23(c)(il)  (note 23(c)iii))  (hote 23(c)iv))
(WiEon) (W00 (BiEsem  (Eso6m  (HEsem)
Balance at 1 April 2022~ Z8=Z%QA-H
&8 = 374400 16,790 52,564 (262,279) 567,199 748,674
Changes in equity for the ~ BE=F==%
year ended 31 March 2023: ZA=t-ALEE
Ei29:
Profit for the year ERER - - - - — 180,846 180,846
Other comprehensive income E £ 2 EM A = = (36,126) = = 160 (35,966)
Total comprehensive income 2EM A £ 8 - = (36,126) = = 181,006 144,880
Issuance of shares BRE (HE20))
(note 23(b)(i) 4394 (4394) - - - - -
Appropriation of statutory  EERRHEER
surplus reserve = = = 22,29 = (22,295) =
Distribution (note 23(e) A& (R 23(e) - (8,000) - - - (57,000) (65,000)
Balance at 31 March 2023 —B==§
ZR=T-RZGR 4,39 362,006 (19,336) 74,859 (262,279) 668,910 828,554

* The balance represents an amount less than RMB500.

* REHREIRARBS00TTHER °
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

n"_\/E\*Eﬁ_ﬁ%Eb%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B#EZE-—Z - F=F=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R#517R)

Share Share Exchange Statutory Merger Retained
capital premium reserve ~ surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
Rx  RHEE  EXRE iEEBREE  AHEE  REER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®TR ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  AR¥TR
(note 23(b)  (mote 23(c)(i))  (note 23(c)(ii) (note 23(c)(iii)  (note 23(c)(iv))
(Was) (WD) (W) (WEBO6)  (KE230m)
Balance at 1 April 2023 ~ ZBZ=£MA-R
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L . SO - U O L L
Changes in equity for the ~ BZ=F=M%
year ended 31 March 2024: ZA=t-ALEE
E229:
Profit for the year ERER - - — = — 40,069 40,069
Other comprehensive income E £ 2 EU A = = (585) = = 77 (508)
(pEesiooy SN - R . - LA ]
Appropriation of statutory  EERHEEER
surplus reserve - - - 6,585 - (6,585) -
Dividends approved in respect - & 2 3 fi 7
of the previous year GE)
(note 23(e)) - - - - - (18,892) (18,892)
Balance at 31 March 2024 ZBZ=Rf
ZR=t-BzEH 4,394 362,006 (19,921) 81,444 (262,279) 683,579 849,223
The notes on pages 151 to 239 form part of these financial ~ F151E 2398 2 Wit AR ik 2 —
statements. o e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BLZE_Z_NF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R¥EFIITR)

2024 2023
—EBEDOE 2 —T-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TR AREBTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Cash (used in)/generated from & & (i) Fid
operations REFH 17(b) (3,865) 113,877
Income tax paid EATFTIRHR (75,268) (203,356)
Income tax refunded ERE G — 80,015
Net cash used in operating RETBFARE
activities FH (79,133) (9,464)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Payment for the addition of NEWME  BWERRE
property, plant and equipment EOEREN (247) (889)
Proceed from disposal of HEME  BELERB
property, plant and equipment 2 FT13 5 — 100
Interest received 2 F & 2,883 6,034
Net cash generated from REFDFEREFH
investing activities 2,636 5,245
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Proceeds from new bank RITIEEMBRIA
borrowings 17(c) 18,892 —
Repayment of bank borrowings fEERITEE 17(c) (18,892) (243,549)
Interest paid EENEAIES 17(c) (276) (10,159)
Decrease in amounts due to JE 1~ 8 3 A & BR BORL A
related parties 17(c) e (2,821)
Capital element of lease rentals BENHEHREMNERIT D
paid 17(c) (173) 411)
Interest element of lease rentals B A EHE & HF B 25
paid 17(c) (26) (99)
Decrease in pledged deposits B 1 17 OB A — 68,731
Dividend and distribution paid B i & & 5k 23(e) (18,892) (65,000)
Net cash used in financing MEETEFAZERS
activities (19,367) (253,308)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BEZE—Z - F=F=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R¥ 51 7R)

2024 2023
—F-@mE —T_=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR®TRT AR®BTT
Net decrease in cash and cash BHERELEEY
equivalents " (95,864) (257,527)
Cash and cash equivalentsat FHREREASZEY
the beginning of the year 17(a) 267,835 524,099
Effect of foreign exchange rate IS EXZS BN E
changes 3,191 1,263
Cash and cash equivalentsat FREERREZEEY
the end of the year 17() 175,162 267,835
The notes on pages 151 to 239 form part of these financial 9B Z M AR AT B HRR 2 —

2 W
s
" I

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

KRP Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 2
September 2020 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 23 March 2023, after the successful spin-off
of the Company from the previous ultimate holding
company, Karrie International Holdings Limited
(“KIHL”) which is incorporated in Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The details of
the immediate and ultimate controlling party of the
Company after the spin-off are disclosed in note 28 to
the financial statements.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”)
are principally engaged in development and sales
of residential properties in Dongguan, Huizhou and
Foshan. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.

1

—REHR

AR EERERARIERA
ANEREHERBERERSEZ
BEREBERANE(KETR=ZZE=F
FLA-HaAMK L AEREER

A -

RARIRERZERERARZAN
BIRIERER AR ((ERBERBR] -
RBREFMAS  EROABER
FrEm) N D iFE - XARKRM
BE-_ZT_=F=-A_t+=HR&H
BEERXZHMBER AR (B
FREM - BEAI>THFENEER
REESALTZER DRI B ®
=BT FE28H FE -

RRABBIREERRE » KRR R
EffE AR (B AEE) 2%
= BMEHLEEEEMED
HRAEE - -WEBRRNERE
BRY BRI E4RE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 % ¥§ 151



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FxS3A &AM - AARIETITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHE
(@) Statement of compliance (@) &=

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Material
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

W BHRRTDRIEMEEMA
ZERMBHREER ([EERM
BHEEQ ) R WEBES
B Ag (BEREFHAA
B WMz A ERNERZE
M REEL - BAEGE
AI(TEBERER D ERE
B AR EFRAUREFB(A
AR BI) 2 B FE L E M 3 -
Itk B 75 ¥R 3R TR AT B B KR T RE
FETRAUTETRR ) 28
ABERE  AEREXRAZE
ZEFHRBEFINWT -

ERGMAGSE EMZA
FRMBHREERZER] - A
RARERARRZAG
DEPNER CTIES S
M iE2(c) e R A & W E A% F
EAKEEEBAYCRBNA
SFFHEkBESFHEZ
MHERERAZGTHRRESD
ZEF -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries. The measurement basis used
in the preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and employee benefit liabilities which
have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

2 EESTEREE)

(b)

MEBRR2RERBEEE
MERRZHEREEHEEZ -
E_MNE=A=+—HItFE
AV BREBEASE
REWB AR - XMERE
KAELKAEBTEEE
mE - EIREYE - Ethem
EEMEIRBNMNEBEETUR
FEFE -

RETABTBYBREER
ZHBEHRRFZ2EEEFL
HE - B RBRREFER
RZERAREE BFE WA
EXHZEBZE2® - F
EarthEEBERRDRBER
BLEMESBERBERAEER
EEZARERKE  BK
RRBEBEMI AR S HERE
EEZEENMBEHEBERK
EE BERERATEERRNIE
FihE -

HEEFREABRREHE
mEte ARERZ @A
REERBEHE HEXR
ZHIEER REERAFE
BERARRBRE  HEki
SRBRLRRIAEER

EEEBEREREEMBRE
HRMIELH AT ERRE
ERFEZHE 2 AEE M
TERIRDRME3R W

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 % ¥§ 153



y )

]‘W‘e

V@

& éég

i
|

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

2

154

i

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Changes in accounting policies
(i) New and amended HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new
and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

e Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting
policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

e  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of
accounting policies

. Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome
taxes: Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

° Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome
taxes: International tax reform — Pillar
Two model rules

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in this annual financial report.
The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR
Government gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come
into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance
takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from
its mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce
the long service payment (“LSP”) in respect
of an employee’s service from the Transition
Date (the abolition of the “offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect
of the service before the Transition Date
will be calculated based on the employee’s
monthly salary immediately before the
Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” that provides guidance on the
accounting considerations relating to the
offsetting mechanism and the abolition of
the mechanism.

There is no material impact by adoption of
the guidance to the Group.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until
the date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for
foreign currency transaction gains or losses)
arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any related non-controlling
interests and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when control
is lost.
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2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii)):

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see note
2(g)).

If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
profit or loss. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment less their estimated residual values
if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

— Fixtures and leasehold improvements

—RERMERE

— Furniture, tools and computer equipment
— B MBI R

— Motor vehicles

— AE

— Properties leased for own use

— HEFERNYE

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Investment properties

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently at fair value with changes
therein recognised in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is recognised
in accordance with note 2(r)(ii).

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. This
is the case if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.
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2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEESTHE(E)
(g) Leased assets (continued) (g HEEEE)
(i) As alessee (i) 1EREFEA

fid & 4B = 12 & 4 A
DNRIFHEHEMKED
AEBREET DI
HEAKD X HE
& 78 & 48 AR BE D S A ]
HEZFEEEAKIED
ER—HE—HEMAMNX
MoOETEETREE -

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for leases that have a
short lease term of 12 months or less, and
leases of low-value items such as laptops
and office furniture. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value item,
the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If not
capitalised, the associated lease payments
are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that

is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is recognised using the effective
interest method.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(e) and 2(h)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
if there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(if)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a lease modification, which
means a change in the scope of a lease
or the consolidation for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract,
if such modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In the case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective rate of
the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group presents right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition of
investment property in “property, plant and
equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately. The current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. Otherwise, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(r)(ii).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECL”s) on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank deposits, amounts
due from related companies, pledged
deposits and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates
of credit losses. Generally, credit losses
are measured as the present values of
all expected cash shortfalls between the
contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following rates if the effect is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, other
receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are the portion
of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months); and

— lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except
for the following, which are measured at
12-months ECLs:

— financial instruments that are
determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date; and

— other financial instruments (including
loan commitments issued) for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when
measuring ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment, that includes
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 90 days past due.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EREHBEE)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h CEEBBEREEZREGE)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) EMIBEZEEER
(continued) (&
Credit-Impaired financial assets EEREZMEE
At each reporting date, the Group assesses RE®RERH  SEFT
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. HeMEESETLRRE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when SRE - BELE-RKS
one or more events that have a detrimental BEHERMEEMGTRRE
impact on the estimated future cash flows of BenEFTNTEZE
the financial asset have occurred. T eRMEELBEE
ERE -
Evidence that a financial asset is TREELREERE
credit-impaired includes the following ZRBEBEATHERES
observable events: f:
— significant financial difficulties of the — BEBALRERY
debtor; %R 2
— a breach of contract, such as a default — ERELH HIWEF
or being more than 90 days past due; B 173k B HA #8190
X
— the restructuring of a loan or advance — AEBEUXREEFT
by the Group on terms that the Group R 1TE RO IRK
would not consider otherwise; BEHER KB
— it is probable that the debtor will — BEBARBARE
enter bankruptcy or other financial PE o 1T H B 7
reorganisation; or BM: 3
— the disappearance of an active market — BTARTBEEH
for a security because of financial )5 B &5 H
difficulties of the issuer. Ko

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (other than property carried at
revalued amounts, investment property,
inventories and other contract costs,
contract assets and deferred tax assets) to
determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash-generating
units (“CGU”s).

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BY 35 SRR MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

2
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_

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU
is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then other to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the CGU on
a pro rata basis.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the resulting carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories and contract costs
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value as follows:

(i) Property development

Cost of properties comprises specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition
cost of interests in freehold and leasehold
land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses, an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs
capitalised (see note 2(t) and any other
costs incurred in bringing the properties
to their present location and condition. In
the case of properties developed by the
Group which comprise of multiple units to
be sold individually, the cost of each unit is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project to each unit on a per square
meter basis, unless another basis is more
representative of the cost of the specific
unit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BY 35 SRR MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

2
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Inventories and contract costs (continued)

(i)

(if)

Property development (continued)

Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less any estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 2(i)(i)) or
property, plant and equipment (see note
2(e)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
e.g. sales commissions, are capitalised if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

2

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A

EREFBRERE)

0]

BE

(i)

(if)

RENKE (&)
MRBRE(E)

AR FERMGITEE
WA EIRARRE
HYEMELEZ KA

HAt & A

Hit AR ARBMEE
FAEAOMBEEKANNE
TEFPAMMMBAR - A
BEXMeRFE(RME
200(0) I - BB K&
(R EE2(e))

MG EH2EEXAKP
MEEME - MBARREIK
2 AR RS
HIM ARER - MK AT
HaE - RImEAH0Z
BERARELRSE
FER - MBAHNZE M
BT BE R SR 8H o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B % R R MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Inventories and contract costs (continued)

(if)

Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Otherwise,
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets, are
expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation of
capitalised contract costs is recognised to
profit or loss when the revenue to which the
asset relates is recognised (see note 2(r)).
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

2
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VS |

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration
and only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured
at their transaction price. Receivables that
contain a significant financing component and
other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see note

2(h)(i).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(r)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such latter cases, a corresponding receivable is
also recognised (see note 2(j)).

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective

interest method (see note 2(r)).

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

(m)

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently,
these borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest
expenses is recognised in accordance with note
2(v).

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and other short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statements. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL (see note 2(h)(i)).

2 EESTHHBERE)

M

(m)

(n)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 £ $§

TEMEE
HEEERVNERAFERR
AT E - B’ BB
TR # H XN A B BR A RO
SR - B ERRIEE
kA (Bt 5 2() e

BEZREMENKRR
BoRMNERERBEREXER
BRETREEABEESMmNL
MBS ZER -

B 5 R E A RN IR R &)
N ERER  HRREHENX
O - BROFREBR BN -
R UL AR A ARSI B -

RERAEEEY
BehReFEYERBRT
FREBEE AR ER
BZEMERHEE  MitE
BREANKESZSENHBE
ZHe FIAARXEMER
g2EERMEREBAR=EA
NEH - EEAERENR
EXRME  FRAMARERE
ZHROTEX\RASERS
EIR 2 —HEKED - FLRE
ERREMBALEEY - R
ERRCEFEBYIEREE
&5 18 (R BT 52 2(h) () &F 1l »

173

|

A

&
(]




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FxS3A &AM - AARIETITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTHE(E)
(0) Employee benefits o EEEA
(i) Employee leave entitlement (i) EE=ZERPZER

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined
contribution plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are not reduced
by contributions forfeited by the Group
on behalf of those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Retirement plan — Long service
payments

The contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged as an expense
in the year as the related services are
provided by employees.

The Group’s net obligation under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance in respect
of long service payments on cessation of
employment under certain circumstances is
the estimated discounted amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated
annually using the projected unit credit
method, taking into account offsetable
accrued benefits related to the Group’s
Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme
contributions.

Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’
compensations are recorded as a liability
and charged to profit or loss when the
Group is contractually obliged or when
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation and the associated
services are rendered by the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FxS3A &AM - AARIETITR)

2
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year, and any adjustments to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax
arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for:

— temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

— temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

— those related to the income taxes arising
from tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.
Future taxable profits are determined based
on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the
business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are
reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

2
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at
their fair value in accordance with note 2(f), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if certain criteria are met.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Generally provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised
when the underlying products or services
are sold, based on historical warranty data
and a weighting of possible outcomes
against their associated probabilities.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTHE(E)
(r» Revenue and other income rn WERHEMBKA

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property
is accepted by the customer, or deemed
as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statements of financial position
under contract liabilities (see note 2(k)).

If any advance payments received from
the buyers are regarded as providing a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
interest expense arising from the adjustment
of time value of money will be accrued
by the Group during the period between
the payment date and the date of delivery
property. This accrual increases the balance
of the contract liability during the period of
construction, and therefore increases the
amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to
the customer. The interest is expensed as
accrued unless it is eligible to be capitalised
under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in
accordance with the policies set out in note
2(1).

2 EESTEBREE)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTHE(E)
(' Revenue and other income (continued) r WERHEMBAE)
(ii) Rental income (i) HA£WA

Rental income is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. The “effective
interest rate” is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired). However, for financial assets that
have become credit-impaired subsequent
to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest
income reverts to the gross basis.

Translation of foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s presentation currency.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(if)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

The income and expenses of operations
with functional currency other than RMB
are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve,
except to the extent that the translation
difference is allocated to non-controlling
interests.

2 EESTEBREAE)
(s) IEBREE)

(if)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2

®

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

2  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)
(b)

Related parties (continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent,
subsidiary is related to the others).

subsidiary and fellow

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

2 EESHHBERE)

(u)
(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 £ $§

BEAL(E)

i & AR J

— B

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

BEASEGHE

EZ?‘-T a/\$%@E
(pr NCIIS Pﬁ%
NCID RIS/
AR LR A REE) °

BA
Z %A
m%(jz—
EENKE
/NS

mf} _J&D
X

‘Hﬂn
B
Il e

\;
!

%FFFF&NJ&HVHH
[ER i

A HE o

=

o B D>

il hLD

&3 N
>
el

° |||
ot 2
Hbﬂlf
L]

|

e S H

NS

el i 1
i}
7B
N
&
IS

td,

o 1) i
B I

A B> W
Sl

W
D= g

\
/

B
ki

o\

ZERBRAKEK
RASBEREZ
ERBZREEMR
BIREMETE -

i

21 (a) P 8 5
RS R

\
/

I N
Ry > fie
2 H M

i o WF 5%
Hﬁ?ﬁ’%ﬁ%m}m

]
)

N
I

m > o
%l'/ i
H
N

\
r

i

185

A




Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EERSFBRE)
(u) Related parties (continued) u BEALE)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group (i) sZZ Efe st :Z E 52
of which it is a part, provides key P & B 2 E AT X
management personnel services to the BRAI/AEEK
Group or to the Group's parent. REBEZ & RF R
HETEEE ABR
ﬂﬁ% °

Close members of the family of a person %2/\7:2%*‘ MK B
are those family members who may be EEERER XZZ@
et ?EHHT ZZ A

expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity. THRXEFEZ REK

(v) Segment reporting (v) DE®E
Operating segments, and the amounts of LEDBRESLMBERSP
each segment item reported in the financial RENZHEBEEZ T 15

statements, are identified from the financial AREHRAEEES TR
EEAEBERCABERIN
AN B A [B] 56 P K b [ 1
HERD K RFHERSE -

information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

The Group manages its business as a whole REBRBBERHER

as property development is the only reporting
segment. The financial statements are presented
in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported retaining to the Group’s
senior executive management for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Iﬁ%%%ﬂﬁmﬂﬁ—#&i’\
CBEXMBERMEINT
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates may be different from the actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in future years are
discussed below.

(@ Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) in Chinese
Mainland
As explained in note 8(a), LAT is levied on
properties developed by the Group for sale, at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less estimated
deductible expenditures including cost of land
use rights, property development costs and
borrowing costs. Given the uncertainties of the
calculation basis of land appreciation tax to be
interpreted by the local tax bureau and the actual
appreciation of land value may be different from
the original estimates, the actual outcomes may
be higher or lower than that estimated at the end
of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease
in estimates would affect the amount recognised
in the profit or loss.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and
other deductible temporary differences carried
forward are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets,
expected taxable profits are estimated which
involves a number of assumptions relating to the
operating environment of the Group and require
a significant level of judgement exercised by the
directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgement would affect the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets to be recognised.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 13, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by an independent firm of
professional surveyors.

In determining the fair value of investment
properties, the valuers have used the direct
comparison method and the replacement cost
method, which involves, inter alia, certain
estimates including adjustment factors on the
timing, location and other individual factors for
its comparable transactions. In relying on the
valuation report, management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.

3  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3 EiHERMEE(E)
(continued)
(b) Recognition of deferred tax assets (b BMRIELEHBEEE
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HEERBHERIEESR
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RSN EANEEEERREA
FAHZHERE  FRES(FL
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

3  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3 ERtHERMEE)

(continued)

(d) Write-down of inventories d) FEM
Inventories are written down to the net realisable BIEFE IR M 27 #MOR
value based on an assessment of the realisability FEEA#EFE - —BEH
of inventories. Write-downs on inventories BESRBEANERRFES
are recorded where events or changes in BRARE RBEERBFAREE
circumstances indicate that the balances may not WORL o B RO T ZE 1E B
be realised. The identification of write-downs Kbt - ETEH 2 SRR
requires the use of judgement and estimates. RERFAAEEZERR ZER
Where the expectation is different from the KRB FECRAERFE
original estimate, such difference will impact the Z WO ©

carrying value and write-downs of inventories.

4 REVENUE 4 WA
2024 2023
—B_ME —T--F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TTT

Recognised at a point in time BEEEVBHREER

under HKFRS 15: FFEREEEEMRER

Sale of properties MEHE 226,877 700,751
The principal activities of the Group are property AEENFEZEHRAETEAM
sales and development in Dongguan, Huizhou and ERERT - BMRG LAY
Foshan in Chinese Mainland. FHERER -

Revenue represents the income from sale of WATBEEMRHFEERARD R
properties, net of sales related taxes and discounts He#B BEHKREERBENREA
allowed. N Fr4a T4 -

A
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4

190

REVENUE (continued)

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts are RMB38,566,000 (2023:
RMB211,353,000). These amounts represent revenue
expected to be recognised in the future from
pre-completion sales contracts.
recognise the expected revenue in future when the
properties are accepted by the customer, or deemed

The Group will

as accepted according to the contract, whichever is
earlier.

For the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023,
the Group’s customer base is diversified and does
not have a customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports that the Group’s most senior executive
management reviews regularly in allocating resources
to segments and in assessing their performances.
The Group’s most senior executive management
makes resources allocation decisions based on
internal management functions and asses the Group’s
business instead of by separate business lines or
geographical regions. Accordingly, the Group has only
one operating segment and therefore, no segment
information is presented.

The Group primarily operates in Chinese Mainland

and accordingly, no geographical information is
presented.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

OTHER NET LOSSES 6 HtEBEZEHE
2024 2023
—EDME —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’OOO
AR®BTR ARETx
Impairment loss on inventories FEREEE (11,999) —
Rental income el A 2,212 1,539
Net valuation (loss)/gain on REMEHE(ER), W
investment properties (note 13) FEE (KT 5E13) (7,265) 550
Net exchange gain/(loss) BEH W a5 1B) F5 667 (7,182)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEBRE 17) —
Others ) 1,614 740
(14,788) (4,353)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7  BRBLATEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRERGEMEME, (GEA)ATIE
(crediting): B :
(@ Finance (income)/costs, net @ BHUA) BE FE
2024 2023
—EZDME 2 —T_-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARBTT
Finance costs Mg
— Interest expense from — REBEHKATEZ
financial liabilities THRABENFNERX
measured at amortised
cost 276 7,124
— Interest expense from — T B AR D HA A AN
land cost instalment B FHX — 2,673
— Interest expense on lease — HEBENF EHX
liabilities 26 99
Less: Interest expenses B REERTYED
capitalised into B EARL
property under (Bt 5E)
development for sale
(Note) —_ (3,477) ok
?
302 6,419 1
Finance income MBWA || .
— Interest income from — REBHEKAFEZ f},:,ﬁ‘» | ‘
financial assets measured TREENF BEMRA o |
at amortised cost (2,883) (6,034) 1
Finance (income)/costs, net B (A, B - F 5 (2,581) 385

BE—_Z-_NMF=ZA=+— .
ABREEBERATUER |

E(ZFZ=F: AEF |
Y FFE498%) © ‘
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Note: No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the e
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: at weighted
average rate of 4.98% per annum).
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7  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7  BREANHEF
(b) Staff costs (b) EIKA
2024 2023
—EZmE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®BTTT

Wages and salaries FMETIE 18,620 18,073
Contributions to defined RER-TRNGE 2 HRK
contribution retirement plan 827 761
Less: staff costs capitalised into & : FEERFWEETL
property under development X ZAN& A1t
for sales 4,955) (5,091)
14,492 13,743

The subsidiaries operated in Chinese Mainland
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the municipal and provincial government
authorities of the People Republic of China
(the “PRC”), whereby the subsidiaries operated
in Chinese Mainland are required to make
contribution at the rates required by different
local government authorities. The local
government authorities are responsible for
the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

EFBRAHEENHBARZ
e EAREME ((HE])
HEMRE QT E A
MATRAKBHNE(ZSE
T8 BRI & R
B A AR R i 5 B
BAREHNREERAMNEE
LoMABRNEEMRBEE
ST E R E TR E AR IR
BEMRKEET o

REETFRBEEBCGRHERD
BETEKRIAEZ(ERR
BIEFEEEEEENES
HTREIMEAESETE (R
BastEl)) - BEHEIRH
BIUXTATENATHRK
RIRETE] - RIBFRESFE -
EXrkHEBHEXREES
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7  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b)

(0

Staff costs (continued)

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

B B Al g R (42)

(b) BEIRE(E)
B EXPTi RSN - AR E
I EARK S8 A 55 E A
HiBEBKREME -

Other items (0 HfEE
2024 2023
—E-_ME —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET
Outgoings relating to HEEMEBBOXH
investment properties 954 662
Depreciation of owned BEYER BMEMKETE
property, plant and (Hft5E12)
equipment (note 12) 847 788
Depreciation of properties HEFEEBRNYETE
leased for own use (note 12)  (Fff 5£12) 190 456
Auditors’ remuneration % BUED B & (B 2 ()
(note (i) 1,417 1,133
Cost of properties sold EEWEKA M 5E15@)
(note 15(a)) 81,153 183,819
Listing expenses (note (i)) b S (R RE ) — 14,339

Note:

(i)  Auditor’s remuneration includes fees to the
Company’s auditor of RMB1,131,000 (2023:
RMB870,000). No listing expenses occurred during
the year (2023: RMB1,252,000).

B 5

() ZHAMEREINAAA
% BrAh A R #1,131,000T (=
T = = F: A R ¥870,000
TL) e AFERBLTHY(Z
T =F: AR#1,252,000
JT) °
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8 MNREEERRPIESH

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit @ MNEEEmXZBENR:
or loss represents:

2024 2023
—EBECOWE T -=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARETE
Current taxation B R
Taxes in Chinese Mainland B A 75 TR
— provision for Enterprise — EEMRB/M
Income Tax (“EIT”) (E¥EmBH))EE 25,467 125,249
— reversal for EIT (note (v)) — BOEFREN
(B FE V) — (96,294)
25,467 28,955
— provision for Land — T IBE

Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) ([ EEB ) E i 33,887 180,503
PRC Withholding Tax (note (vi)) A B T8 #0187 (Kt 5E (vi)) — 6,105
Deferred taxation i & B H
Origination and reversal of ERMERELNED

temporary differences (Mf 5X20(b))

(note 20(b)) (13,338) 52,716
Total income tax charge PSR X 4258 46,016 268,279
Notes: e
i HT (i) EEMREHR

> 3£ P 15 B 5 70 R BB A o
B o o 224 0 B 2 A
Py B i 5t 8 SR BR U A $225%
5 -

The provision for EIT is calculated at 25% based on
the estimated taxable income for the subsidiaries
operated in Chinese Mainland during the year.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

LAT

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group
for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which
under the applicable regulations is calculated
based on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use
rights, property development costs and borrowing
costs.

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for
the year for the subsidiaries incorporated in and
operated in Hong Kong. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax for the year as the subsidiaries
incorporated in and operated in Hong Kong did not
have any assessable profits for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

RESBRBRPIEB(E)

@ REEER@RZBENT:

()

MisE: (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

T it 3 E B
THIERER IR LELREE
BROVER RELHH
1B R # T E30% Z£60%
B BT E R ARG E
AHBRE  WHEMERS
FEMBRAMNFRIER (BFEL
A AR K AN - W3R B
AREERAN)GE -

ERBNEH

BB ML I E B M
BARBIEFEAERMK
i M E16.5% T B & B FI 15
e HRERBEMK LI
EENWNBRARREANIL &
ERERBEF  WRFERA
WEEBMNESHERE -

RERSHENREER XA
EMBRRAUEER  AKEH
ABMRESRERRBE K
BHEMEMMAEHR -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

8

196

_

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

The clearance of LAT settlement of
Dongguan City Jiaxuntong Computer
Products Limited (“Jiaxuntong”) was
completed during the year ended 31 March
2023 and tax refund relating to the LAT
deduction for EIT purpose was received.
As a result, the deferred tax assets arising
from the accrual of LAT of RMB96,294,000
were utilised, with a corresponding reversal
of EIT provision of the same amount was
made during the year ended 31 March 2023.
There is no net impact to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in this respect.

The withholding tax arose from the
5% of dividend paid from a subsidiary
incorporated in Chinese Mainland to its
Hong Kong holding company within the
Group.

8

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A

RESBRBRPIEB(E)

(@)

REGeBEERZHEBENT:

(%)
(v)

(vi)

e S == A

RETRmMBENE®
ERAR(EZEARBD®
T I ER AN EE—
EEREE_ZT=F=
A=1t—HLEFEZEK °
FEREEMRGHE®D
Z R I E R AR
EIFIED LU E o FHilt -
EREREAF T HEE
MEEMELEMRIBEE
A R %96,294,0007C -
WREBEE-_ZT-_=F=H
=+ —HIEFEHRERE
AESENTEMER
BE- kT EHEEE

S¢ > N
BRWEIZE -

5%MBHIRELEBAK
B A— AR R E AT
i A 32 &Y B /B8 2 7] 1)
BEAERARMNH R

B o
i
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B 75 R MY &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8 RHEAEBBZEXRTDAER(E)
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and () BEMIHERBEARRTE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: MERRENEER:

2024 2023

—EBoME T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®BTTT

Profit before taxation B Bt Al & A 86,085 449,125
Less: LAT R £ b I E R (33,887) (180,503)
52,198 268,622

Notional tax calculated at REERIAREERERN

applicable income tax rate RN ETE

of the relevant jurisdictions

concerned 13,050 67,156
Income not subject to taxation & 7B ZR Bt A LA (395) (137)
EIT arising from corporate RO ELXBNERAEH

division — 3,931
Expenses not deductible for A1 H 8 H

taxation purposes 2,151 10,721
Others Hh (2,677) —

EIT, net of deferred tax impact 1R PTG - MBRIE T

iy & 2 12,129 81,671
LAT T 3R E 33,887 180,503
PRC withholding tax B T 1 B — 6,105
Income tax charge TS Bt 7 X 46,016 268,279
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

EEME
BIERBQAFHERIE383MNIEEA
A(BEESENEER) RHIFE2E0
BEENESMowT:

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

198

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-B-MEZA=T-BLEE

Discretionary

Employer’s
contributions
to retirement

Fees Salaries bonuses plans Total
EXmRkE
we e BERL  HHHER H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%Tn ARET:
Executive directors HITEZE
Ho Wai Hon, Brian it — 850 812 17 1,679
Ho Man Chung fa] 3T - 908 169 — 1,077
Yiu Yuet Fung KAR — 617 218 17 852
Zhu Nian Hua RE( — 468 162 17 647
Non-executive director ~ #HTEZE
Ho Cheuk Fai fi] 15 B — — — — —
Independent Non- BUFHTEE
executive directors
Ho Lai Hong 8% 167 — — — 167
Lo Yung Fong BR% 139 - - — 139
Choi Wai Hin Sk 167 — — — 167
473 2,643 1,361 51 4,728

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9 EEME(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2023
HE-T_=F=A=t-HIEE

Employer's
contributions
Discretionary  to retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses plans Total
EXMERE
ik e BERL HEEX Bt

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR

Executive directors HITEE

Ho Wai Hon, Brian T = 772 935 16 1,723
Ho Man Chung fal 32 - 839 202 9 1,050
Yiu Yuet Fung KAR — 571 257 16 844
Zhu Nian Hua REL — 445 189 16 650

Non-executive director FHTEE
Ho Cheuk Fai 218 — _ _ _ _

Independent Non-executive BV #HTEE

directors
Ho Lai Hong (appointed on ~ ABRE (R=F==%
21 February 2023) ZAZt-BEZf) 4 — — — 4
Lo Yung Fong (appointed on ~ EA B (R=T==%
21 February 2023) ZAZT-BEZf) 3 - - - 3
Choi Wai Hin (appointed on ~ 2R FH(R_T_=F
21 February 2023) ZR=+-HEZA) 4 - — — 4
1 2627 1,563 57 4278
Note: B 3T -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FABMESEFEHEIRNEREEMH
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. No B 2 B o 7N 5% B 30 A () £ f) & 5 S AN M
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as SIERMAIRIMARE B HEE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as RIERBEERIE -
compensation for loss of office.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

10

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
The number of directors and non-directors included

10 BREFHEMAL
HEAFE hAZEa7MALE

in the five highest paid individuals for the year are set RONEENFEFTARMT:
forth below:
Number of individuals
ATEE
2024 2023
—B-_ME —T--F
Directors = 4 4
Non-directors IFES 1 1

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the non-directors included in the five highest paid
individuals are as follows:

RESEFMALANEE S
ST

2024 2023

“EBEIME 2 —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARBTT

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & Kk H b & o 1,221 1,121

Discretionary bonus B 15 TE 41 157 265
Contributions to retirement benefit i K& F| 5t 2 f 3

scheme 17 16

1,395 1,402

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z &l E i EZ R AR D 7
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B 75 R MY &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emolument of one individual with the highest
emolument is within the following band:

10

BEEHEMALE)

FREIHALTHAFIMN FATE

XY

Number of individuals
AT EEB
2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=4%F

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £ 2,000,000

BT

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the
amount of diluted earnings per share is equal to basic
earnings per share.

11

5 IR & F

BRE RGN TR BEARR B s
FAEARGGNGRAFASRITZ
BB O EE -

HRBE_ T _NFR-FT_=F
A=+ RLEFEVEEFEE
TRl WEREEEN SRS
RERERRF o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

11

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

1M SRENE)

2024 2023
—EomE T -=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTET
Profit attributable to equity ZAYNCIE X RS RS N X =i
shareholders of the Company 40,069 180,846
Weighted average number of BETEBERZMEFIH
ordinary shares in issue (F %)
(in thousand shares) 505,365 505,365
Basic earnings per share BRENEN(ARE D)
(RMB cents) 29 35.8
Diluted earnings per share BEERBBOEN(ARED)
(RMB cents) 7.9 35.8

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED £ E#hEZERER A 7
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 YE BEERXE

Furniture,
tools and Fixturesand  Properties
computer Motor leasehold ~  leased for
equipment vehicles improvements own use Total
FH -TAR EEXER HEFER
ERRE "E ES3 RIS a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%TR
Cost: A
At 1 April 2022 RZZEZZ4MA—H 2,150 3,553 324 2,355 8,362
Additions NE 742 — 147 — 889
Disposals HE — (200) = — (200)
Exchange adjustments I 5 8 B - 86 - — 86
At 31 March 2023 and RZF-=F
1 April 2023 =A=t-BR
“ZZ=%¥NmA-H 2,892 3,439 471 2,355 9,157
Additions AE 201 — 46 178 425
Disposals HE — (350) (47) (2,355) (2,752)
Exchange adjustments I 5 8 B - 86 - - 86
At 31 March 2024 R-ZB_ME
=A=+-H 3,093 3,175 470 178 6,916
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiH T E:
At 1 April 2022 W-Z--FMA—A 1,962 1,831 229 76 4,098
Charge for the year FERMB 262 467 59 456 1,244
Written back on disposals HE 2 HE — (108) - = (108)
Exchange adjustments 3k — 66 — - 66
At 31 March 2023 and R-B_=F
1 April 2023 =ZA=t-BR
“Z-ZFNA-H 2,224 2,256 288 532 5,300
Charge for the year ERkE 361 414 72 190 1,037
Disposals HE — (350) (8) (646) (1,004)
Exchange adjustments E3EE S — 74 — - 74 A
by
At 31 March 2024 RZZE-NF %
=R=t+-H 2,585 2,394 352 76 5,407 | el
Net book value BEEE: ";.‘f‘;‘ e
At 31 March 2023 A\ZEZ= > L
=ZR=+—-H 668 1,183 183 1,823 3,857
At 31 March 2024 \ZEZRF
=A=1-H 508 781 118 102 1,509 ]
L ‘
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12
(@ Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

M- BMERKRE(E)

(@

EREEE

BHBEESD BNERESR

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EREFESTET:
2024 2023
—RComFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARETE
Properties leased for own use, HE{EQAM Y% -
carried at depreciation cost = & KA AR 102 1,823

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

KB R EHEERE

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: XA DA
2024 2023
—gF-mE —T==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTET
Depreciation charge of HEEBRHNYEN
properties for own use FrEX 190 456
Interest on lease liabilities HERERNER 26 99

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 BREWYE

RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 April 2022 m_g__imﬂ =] 77,300
Fair value adjustment NFEA 550

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R-ZEB_=F=A=t+—HK
—E-=—FMmMHA—A 77,850
Transfer from inventories BFEEEA 48,331
Fair value adjustment NEEAE (7,265)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZZE-_MF=A=+—H 118,916

The investment properties are located in Chinese
Mainland and held under lease terms of between 10
and 50 years.

Fair value measurement of properties

(@) Fair value hierarchy
The fair values of the investment properties are
categorised into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
During the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.

The valuation of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 March 2024 was carried out by
an independent firm of surveyors, Masterpiece
Valuation Advisory Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The
Group’s chief financial officer have discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at reporting date.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net losses” on
the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

REMEMPABERM - BN F10
E50FHEEFEE -

MEQNFETE

@ AFEEBR
BIEE BV BHREENE3
AP Iﬁ#%J&ﬁ%%
QZTE/-\*E;%/‘\qz{E E’j%
“E-BE_ZC mi& =
—=#=ZA=t-HLEE"
F-BHF_EBEIAZMEY
mAEMER TEEE=ZETL
AgAgEL -

AEBER_T_MFE=A
=t —HENREVMENGER
BYRAETENNEERE
[RABIET > ZRRABET
RBEEBANEMBENERE
g iﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁ’]%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ!ﬁ
METBERNAIHER - 1N
HBEAMETHER  A&H
B BE 75 4R B 2 BRI B AT AT R
ERAERRREES

T&Lﬁ%%m FEFEEL
BERAKRNIHME R F5E]
IE\EEP&EDM °
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13 BREWE(E)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued) MEAFEFEE)
(b) The unobservable inputs are summarised as (b) TRIERZHEMM T
follows:
Valuation technique  Unobservable input Input factor
fhE R OLE 272 ¢ BARZ
Investment properties, Direct Comparison Price per square meter, using market direct 31 March 2024:
Industrial land — Approach comparables and taking into account of  RMB1,231 per square meter
Chinese Mainland time of transaction, location and other (31 March 2023:
\ o individual factors R RMBT,190 per square meter)
RENE IXAH EERBE STHKER RATSERTLER —B-NE-A=1-A:
— PEAL TERARSEMA WENERAME  SFAKARE, 23175
IR % (ZB-Zf=f=1-
FEIRARR, 19075)
Investment properties, Depreciated Replacement Cost — Buildings 31 March 2024:
Industrial buildings — Replacement Cost RMB906 per square meter
Chinese Mainland Approach (31 March 2023:
o \ i RMB895 per square meter)
RENF IXET BREBRRRALE  BRAA—£T "B MEZR=T-
— FERL t?H#AEM%M
(CB-=F=A=t1—
tJ‘rﬁMEmsn)
Investment properties, Direct Comparison Price per square meter, using market 31 March 2024:
Commercial stores — Approach direct comparables and taking into  RMB28,271 per square meter
Chinese Mainland account of time of transaction, (2023: N/A)
location and other individual factors (31 March 2023:
N/A)
RENE BH BELEE ST/AER  AATSERTHES  —T-MESAS+-H
— PEAL VERARSHE HBNEREE  SFIRARES27IT
3R (CB-=F=A=t—H:

m\)

For the industrial land and commercial stores
of investment properties using the direct
comparison approach, the fair value is based
on prices for recent market transactions in
similar land and commercial stores and adjusted
to reflect the conditions and locations of the
Group’s land and commercial stores. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square meter and taking into account of
time of transaction, location and other individual
factors such as the location of the land and
commercial stores. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the price per square
meter of the land and commercial stores.

REBERLBOENREY
P IEAMAMEEmS
HAFE AR 2R £ i A0
BHNTER A ERRER -
I AR 5 7N &2 B + 1 7 9 A
Rt BEEITHE -t
ﬁﬁ%?é%%ﬁk%@?
TKRER TEBERSE
A~ i3 B K E b {E Bl A
X WMIHMAFHELE - 2
FEFER T HMEHE T
TREBZLEMAE -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(b)

The unobservable inputs are summarised as
follows: (continued)

For the industrial buildings of investment
properties using the depreciated replacement
cost approach, the fair value is based on
estimated new replacement cost of the buildings
and other site works from which adjustments
are then made to account for age, condition,
and functional obsolescence, while taking into
account the site formation cost and those public
utilities connection charges to the properties. The

13 REWMWE(E)

MEAFEE(E)
(b) NRAIERE BB T :
(%)

MR EMEBRRKAEDN
REMEFNIERFMS -
HRFEREEZT N EME
BIERWNMAEAHEENAE
ERRREER  ARRARY
REMPRERZEFELAE - W&t
R BFERARZEYE
MARREERER - 2F
BFfEEBFEENAZL

fair value measurement is positively correlated to HHE o
the replacement cost of the buildings.

14 MEBRAT
RZZE-_WE=A=+—8 &2
AIEENBARIMFERBOT:

14 SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2024 are:

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRLH
Principal
activity and
Date and place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued ~ Held by the Heldbya  country of
Company name establishment ~ and paid-in capital Company subsidiary ~ operation Notes
PEEE ERAL/RIRARAE CRORMRRARE 209%F WELARAE IEED Gik::
Benefit Master Limited 8 September 2015, USs8 100% —  Investment -
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") holdings, the
BVI
NA “E-REAANR. E 100% - BREfER -
KERAES IRRAES
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) 29 September 1987, Hong Kong Ordinary shares of . |
Limited HK$100 .
EREEZBRCHARAA —ANEEARZTAR R 100 E &R || .
Non-voting deferred = 100%  Investment (i)
shares of HK$10,000 holdings,
Chinese
Mainland
BRFRTERD - 100% BEER: (i
10,0007 7T hE R -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 KBLQE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERRILA
Principal
activity and
Date and place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued ~ Held by the Heldbya  country of
Company name establishment ~ and paid-in capital Company subsidiary  operation Notes
ARER EMRL/RYBMRER BRARMRRARE A0RRE WELAKE IERD ik
Dongguan Karrie Properties 17 September 2013, US$34,500,000 - 100%  Real estate (ii), W)
Development Company Chinese Mainland development,
Limited Chinese
Mainland
RERHEHERSARLA “E-ZEAATER: 34,500,000% T — 100% FEHEXE-  i,0
RERL hEMH
Dongguan City Jiahao Industry 8 March 2016, RMBT,000,000 = 100%  Commercial (iii), (v)
Limited Co. Ltd. Chinese Mainland housing sales,
Chinese
Mainland
RENERERXARAA T2-REZANE. ARE1,000,0007 — 100% EXETHE (i),
hEA hE A
Boluo County Jiayingli Real 11 January 2017, RMBY97,501,000 = 100%  Real estate (iii), (v)
Estate Development Company Chinese Mainland development,
Limited Chinese
Mainland
BERSENFHERLEAR ZE-+E-AT-B0 ARK97501,0007 — 00% FHEEE: (i), ()
NG hEA hE R
Dongguan City Jiaxuntong 7 September 2000, RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Real estate (iv), W)
Computer Products Limited Chinese Mainland development,
Chinese
Mainland
RENEARERERAR “RETEAALA ARHS50000,0007 - 100% FHERE: ()W)
N hERY hE R
Foshan Jiahe Properties 11 March 2022, RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Real estate (iii), (v)
Development Company Chinese Mainland development,
Limited Chinese
Mainland
BUEREHERSERAT TRCCFZAT-R AR¥100,000,0007 - 100% FRERE- i), v
hERY hE R

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities RZE_MF=A=+—BRZ-F
at 31 March 2024 and 2023. “=ZF=ZRA=t—H" WEBRAH
BB BEITEMES -

208

,. :
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

15

(i)

(iii)

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,
are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled
to distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
$200,000,000,000 has been distributed by the relevant
companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

Dongguan Karrie Properties Development Company
Limited is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established
in the Chinese Mainland with an operating period of 20
years up to 17 September 2033.

The subsidiaries are wholly-owned foreign enterprises
established in Chinese Mainland with a long-term
operating period.

(i)

(iii)

14 KRBT (E)
i 2

&K%L L DI IR E R
T?%JL’EH REC NERETTERES

DIRGIERE LR R LBEEFEEA
2k & $£200,000,000,00078 7T °

RERAEHEREER AR
—RPBERBKLIEEEEINE
¥ HEXBRA-TF  N=
Z==FNA+ERERM-

MEBARRPEANMKIZEER
SNERE HEXHRAREY -

(ivy Dongguan City Jiaxuntong Computer Products Limited is ivv RETRABREKERAERAA
a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in Chinese T—RABEKLEEHE ﬁfﬂ\ &k
Mainland with an operating period of 30 years up to 18 ¥ O HEEHBERA=THF RKR-E
May 2031. =—FnRAtNBEW -

(v)  The official names of these entities are in Chinese. The ) ZEEERANEABBEAPX - ZF
English names of these companies are for identification RAEMEXZEERB A E -
purpose only.

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 15 FEREMGERMAE

2024 2023

—E-mE —ZT-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®ETE

Properties under development for & B Y 5

sale 174,698 166,207
Completed properties held for sale #BEWFEE &I 790,038 884,819
964,736 1,051,026
Other contract costs H & [ A A 1,171 4,136
965,907 1,055,162
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BY 35 SRR MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

15 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 15 BEERHMESRRA(E)
(continued)
(@ The analysis of the amount of inventories @)

recognised as an expense and included in profit

ERRSAXMERERE
SANTFESEINAOT :

210

or loss is as follows:

2024 2023
—B_ME —ZT-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTE
Carrying amount of properties sold B &% %K KREE 81,153 183,819
Write down of inventories 7 & MO 11,999 —
93,152 183,819
(b) The analysis of carrying value of land held for by FEVEZFRIHHKREE
property development for sale is as follows: DAT
2024 2023
—BRComFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
In Chinese Mainland T B A 3
— Less than 50 years — DR505F 69,393 74,747
— More than 50 years — ZR504F 167,270 159,904
236,663 234,651
(c) Contract costs © BEMREK

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 March
2024 and 2023 relate to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents
whose selling activities resulted in customers
entering into sale and purchase agreements for
the Group’s properties which are still under
construction at the reporting date. Contract costs
are recognised as part of “selling expenses” in
the statements of profit or loss in the period in
which revenue from the related property sales is
recognised.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A

NR-EBE-_MER_T_=F=
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B % R R MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

15 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS
(continued)

(0

Contract costs (continued)

The amount of capitalised contract costs of
RMB3,688,000 (2023: RMB1,990,000) were
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 March 2024. No impairment was identified for
the contract costs as at 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

The Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 94 of HKFRS 15 and recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining contracts relating
to the sale of completed properties and services
as an expense when incurred if the amortisation
period of the assets that the Group otherwise
would have recognised is within the same
reporting period as the date of entering into the
contract.

None of capitalised contract costs that is
expected to be recognised as expenses after
more than one year (2023: RMB1,528,000) as at
31 March 2024.

16 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

15 FERHEMERRE(E)

0 EBRBAXE)
BERELERKASBEERE
“MNE=ZA=+—HLEFE
AR#3,688,000 (T ==
& AR ¥1,990,0007T) K 18
HHHER  HE_ZT_NF=
A=Z+—8 GRKAKRER
BE(Q023F - ARBZ L) o

AEBRBEAMBHREE
AIFE15R B4R AITTHERE T
Ao HAREREERNE
EEHHERNEI LA/ B RN
HERERA  BIRNELER
KRG EMEEERINE
KR H & KL 8 KR

RZB-_ME=A=+—QH "
BH-—FRrRKEMHERES
RKATTFE(CE_=F:
A R #1,528,0007T) °

16 FANNER BHEREMERERR

2024 2023
—2omE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET
Prepayments A~ 3R IE 10,880 10,511
Deposits re 714 863
Other receivables H b JE U BR 5K 5,681 747
17,275 12,121

All prepayment, deposits and other receivables are FBERMNRIE  Re R EMER

expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

ERERE-—FAKRDKER A
S
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BY 35 SRR MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 17 RERBITEX
(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise: @ ReRBITEREHE:
2024 2023
—EBE-OmNFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRT AREBTT
Restricted deposits (note (i)) = BR % 17 3 (BT 5 ) 3,796 10,503
Deposits with banks with less than 77 i =& A /1 EI| B &9 5§
three months to maturity when 171
placed 6,759 —
Cash at bank and in hand RBITEZREES 164,607 257,332
175,162 267,835
Notes: Mt EE -
() In accordance with relevant government () MWEBHEEBRNRE A%H

requirements, certain property development
subsidiaries of the Group are required to set up
designated bank accounts with certain amount
of pre-sale proceeds for the construction of
the relevant properties. The restricted deposits
represent the pre-sale proceeds to secure the future
payments of the Group’s property development
projects. Such restricted deposits will be released
for the payments for construction costs of the
related property development projects or upon
completion of the construction.

(i)  The remittance of bank balances of RMB126,655,000
(2023: RMB252,940,000) as at 31 March 2024
placed with banks in Chinese Mainland are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC Government.

212

_
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 17 RERBITFRGE)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRFAT&FIELE (BTH) BT
(used in)/generated from operations: BIREMHER:
2024 2023
—E-mFE —ZT-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

MaE AR®TFR ARETT

Profit before taxation B 1 B & A 86,085 449,125
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7(a) 302 6,419
Finance income R ON 7() (2,883) (6,034)
Depreciation e 7(c) 1,037 1,244
Fair value changes in REMERNTEE
investment properties 13 7,265 (550)
Gain on disposal of property, HE¥ % « &5 &
plant and equipment R 2 W= (107) (8)
Impairment loss on FEREERE
inventories 6 11,999 —
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss JMNEE & 3 (W) /7
B8 6 (667) 7,182
Changes in working capital: &E& & #®):
Decrease/(increase) in FEREMERKAN
inventories and other L, ()
contract costs 26,851 (51,402)
(Increase)/decrease in FENFRE - ek
prepayments, deposits and  F ] F& Y BR 3K
other receivables (3 m) w2 (5,140) 43,427
Decrease in amounts due JE 1y [ & N B BR 3K
from related companies D — 7,203
Decrease in trade and other & 5 & E th fE{f BR X ,
payables z 8 (27,519) (57,173) N
Decrease in contract BHEBERD %
liabilities (101,088) (285,556) | |

Cash (used in)/generated L (), g
from operations B& (3,865) 113,877

A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (CONTINUED) 17 BEeRBTERE)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from o METEFRELENEERAEH

financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAFMAEBKREREED
liabilities from financing activities, including E’]EF‘“@J BB MIF
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities Re®y MELTHELZ
arising from financing activities are liabilities for BERABREENBEXR
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will REAEEHGEERERER
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash TEASBELTAELR
flow statements as cash flows from financing ERMENEE -
activities.

Amounts due

Bank  to related Lease
horrowings  companies liabilities Total
ENBE
RTRE QAR HERE @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR AR%TR ARRT:R

(note 21)
(R &E21)
t1 April 2022 RZT-_FRA-R o - P R
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREREMNEH:
Repayment of bank borrowings BRFITEE (243,549) - — (243,549
Interest paid ENHE (10,159) — — (10,159)
Capital element of lease rental paid ~ ENHEREHERHH — — 411) 411)
Interest element of finance lease paid Eﬁ%ﬁgfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ B - — 99) 99)
Decrease in amounts due to related ~ ER B ZE AR /W
companies — (2,821) — (2,821)
Total changes from financing cash flows B& % &) E#) “@J%@%E (53,708 (2821) (510)  (257,039)
Exchange adjustments Eidg 742 S S 7432
Other changes: EEs:
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) G EGEYE)) 6,320 = 99 6,419
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ERE I HLAMEES
into a new lease during the year &5 — 2,821 — 2,821
Capitalised borrowing costs (note 7(a)) & AMb & & K &
GEY) 3,477 — — 3,477
Totalotherchanges  ABE®EE VI wn 9 17
At 31 March 2023 RZB-=F=H
=t-H - — 1,962 1,962
214 KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z&IE it EZR B R A &
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 17 RERBITERGE)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 0 METHFFELENEERD
financing activities (continued) (%)
Bank Lease
horrowings liabilities Total
RITEE HERE H)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARETR

(note 21)
(M&E21)
AtTApil2023 — R=®==%RA-R = e R
Changes from financing cash flows: RERERENET:
Proceeds from new bank borrowings MROEENHRERE 18,892 — 18,892
Repayment of bank borrowings BRENEE (18,892) = (18,892)
Interest paid ERME (276) — (276)
Capital element of lease rental paid ENEERSNEAESD = 173) 173)
Interest element of finance lease paid ~ EFHER&HF S5 - (26) (26)
Total changes fiom financing cash flows  BARGREMEDAR we 09w
Other changes: A2 5
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) M B R (& 7() 276 26 302
Early termination of lease RE&ERY — (1,855) (1,855)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering 4 % 5] 47 #)#)
into new leases during the year HEREEM - 178 178
Total other changes Engyen 276 (1,651) (1,375)
At 31 March 2024 R-B-ME=A=t+-H — 112 112
ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 £ $§ 215
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 EZRHEMEMSER
2024 2023
—EZpmE —ET-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®BTTT

Trade payables BIHRMNERR 54 106
Other payables and accruals HiENERLETER 56,912 83,914
56,966 84,020

Apart from the retention money of RMB536,000
(2023: RMBT1,891,000) which were expected to
be settled for more than one year, all of the other
payables and accruals as at 31 March 2024 and 2023
were expected to be settled within one year.

Ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

B &R & A R%536,000c(=F
— =% : AR #¥1,891,0007T) T8 5t
BBE—F&£FIN RZE_NFER
—E-=F=A=+—H FEH
HEMERRETERBEHN —
FRNEE °

ARG EZ Rk DT 0T -

2024 2023
—EZ@E —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTET

Within 6 months N E A A 13 65
Over 12 months BE+—EA 41 41
54 106

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

19 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The balance represents the receipts in advance
received by the Group from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreement. These receipts in
advance are recognised as contract liabilities (see note
2(k)) until the properties is accepted by the customer,
or deemed as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in time when
the control of the completed property is transferred to
the customer that results in recognising of revenue.

19

BHNEE
RREASBEREFZEEEREWH
ZEREKMABEKE - ZF

BWHEERBSENRE(RME
k) EEMEREEPEMIR
BANKERCEMAUUREER
%) MERTYENZEFEEE
EEFERBER W mEFHEE -

Movements of contract liabilities: BEHBEBENES
2024 2023
ZBD@mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%Trx
At the beginning of the year RE 7 121,671 407,227
Decrease in contract liabilities as R FERNERTAFE I AL
a result of recognising revenue BENRAEHSNEE
during the year that was included  J& 2
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (106,552) (354,836)
Increase in contract liabilities asa R FRKIFEEIZE LoD H
result of receiving forward sales TREHAHNABEEM
deposits and instalments during
the year 5,464 69,280
At the end of the year RER 20,583 121,671

As at 31 March 2024, no contract liabilities expected
to be recognised as revenue after more than one year
(2023: RMB15,141,000).

R—ZTFE-_NWF=ZRA=+—H" &
AR —FREERAEKANED
BEATZL(ZE-_=ZF - AR%
15,141,0007T) © A

A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 20 RESHBRRARFFAEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statements @ MNEESTBRARPAREH
of financial position represents: HiE

2024 2023

—E_mFE —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®BTTT

Current tax payable AHEEMNHIE
Provision for EIT EMETEE 45,523 90,133
Provision for LAT T bR E B 395,333 366,461

440,856 456,594

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED £ E#hEZERER A 7
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 20 RESHBRRRFFAEH (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by CERELEHREEERES:
Movement of each component of deferred tax EEBEEE (AE) &4
assets/(liabilities) BB % B
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RAR & W75 R 0 3k i 3R HO R
recognised in the consolidated statements of ERBEEE (BE) A K
financial position and the movements during the DREREBHOT

year are as follows:

Revaluation Temporary

of difference

investment ~ Accrual for  Unused tax for
properties LAT losses  inventories Total

RENE L1HEEHR  RER B2

Bt  ZBR HEER EHEER it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Deferred tax arising from: ARRBELH
BREBE:

At 1 April 2022 R-E__£MA-H (18269) 153,059 1218 (7,045) 128,963
Charged to profit or loss (note 8(a) 18 & % 8 (R i£8(a) (137 (51,395 (545) 639 (52,716)
Exchange adjustments ERAE = — 152 (342) (190)
At 31 March 2023 and RZB-=F=A=1-H

1 April 2023 R-E-=EMA-A (18,406) 101,664 825 (8,026) 76,057
Credited to profit or loss (note 8(a) 78 & zF A (Fi3¥8(a) 1,816 7,638 388 3,49 13,338
Exchange adjustments EiAE = = 53 (460) (407)
At 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=1+-A (16,590) 109,302 1,266 (4,990) 88,988
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

20

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

(0

20

RESUBRRRFAEHR(E)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by ERAELEHREEERER:
(continued) (&)
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset BRETANITHERN AT -
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off HEEMBHREEEHHER
and when the deferred income taxes determined BEx AREMSHEER
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the BEREE IRN&EEME
consolidated statements of financial position: AR IR
2024 2023
—BomE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®ETE
Representing: (A
Deferred tax assets BEEMIBEE 109,013 95,670
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHBRE (20,025) (19,613)
88,988 76,057
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (0 AERELHERE

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the dividend withholding
tax relating to the distributable profits of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland
were not recognised as the Company controls
the dividend policy of the subsidiaries. Based on
the assessment made by management as at the
end of each reporting period, it was determined
that the distributable profits of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland would not
be distributed to the Hong Kong and overseas
holding companies in the foreseeable future. The
distributable profits earned by the subsidiaries in
Chinese Mainland amounted to RMB454,273,000
(2023: RMB393,854,000) were not recognised as
deferred tax liabilities as at 31 March 2024.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A

R-TEZNMFR-T_=F=
A=Z+—8 ' BARARQFZH
MEB AR AR B R - W&
HBEBARRFPRHMB AR R]
31K i ) 89 % B TR 30 B RR
BELERIBAGE REBEETEE
REREHARELOTME - K
RN A2 BB AR KR DR
wmAEE A TERA R iERA
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Bl A AR #454,273,0007T (=
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HEAE
The lease liabilities were repayable as follows: HEBBEROTER:
2024 2023
—EBEomE —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®BTTT

Within 1 year S~ 103 500
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 9 482
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERLFNA — 980
9 1,462
112 1,962
22 BALANCE DUE WITH THE COMPANY 22 BERADFWEER
(@) Interest in a subsidiary @ RHEBATMEZR
The interest in a subsidiary of the Company is as ZN/NESI DS NCTRE O - e (8
follows: T
2024 2023
—BRomFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®BTRT

Investment in a subsidiary RTE AR RE 1,215 1,215
Amount due from a subsidiary JE LT Bf &8 2 7] BR 5K

(note 22(b)) (F¥ 5E22(b)) 374,400 374,400

375,615 375,615
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

22 BALANCE DUE WITH THE COMPANY (continued) 22 BEREDNBWES(E)
(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (b) EW (HKBLINRE
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are U () MHBRARMRIES
unsecured, interest-free, recoverable/repayable EIEA - 2B RESRIE K
on demand and non-trade in nature. EERIFEHHEE -
Further details of the subsidiaries of the Group REBEWBARINE —T&F
are set out in note 14. BRI FE14 o
23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BRE - RERKRE
(@ Movements in components of equity (@ EZEANBIEEF
The reconciliation between the opening and AEBGaERSEKHD
closing balances of each component of the BY B 1) B2 HA R 45 4 10 4 BR &K
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the REZARRZEFK -

consolidated statements of changes in equity.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z &l E i EZ R AR D 7
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 23 BAE - BRERRE(E)

(@ Movements in components of equity (continued) @ REZANBIEH(E)
Details of the changes in the Company’s R wE Rl 4 = A BB D R
individual components of equity between the FHZE R E 15 H T
beginning and the end of the year are set out L
below:

Share Share  Accumulated Exchange
capital premium losses reserve Total
k& EfiRE  REER  SHERE st

RMBO00 ~ RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARET:

(note 23(h))  (note 23(c)(i)) (note 23(c)(ii)
(Fr&E23b) (B E23000) (F 5 23(0)i)
At 1 April 2022 R-BZZE
MA-H —* 375,615 (27) —* 375,588
Issuance of shares Bk 4,394 (4,394) = = =
Profit and total comprehensive £ & R 2 E Y &
income for the year ) = = 48,048 30,858 78,906
Distribution (note 23(e)) A (W E23(6) = (8,000) (57,000) — (65,000)
At 31 March 2023 and R-BZ=f
1 April 2023 ZA=t-BR
—ECCE
A-H 4,394 363,221 (8,979) 30,858 389,494
(Loss)/profit and total ER(BR)/ BNk
comprehensive income for 2 EMEBE
the year = = (29,050) 28,188 (862)
Dividends approved in respect FFEE &R S
of the previous year (f 5 23(e)
(note 23(e)) = = (18,892) = (18,892) r\
At 31 March 2024 R-B-ME é’ﬁ
=A=t+-H 4,394 363,221 (56,921) 59,046 369,740 l fﬂl |
*  The balance represents an amount less than * REHEIRARES00TH fw',‘-'. i
RMB500. S5 o
[
fi ‘ ‘
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 23 BE- - BRERRE(E)
(b) Share capital (b) BRZA
The share capital represented the amount of NN =Y NI A Nt B
share capital of the Company. Details of the AT IR 2 B 21 E 51 10
movement of share capital of the Company are i

set out below:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ZE-mE=R=1-H Z3-=fZA=1-H
Number of Nominal Nominal Number of Nominal Nominal
shares Value Value shares Value Value
K& #AE AfE AfE RHEA HfE HfE
'000 HK$'000 RMB’000 ‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
TR Brtrn  AR®Tn Tk Brfn ARETR
Authorised: HEERK:
Ordinary shares of HK1 cent  ERREREETE
each (2023: HK1 cent) (ZB-=F: 8k
HEIEL) 1,000,000 10,000 N/A 1,000 10,000 N/A
Issued and fully paid: BRTRBHRRA:
Ordinary shares of HKT cent LTRRERERIEL
each (2023: HK1 cent) (ZZ-=%5:8k
AEE)
Beginning of the year £ 505,365 5,054 4,394 — — —
Issuance of shares (note) BORG (M) — - - 505,365 5,054 4394
End of the year EX 505,365 5,054 4,394 505,365 5,054 4,394
& The balances represent amounts less than & ZAESRIE DA RE5007T
RMB500 or 500 shares. )& B 500/ °
Note: On 23 March 2023, the Company issued share Mex: —_TE-_=F=A=-1+=8"
capital of HK$5,053,648 divided into 505,364,770 ARANBEEETITAR 5,053,648
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, all fully paid & JT 0 9 £505,364,7700%
or credited as fully paid, and distributed to the FEEEIE T Y@
existing subscribed shareholders of KIHL by B BRE BRI EH
distribution in species following the completion of 2 WERBARRR MK
successful listing of the shares of the Company on NEBSH EMBAEY D
the Stock Exchange on the same day. &R DT 5= A B AR

BERBBRER -

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|Eh EZRE R 2 A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares
of the Company and the consideration
received from the issuance of shares of the
Company. Under the Cayman Companies
Law, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
Hong Kong operations from Hong Kong
Dollars to RMB. The reserves are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(s).

23 BA - - BERRE(EZ)
(0 ZEERE

(i)

(if)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FxS3A &AM - AARIETITR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

,d?»:é
¥ 9226

S |

(o)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii) Statutory surplus reserve

(iv)

In accordance with the PRC Company
Law and the articles of association of
the subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland,
appropriate 10% of their net profits after

the Group is required to

taxation, as determined under the Chinese
accounting standards, to statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their registered capital. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant
regulations and in the articles of association
of the subsidiaries, the statutory surplus
reserve may be used either to offset losses,
or to be converted to increase share
capital provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the consideration paid by the
Group and the share capital of Jiaxuntong
and Kar Info International Property Limited
under common control of Mr. Ho during the
year.

As part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Jiaxuntong, amounts
previously due from RERHPXERE
R A& of RMB276,278,000 by Jiaxuntong
was net settled in accordance with the
acquisition agreement. The amount settled
was recognised as merger reserve when the
Reorganisation was completed on 22 March
2022.

23
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B % R R MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
distribution and dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt
divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as the sum of total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities in the consolidated statements of
financial position. Total capital is calculated
as ‘total equity’ shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

23 BA - BERRE(EZ)

(d)
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BY 35 SRR MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 23 BE- - BRERRE(E)
(d) Capital management (continued) d ELEE(E)
The Group’s strategy, which is unchanged AEBEZ REEEFHE
from prior years, is to maintain an acceptable BIRAERINERIR 1T B & 5
gearing ratio, calculated based on external bank B HBARXZEERE

kR - HE_ZE_NFER_-Z
—=#=A=1+—H®MEBES&

borrowings and lease liabilities. The gearing
ratios at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

228

_

(e)

B ERAT
2024 2023
—E-MFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR¥ETT
Total debt BEBER 112 1,962
Total equity EmE 849,223 828,554
Gearing ratio EERMBL=X 0.0% 0.2%

Dividends and distribution

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

e BERDIK

BEBNAFEERMNARAE

Company attributable to the year is as follows: BFRHBEAZKREWMT :
2024 2023
—B-_mE —ZT-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE
Interim dividend declared and paid & A E 7 5 F| B B &k
to KIHL during the year NOR AT 2 # B AR B
(2023: Nil) (ZBZ=%F:#]) — 65,000
Final dividend proposed after the 7 ¥ %5 Hi 5K 1% %%k K H3
end of the reporting period REFREBAR2.07%
of HK2.0 cents (equivalent to TIJJ (HERHAR®L9
approximately RMB1.9 cents) INZT_=F:4.0%
per ordinary share (2023: TIJJ (HERHARMKE3S
HK4.0 cents (equivalent to 7))
approximately RMB3.5 cents) 9,359 17,578
9,359 82,578

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period. LE °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Regular review and follow-up actions are
carried out on overdue amounts of instalments
receivable from sale of properties which enable
management to assess their recoverability and to
minimise the exposure to credit risk.

The Group’s exposure to credit risks arising from
cash and cash equivalents and other financial
assets are limited because these financial assets
held by the Group are mainly deposited in
financial institutions such as commercial banks
which maintain sound reputation and financial
situation, for which the Group considered to have
low credit risk.

The Group normally receives full payment from
customers before the hand-over of the property,
and therefore there is no trade receivables as at
31 March 2024 and 2023.
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B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 £ B EREERAFLE(E)
(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) @ EFEERREE)

In respect of other receivables and amounts due
from related companies, the Group has assessed
that the expected credit loss is not material
under the 12 months ECL method. The expected
credit loss rates were insignificant and close to
zero. Thus, no expected credit loss for other
receivables and amounts due from related parties
was recognised during the years ended 31 March
2024 and 2023.

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statements of financial position.
Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as disclosed in note 25(c), the Group does
not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long terms.

BLE 8 U BR 3R K FE Uk R =
REIRFME  AEBEIRE
121& A 78 #A /&5 18 )5 &1 14 78 85
EEBEBITEKR - BHE
EBEBEXITERARETAR
Tl REEZT_AF
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FE I Mk H AR RIE R
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mEREERR  -HEER
BHEaAEEASERE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 2 REAMEERAFE(E)

(continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual TRALTEBECHEENER
maturities at the end of the reporting period of HANBRTEHNIHEE - REAXR
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based MBEBREIRE(BREEBEOME
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including 3 (¥ 8)) IR 2 ERAIRITH
interest payments computed using contractual rates R EONBNF) R AREE G
or, if floating, based on current rates at the end of the AXNHxFAE:

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANRRRRE AL
Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted Tyearor  Between1  Between2

amount cash flow  ondemand  and 2 years  and 5 years
RORFHR 15/

BEE ReREB®  SEEX 122% 2555

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 31 March 2024 R-B2-M%F

ZR=+-H
Trade and other payables BHRHMENERR 56,966 56,966 56,430 536 —
Lease liabilities FEREENRRR 112 112 103 9 —
Total @i 57,078 57,078 56,533 545 —
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B 5 ¥ = B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 £ B EREERAFLEE)

(continued)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERRTBERER
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted Tyearor  Between1  Between 2
amount  cashflow  ondemand and2years and 5 years
CHESiE
FEE RERBELE 1FAREER 122f 2255
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETn AR%Trn AR%Trn AR%Tn AR%Tn
At 31 March 2023 R=B==%Zh=1+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fti e (R 3K 84,020 84,020 84,020 — —
Lease liabilities HERRE 1,962 2,147 510 514 1,123
Total o3t 85,982 86,167 84,530 514 1,123
(c) Currency risk () ¥ = B

The Group operates primarily in Chinese
Mainland and most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB. Currency risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations that are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. Management considers that
the Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk with respect to United States Dollars
(“US$”) and HK$. Management will continue to
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will take
measures to minimise the currency translation
risk. The conversion rate of RMB to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC Government.

AEEFEEPHALLE -
AHEDEBRS EEIAE
MWARBEBEN- - INER R
REFEUAREBIGLERRE
NHEERS EERANE
ENBERRENEENER
EFH - EEERAEAEH
FEEHETT(ERDRET
AN FE R B o **IEEH#%%EQ

2z SN BE | B R H TS e
WMI\%?@-S’;HEHD o AR
SNEE B9 R R R AR B R
T BT 98 0 &9 51 B B ) 1k 1) %
A o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 £ B EREERATLE(E)

(continued)

(0

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the currency portfolio
of the Group’s monetary assets denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the portfolio are
expressed in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period:

(0

5 LB (%)
TREFAEELANER
I 8 ¥ 5 LA S K A 0
(o #0 B A MO B4R
RIERE WAAHEE
MRS RN R 4 3
A R

2024 2023
—EomE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETE
Cash and bank deposits in US$ NETREBEMNEE K
#RATIF 3K 1,775 1,670
Cash and bank deposits in HK$ ABTREBUNNRE R
RITF X 46,734 13,084
48,509 14,754

At 31 March 2024, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% (2023: 10%) against the
US$ and HKS$ with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year and retained
earnings would have approximately increased/
decreased by approximately RMB3,638,000
(2023: RMB1,106,000), mainly as a result of the
net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of cash and bank deposits that are denominated
in US$ and HKS$. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2023.

Fair value estimations

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair value as at 31
March 2024 and 2023. Please see note 13 for fair
value estimate on investment properties.

(d)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 £ $§
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CHEMERHRERERERT
g OAREIEZETLERBTE
@/%ﬁm% —T-=F:
10%) * FRBR B & & F KR
Bia A, A A R
3,638,000 C(Z T - =4F: A
K ®1,106,0007T) * Wt HEE
ABpEUNETABTAEMN
WRERBRITFERAEEN
SFONEW BB o LA E]
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ot zH o
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BY 35 SRR MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@) Commitments outstanding not provided for in the

25 ABRARKEMEHIEER
KBRS B I5E K128

(@

financial statements were as follows: BRI BRT A -
2024 2023
—EoNMFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFTIT
Contracted for S 7,268 8,964

Commitments mainly related to development
costs for the Group’s properties held for sale.

AEFREAFEFEER
THENERRAAR -

(b) The undiscounted lease payments to be received (b) AEEBUTTAIRHQLE M
under non-cancellable operating leases by the EMARMRERMES :
Group were as follows:

2024 2023

—E-WE T -=fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within one year —F R 837 64

(c) Contingent liabilities/financial guarantees (0 RAEME HHER
The Group has issued guarantees to banks to AEBEERRITEDER

RETYEEZRNEBX
PRI - R T - mME=
A=Z+—B mEFTELEN
REEERSERBRARK
347,753,000 (Z & = = :
A R #¥515,657,0007T) * & 8
ERENRTEKMADEERA
EEEBEMELIEERENE
Frig i -

secure the mortgage arrangements of certain
property buyers. At 31 March 2024, the
outstanding guarantees to the banks amounted to
RMB347,753,000 (2023: RMB515,657,000) which
will be released upon the completion of the
transfer procedures with the property buyers in
respect of the legal title of the properties.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(continued)

(c) Contingent liabilities/financial guarantees
(continued)
The directors do not consider the Group will
sustain a loss under these guarantees as the
bank has the rights to sell the property and
recovers the outstanding loan balance from the
sale proceeds if the property buyers have default
payment. The Group has not recognised any
deferred income in respect of these guarantees as
its fair value is considered to be insignificant.

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group entered into the following material related
party transactions.

25 AERIREE UHBERGE)
© BAREE HBERE)

EERR AREZFEME
BEREOMNROBERT » RIT
BRELEZMEL KB ERR
B IER W E K EEE RS
B BMAKE AR RERZS
ERMREER - NEEL
B % FRERERTAELT
WA BERFERRBRER
TREE -

20 FEFEBAIRS
REBEATUATEEBE IR
%O

(@) Transactions with key management personnel (@) HFXFEEEEBAENRS
Remuneration for key management personnel of AEBTEEEEABNF
the Group is as follows: [ NN

2024 2023

—F-mNE —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETET

Short-term employee benefits RHEERAN 2,375 2,108
Remuneration scheme RRET &R

contributions 34 66

2,409 2,174
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 TEBBAERB(E)
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b EHEBINRS
2024 2023
—EBDmME —T-o=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETT

Sales to related parties (note) A 28 B 5 85 & (B 7E) — 8,474
Rental income received from 2 U EA R 5 A & A
related parties (note) (B 31) 246 246

Note: Bt 5
These related party transactions are trade in nature. ZEMBHXIBEESHILE -

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (0 ERRAEXZFAERzLHHAL
connected transactions 238 A
Except for the rental charged to related companies BTSN EE THRER
that constitute connected transactions, none of the ARG UNERKEZH
related party transaction mentioned above falls BALTRZGAEIA LT
under the definition of connected transaction or BIBUAEMATEZERS
continuing connected transaction as defined in HERERS -

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27 ATREMEZMBEARRTE
POSITION
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
—EZmE —ET-=F
ZA=+—-B =ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETR AR®ETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interest in a subsidiary NN R E 22(a) 375,615 375,615
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TE{ kI8 - #E & HAh
receivables JFE W BR FX 155 —
Amount due from a subsidiary  F& 42 {J /8 A 7] Bk 3k 22(b) 88,908 83,412
Cash and bank deposits Re RRITEX 549 —
89,612 83,412
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables Ha R (336) a1
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE 2 22(b) (95,151) (69,522)
(95,487) (69,533)
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ BhE(8E) EE
ASSETS (5,875) 13,879
NET ASSETS FEE 369,740 389,494
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRREE 23(a)
Share capital N 4,394 4,394
Reserves {5 365,346 385,100
TOTAL EQUITY AR 369,740 389,494

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 18 June 2024.

HO Wai Hon, Brian

] 12 5F
Director

EFE

R-ZZE-_WNFSA+N\BEHEES

BB NIRRT -

HO Man Chung
a1 32 &

Director

EFE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

28

29

30

238

_

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 March 2024, the directors regard TMF (B.V.1.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 40.45% of the
Company’s equity interests, to be the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu deemed to be
interested in TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF (B.V.l.) Limited
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and does
not produce financial statements available for public
use.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

On 14 May 2024, the Company entered into a
disposal agreement on conditionally sold the entire
issued equity interest of Jiaxuntong, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
RMB19,800,000 (the “Disposal”) to Kar Info Property
Limited, which is a wholly-owned company of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or
amended standards, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2024 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

28

29

30
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Fx5H &SN - IAAREHITR)

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 30 EEMEENARBE-_S_NF=
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT B=1+—BLEEEMZET - #
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 EARZBUGEBRZTE(Z

MARCH 2024 (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or

after
RUTBEHEH 2%
BN e RER
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BAVBRELENFISRETAN HE - ERLHLOMHERE —FE-_NME—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification 1 January 2024
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (“2020 amendments”)
BARGEREIVREIN  HEHXZES BEDEBREZ —E-ME—-A—H
FE7w 2 (120205 8 5T &)
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7, Financial 1 January 2024
Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements
BEGERMEIRENN HEeREXREZEHNEHETERE7R > —FT-_NF—HA—H
@M TR REFE REFHELH
Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: 1 January 2025
Lack of exchangeability
BR G ERNE2UREBIN IEEFXZHGHTE K=/ T E T —E_RF—HA—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBIREFEZFER - FER
of what the impact of these developments is expected MZERBAHEREARENZ
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has £ 25 ARuRRENLEE
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to 7] FTEAI R BB AAGEE B A
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial NANESLHBEEREKNERT
statements. g-

A
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Five-year Financial Summary

IFMBERE

AEBEE"T-_NEF=A=1+—H1
ﬁTIﬁﬁBZ¢F“Z¥ZE R-ZB_FF .

The results of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 March 2024 and the assets and liabilities of the

Group as at 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 T —F ZE-__F 2=k

are as follows: :%?_EE:H:‘I——EIZEE&E%
PN

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEeXE

Year ended 31 March
BEZ=A=1+—-HLFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“ENME —FT-=F ZT-F ZT—F ZTZTHF
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETRT ARBTI ARETTT
Revenue A 226,877 700,751 775,555 590,803 481,778
Operating profit il 83,504 449,510 549,415 381,063 318,137
Finance income B A 2,883 6,034 12,764 9,235 7,198
Finance costs B 75 B AR (302) (6,419) (4,018) (314) (11,021)
Profit before taxation B % Bl 2 %l 86,085 449,125 558,161 389,984 314,314
Income tax FTiS (46,016)  (268,279)  (314,501)  (229,481)  (185,377)
Profit for the year FERA 40,069 180,846 243,660 160,503 128,937
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity shareholders ARAHE R
of the Company BEA 40,069 180,846 243,660 160,503 128,937
40,069 180,846 243,660 160,503 128,937
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Five-year Financial Summary

IFEMBERE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES mEEERAE
At 31 March
=ZA=t+—-H”
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECWNE —T-=F ZT—F ZT-—F ZTZTF
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARBTI ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE 229,438 177,377 229,819 171,531 134,893
Current assets MEEE 1,158,344 1,335,118 1,745,380 2,029,061 1,586,065
Total assets BE®E 1,387,782 1,512,495 1,975,199 2,200,592 1,720,958
EQUITY &
Share capital P& 7K 4,394 4,394 —x 51,134 51,134
Reserves & 844,829 824,160 748,674 379,154 271,941
Total equity Bm A 849,223 828,554 748,674 430,288 323,075
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities  JERE & & 20,051 21,156 21,277 303,087 375,407
Current liabilities MEBEE 518,508 662,785 1,205,248 1,467,217 1,022,476
Total liabilities BELE 538,559 683,941 1,226,525 1,770,304 1,397,883
Total equity and
liabilities BakaER 1,387,782 1,512,495 1,975,199 2,200,592 1,720,958 ﬁ-
* The balance represents an amount less than RMB500. & ZAEBRIELORARBES00TH S EE - P‘ =
i i*;
[
J“‘
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Properties Held by the Group

rEBERZUFE

As at 31 March 2024 R-T_NF=A=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE BEEENE

Planned GFA Expected
for future  Completion  Percentage
Location 1o B development Date holding Use
ARBEREK
REEHE HHRT
RER Al #HBEIH RE
(sg.m.)
(F7K)

1 The parcel of land located Bl & 5 & 1L 131,472 2028 100%  Residential/
at north to Fulong Bridge T = B [& 77 3 7 Commercial/
and west to Hefu Road, BEREABIAIL Carpark
Hecheng Neighbourhood, i & AT 2 + FE/
Gaoming District, i BE/
Foshan City, Guangdong FES
Province, The People’s
Republic of China

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (EREEYES

Gross floor  Percentage
Location it B Unsold area area holding Use
REEE BEHEE ®KEEIR R#&
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
CF73K) CF3K)

1 Phase 4, FEERER=M 21,928 78,537 100%  Residential/
Castfast Villas, [Bl ke 58 m H 3 K Commercial/
Fenggang Town, EIXRFER Carpark
Dongguan City, 4757 -1 F=E/
Guangdong Province, REZEMNH B/
The People’s Republic of  [# % | FES
China

2 Phase 5, HEERERTM 52,476 102,013 100%  Residential/
Castfast Villas, Bl SR H K Carpark
Fenggang Town, N Fx/
Dongguan City, 4755 -1 FES
Guangdong Province, SERELS
The People’s Republic of [ %

China
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Properties Held by the Group
rEBERZUFE

As at 31 March 2024 R-ZE-_NF=F=+—H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (continued) TFHEMEE)
Gross floor  Percentage
Location i B Unsold area area holding Use
REER BEER REESH A&
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
(F7K) (FHK)
Louvre Mansion, Jin PEEREBM 34,185 45,021 100%  Residential/
San Jiao Development MBESREE Commercial/
Zone, Dongping Village, R¥N&=ARE Carpark
Zhangning Town, Boluo B A ] Bk & ¥ 1 e/
County, Huizhou City, 3 B/
Guangdong Province, FES
The People’s Republic of
China
“Forest Town”, PEERER=M 1,976 3,685 100%  Residential
Phase 3, Castfast Villas, Bl $E )\ H #H A F=E
Fenggang Town, EIXERBER
Dongguan City, E=HTFR#E ]
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of
China
Unit 25B, Sunlight Court, HREERERZEM 165 165 100%  Residential
Castfast Villas, Fenggang  [Bl i $E 88 T A B& F=x
Town, Dongguan City, EFEREER
Guangdong Province, E—HRER
The People’s Republic of  25#& B}
China
Unit 16A, Twilight Court, FEIERER=M 148 148 100%  Residential
Castfast Villas, Fenggang Bl i #2887 22 3% E=x
Town, Dongguan City, ERBERRER N
Guangdong Province, E—HFEE "
The People’s Republic of 161 A5R R
China
Unit 25C, Skylight Court, FBIERER=M 143 143 100%  Residential
Castfast Villas, Fenggang  [Bl i 282 T A B& F=x
Town, Dongguan City, EFBEREER
Guangdong Province, E—HEERE
The People’s Republic of 25 C5f
China
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Properties Held by the Group
AEBHFEZUE

As at 31 March 2024 R-Z-_NF=A=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT MERBERE
Gross floor Percentage
Location i B area holding Existing use
BEE® BREIL RE
(sq.m)
(F75K)

1 Industrial Complex, B & BR & B 52 i R fee £ 55,262 100% idle
Zhentiannan Road, fEREHBERIEE 2
Yantian, Fenggang
Town, Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of
China

2 Commercial Buildings, B & R & B 52 R e £R 1,397 100% Leased

Castfast Villas Phase 4, AHIBARE IEEZEXK npc|

No. 47-1, Jiahui Road, 4755 -152 1 5% fE /U
Youganpu Da Long EEL

Industry District,

Fenggang Town,

Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of

China

Note: The above properties are held on medium to long-term leases.

M REMERTHERMROTE -
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